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Financial Highlights
MHBE

Year ended 31 December
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Overall review

The Group’s consolidated results for 2007 improved
substantially in comparison with last year, which was mainly
because the income derived from the associates increased
substantially and the Group earned income due to the disposal
of its facade contracting works business. Turnover for 2007
was HK$853,729,000 (2006: HK$1,057,154,000) and was
HK$195,088,000 (2006: HK$172,045,000) if excluding facade
contracting works business. Profit attributable to equity
holders amounted to HK$77,996,000 (2006: HK$47,950,000),
representing a rise of 63% over last year. Basic earnings per
share amounted to HK¢1.73 (2006: HK¢1.22).

Facade contracting works

Having considered the intensified competition in the market
environment of facade contracting works and the continuous
rise in cost of raw material, as well as the Group’s expectation
to focus its resources on the aero-technology related business,
on 28 December 2007, the Group disposed of the entire
issued share capital of FEA Holdings Limited (“FEA") held by
the Group for a consideration of HK$205 million. FEA was
originally a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group which,
through its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in design,
manufacture and installation of curtain walls, aluminium
windows and other related products for buildings. In
consequence, the disposal of FEA's shares is tantamount to
the disposal of the Group’s facade contracting works business.
The details of this disposal have been contained in the circular
dated 16 November 2007.

Together with the gain on disposal, the facade contracting
works business yielded profit of HK$30,342,000 to the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2007,
increase of HK$11,963,000 over last year.

representing an
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Electric and steam power supply

In comparison with last year, the turnover of Hangzhou
Sealand Electric Power Company Limited (“Hangzhou
Sealand”), a subsidiary of the Group, increased by 13% from
HK$170,786,000 to HK$192,663,000. Sale of steam power
increased by 13% over last year, representing 80% of the
turnover, while that of electric power decreased by 12%. The
gross profit rate increased slightly from 14% to 15% over
last year. During the year, income from installation of
infrastructure for steam supply of HK$5,177,000 (2006:
HK$819,000) and gain on revaluation of generation plant
and machinery of HK$2,972,000 (2006: loss of HK$8,444,000)
were recorded. For the year ended 31 December 2007, the
electric and steam power supply business contributed
HK$27,713,000 (2006: HK$15,674,000) to the Group's profit.

During the year, Hangzhou Sealand implemented an energy
reduction project on its existing boiler which reduces
consumption and increases output noticeably. The steam
power production was raised by an average of 0.72 ton for
every ton of coal consumed. This project was highly praised
by the government department in Hangzhou city. Furthermore,
Hangzhou Sealand restructured the organisation chart so as
to enhance work efficiency by reducing the links in between.
Hangzhou Sealand also established a multifarious assessment
method for the production department, performed spot check
and gave reward to staff with outstanding performance.

Aero-technology related business

Totally 56 EC120 Helicopters were sold in 2007. Turnover
increased by 93% from HK$1,259,000 for last year to
HK$2,425,000. At the end of 2007, significant uncertainty
existed in the plan for establishing an assembly line in the
Mainland for Project EC120 for the production and sales in
the Mainland. Taking a prudent approach, the Group re-
assessed the value of Project EC120, and having considered
the profit and cashflow forecast of Project EC120, the Group
made a provision for impairment of HK$14,000,000 (2006:
HK$4,800,000) against the financial assets thereunder. As a
result, for the year ended 31 December 2007, the aero-
technology related business recorded a loss of HK$12,388,000
(2006: HK$3,422,000).
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Others

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group recorded
investment profit in an aggregate of HK$50,465,000 (2006:
loss of HK$141,000) from associates, which comprised share
of profits of associates of HK$13,149,000 (2006: losses of
HK$22,171,000), gain on deemed disposal of an associate of
HK$32,920,000 (2006: HK$22,030,000) resulted from the
dilution of the Group’s interest in China Nav-Info Co., Ltd.
(“China Nav-Info”) through various capital transactions of
China Nav-Info, and gain on disposal of an associate of
HK$4,396,000 (2006: nil).

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group recorded
surplus on revaluation of an investment property of
HK$9,300,000 (2006: nil) based on valuation performed by
independent professionally qualified valuers, and loss on other
investments of HK$6,849,000 (2006: gain of HK$37,797,000).

PROSPECTS

Over the next 20 years, the economy of China will continue
to maintain a relatively high growth rate which will bring the
Group a lot of development opportunities. Hence, the Group
will closely monitor the aviation industry projects, aviation-
related business domain projects and other projects with
development prospects in China.

In addition, Hangzhou Sealand will continue to improve
production efficiency through making appropriate alteration
of the equipments, and to ensure safe production as well as
strengthen the management of environmental protection, so
as to strive for better results.
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APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation
to my fellow directors and all our staff for their support, hard
work and dedication.

By Order of the Board
Fu Shula
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 April 2008
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, capital structure and financial resources

The Group has consistently maintained sufficient working
capital. As at 31 December 2007, the Group had current
assets of HK$701,929,000 (2006: HK$652,181,000), including
cash and bank balances and time deposits in an aggregate of
HK$544,402,000 (2006: HK$176,138,000). The Group's
current liabilities as at 31 December 2007 were

HK$204,520,000 (2006: HK$479,405,000).

On 1 May 2007, pursuant to a share placing and top up
subscription arrangement, Tacko International Limited, an
existing shareholder of the Company, sold 720,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company to certain independent third
parties at HK$0.34 per share, and subscribed for 720,000,000
new ordinary shares issued by the Company at the same
price. Besides, the Company also granted 80,000,000 share
options with an exercise price of HK$0.34 per share to these
independent third parties. The aggregate cash consideration
received, before share issue expenses, is approximately
HK$244,800,000. During the year, all these 80,000,000 share
options were exercised for an aggregate cash consideration
of HK$27,200,000.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s equity attributable to
equity holders of the parent amounted to HK$922,917,000
(2006: HK$591,724,000), comprising issued capital of
HK$478,530,000 (2006: HK$398,530,000) and reserves of
HK$444,387,000 (2006: HK$193,194,000). The Group's
outstanding bank borrowings as at 31 December 2007
amounted to HK$96,017,000 (2006: HK$167,614,000). The
Group's gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of total bank
borrowings as a percentage of equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent, was 10% (2006: 28%).

The Group’s banking facilities are mainly utilised for capital
expenditure and general working capital requirements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Charges on the Group'’s assets

Details of the charges on the Group’s assets are set out in
note 34 to the financial statements.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

The Group’s foreign currency exposures primarily arise from
certain sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the unit’s functional currency, which are mainly
denominated in United States dollars. In view of the fact that
the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar
and that the Group tries to match its assets and liabilities
with the same currency, the Group’'s exposure to foreign
currency risk is minimal.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

On 4 January 2006, Sino-Aviation Investments Limited (“Sino-
Aviation Investments”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a joint venture agreement (the "JV
Agreement”) with China National Aero-Technology Import &
Export Corporation (“CATIC"), the Company’s ultimate holding
company, and Chengdu Aircraft Industry (Group) Corporation
Ltd. (“Chengdu Aircraft”), for the establishment of a joint
venture to engage in the research and development, design
and manufacture of, and provision of technical services for,
parts and components for commercial aircraft. According to
the JV Agreement, the total registered capital of the joint
venture will be RMB100 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$107 million), of which 40%, 15% and 45% respectively,
will be contributed by Sino-Aviation Investments, CATIC and
Chengdu Aircraft. The JV Agreement is conditional upon (i)
the internal approval obtained by each of the three parties;
and (ii) the approvals from the relevant PRC authorities. As at
31 December 2007, the JV agreement has not become
effective as the conditions stated above have not been fulfilled.

On 25 January 2007, Billirich Investment Limited (“Billirich”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with Sino Gas Group Limited (“Sino Gas”),
pursuant to which a convertible bond with a principal amount
of HK$15,600,000 was issued by Sino Gas to Billirich. The
convertible bond is interest-bearing at 2% per annum and
Billirich has the right to convert the convertible bond into
ordinary shares of Sino Gas at HK$0.65 per share (subject to
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adjustment upon the change in the capital structure of Sino
Gas) and the convertible bond will mature at two years after
its issue. Besides, upon the occurrence of certain mandatory
conversion events, Sino Gas shall have the right to require
the conversion of the principal amount then outstanding and
all interest accrued thereon into ordinary shares of Sino Gas
at the then conversion price. Assuming full conversion of the
convertible bond, the convertible bond can be converted into
24,000,000 ordinary shares of Sino Gas. On 25 May 2007,
the conversion price of HK$0.65 per share was adjusted to
HK$0.633 per share as a result of the change in capital
structure of Sino Gas.

On 15 March 2007, Billirich disposed of 30,000,000 ordinary
shares of Sino Gas (which were designated as equity
investment at fair value through profit or loss in prior year)
to a company beneficially owned by a director of Sino Gas at
HK$0.4 per share for a total aggregate consideration of
HK$12,000,000, and issued a call option to that company to
acquire a maximum of an additional 45,000,000 ordinary
shares of Sino Gas from Billirich at an exercise price of HK$0.5
per share on or before 14 March 2009.

On 29 August 2007, the Company entered into an agreement
with an independent third party to sell the entire share capital
of FEA Holdings Limited (“FEA"),
subsidiary of the Company, for a consideration of
HK$205,000,000. On completion, FEA will cease to be a
subsidiary of the Company. The details of this disposal have

a direct wholly-owned

been contained in the circular dated 16 November 2007. The
disposal was completed on 28 December 2007.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material
acquisitions or disposals during the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the significant contingent liabilities of the Group
are set out in note 43 to the financial statements.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2007, there were 281 (2006: 1,409)
employees in the Group. Staff remuneration packages are
determined in consideration of market conditions and the
performance of the individuals concerned, and are subject to
review from time to time. The Group also provides other staff
benefits including medical and life insurance, and grants
discretionary incentive bonuses and share options to eligible
staff based on their performance and contributions to the
Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fu Shula, aged 52, is the Chairman of the Company. He
is also the President of China National Aero-Technology Import
& Export Corporation (“CATIC"”) and a Director of Tacko
International Limited (“Tacko”). Both CATIC and Tacko are
substantial shareholders of the Company as listed under the
section of “Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” in the Report of
the Directors. He holds a Master’s Degree in Engineering with
specialization in aero-engine design and is a Professional Senior
Engineer. Mr. Fu was the Head of Marketing and International
Co-operation Division of China Aviation Industry Corporation
I and held senior positions in CATIC. He has served CATIC
since 1990 and has over 24 years of experience in technology,
marketing, economic business, operation and management.

Mr. Wang Xinkuo, aged 59, is a Deputy Chairman of the
Company. He is also a Vice President of CATIC and a Director
of Tacko. He holds a Postgraduate Diploma in Economic
Management and a Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering and is a
Senior Economist. Mr. Wang held senior positions in Xian
Aircraft Industry Company, CATIC Shenzhen Company and
CATIC Guangzhou Company. He has served CATIC since 2004
and has over 34 years of experience in technology, operation
and management.
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EENEEERECBE

Mr. Ji Guirong, aged 46, is a Deputy Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and is responsible for
the Group’s overall management and development of
corporate strategies in relation to mergers and acquisitions,
project investments and diversification activities. He is also
the Deputy Chief Economist of CATIC. He holds a Master’s
Degree in Engineering Management and a Bachelor’s Degree
in Engineering and is a Senior Engineer. Mr. Ji has served
CATIC since 1989 and has over 23 years of experience in
engineering, corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions and
project investments. He is a Director of CATIC Helicopter
Development (Shenzhen) Limited (“CATIC Helicopter
(Shenzhen)”) and a director and the Chairman of Hangzhou
Sealand Electric Power Company Limited (“Hangzhou
Sealand”), both of which are the principal subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Ji is also a Non-executive Director and the
Chairman of Sino Gas Group Limited, a company listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), and an Independent Director of China Spacesat
Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
He is also a Director of Speed Profit Enterprises Limited
("Speed Profit”) and Tacko. Speed Profit is also a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Ma Zhiping, aged 51, holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Material Science and Engineering and is a Professional Senior
Engineer. He is also a Vice President of CATIC. In 1988, Mr.
Ma was transferred to CATIC and had served as Associate
Director of the Science and Technology Division, Chief
Representative of CATIC in France and Manager of the
International Cooperation Division. He has worked in the
aviation industry for many years and has substantial experience
in the area of foreign trade and corporate management.
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Mr. Pan Linwu, aged 43, was appointed as Executive Director
of the Company with effect from 5 February 2008. He holds
a Master’s Degree in Aeronautical Engineering, a Bachelor’s
Degree in Engineering and a Postgraduate Diploma in Financial
Accounting and is a Professional Senior Accountant. Mr. Pan
had served at the Ministry of Aviation Industry and the audit
department of the Ministry of Aero-Space Industry. In 1993,
he was transferred to CATIC and had served as Deputy Director
and Director of the Audit Division. He has been appointed as
a Vice President and the Chief Financial Officer of CATIC
since 2001. He is also a Director of Tacko and an Independent
Director of Shenzhen Century Plaza Hotel Co., Ltd., a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Pan has many
years experience in financial management, supervision and
audit, and has substantial experience in the area of finance,
fund operation and risk management.

Mr. Diao Weicheng, aged 44, holds a PhD in Economics and
is a Senior Engineer. He is also a Vice President of CATIC and
a Director of Tacko. Mr. Diao held senior positions in major
corporations in Shenzhen as Vice President and Director and
has over 18 years of experience in corporate management.

Mr. Liu Rongchun, aged 54, holds a Master’s Degree in
Aeronautical Engineering and, a Bachelor’s Degree in
Aeronautical Engineering and Foreign Trading, and is a
Professional Senior Engineer. He is also a Vice President of
CATIC and a Director of Tacko. Mr. Liu has served CATIC
since 1986 and has over 32 years of experience in technology,
policy research, sales and marketing and corporate
management.

Mr. Zhang Chuanjun, aged 37, was appointed as Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 5 February 2008.
He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and is
responsible for the Group’s corporate finance, accounting and
treasury functions. He holds a Master’s Degree and a Bachelor’s
Degree in Management Accounting and is a Senior
Accountant. Mr. Zhang has served CATIC since 1993 and has
over 15 years of experience in accounting and finance. He is
also a Director of CATIC Helicopter (Shenzhen), Hangzhou
Sealand and Speed Profit.
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Mr. Ren Haifeng, aged 61, is a Senior Engineer in Professor
Rank, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Steel
Construction and the President of the Hong Kong Facade
Association. He has over 39 years of experience in engineering
technology and corporate management. Mr. Ren resigned as
Executive Director of the Company with effect from 5 February
2008.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond, aged 55, holds a Bachelor of
Arts Degree in Economics and a Master of Science Degree in
Business Administration. Mr. Ip is also Deputy Managing
Director of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited, Deputy Chairman
of Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited, an Executive
Director of CK Life Sciences Int’l., (Holdings) Inc., and a Non-
executive Director of TOM Group Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David, J° SBS, aged 64, received his Master
of Business Administration Degree from Harvard University
after Degrees in Electrical Engineering and Management at
Northeastern University and was awarded an honorary Doctor
of Public Service Degree from Northeastern University. Mr.
Chu is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of
Chuang’s China Investments Limited, Tidetime Sun (Group)
Limited and Jiuzhou Development Company Limited, all of
which are companies listed on the Stock Exchange. He worked
for a number of sizeable international corporations such as
Bank of America, General Electric Co. and Jardine Matheson
& Company Limited.
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Mr. Li Ka Fai, David, aged 53, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 24
December 2007. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Science Honours
Degree in Chemistry and Administration. He is the Deputy
Managing Partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., a part-time
instructor of School of Continuing and Professional Studies,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is also a Fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK as
well as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries & Administrators,
UK and an Associate Member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales. Mr. Li is currently an
Independent Non-executive Director of China Merchants
Holdings (International) Company Limited, China-Hongkong
Photo Products Holdings Limited and Cosmopolitan
International Holdings Limited, and was an Independent Non-
executive Director of Wanji Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
(now known as Nubrands Group Holdings Limited), all of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also an
Independent Director of China Vanke Company Limited, a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Li Zhaoxi, aged 60, holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration and is a Deputy Director and a Senior Research
Fellow of the Enterprise Research Institute of the Development
Research Center under the State Council of the People’s
Republic of China. Mr. Li has carried out research on corporate
reforms and management for over 23 years.

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, LLD, DSocSc., B.A., FCPA (Practising),
FCA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIS, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 54, is a Senior Partner
of Li, Tang, Chen & Co. and a member of The 11th National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. Dr. Li was a former member of the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong and a past President of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Dr. Li resigned
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 24 December 2007.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yang Hua, aged 38, is a Chief Operating Officer of the
Company and is responsible for the Group’s corporate
planning, mergers and acquisitions and project investments.
He holds a Master’s Degree in Engineering and a Bachelor’s
Degree in Industrial Engineering and is a Senior Economist.
Mr. Yang has served CATIC since 1994 and has over 17 years
of experience in engineering, corporate finance, mergers and
acquisitions and project investments. He is also a Director of
Hangzhou Sealand and Speed Profit.

Mr. Liu Binliao, aged 45, is a Chief Operating Officer of the
Company and is responsible for the Group’s corporate
planning, project development and import and export trading
business. He holds a Bachelor's Degree in Mechanical
Engineering and Automation at Tsinghua University and had
served at the Ministry of Aviation Industry. Mr. Liu has served
CATIC since 1992 and had served as Project Manager, Chief
Officer of the Imports Bureau and Chief Officer of the Trading
Section in Catic (H.K.) Limited, a substantial shareholder of
the Company. He has over 23 years of experience in technical
research, project management and international trade.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain good standards of
the corporate governance practices by emphasizing
transparency, accountability and responsibility to its
shareholders.

Throughout the year of 2007, the Company applied the
principles of, and complied with all the code provisions and,
where applicable, the recommended best practices of the
(the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing

“Code on Corporate Governance Practices”

of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Listing Rules”), except for all Non-executive Directors
are appointed without specific terms, which is mentioned
under section Non-executive Directors in this report.

The Company will periodically review and improve its corporate
governance practices with reference to the latest development
of corporate governance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by its
Directors. A reminder is served to each Director twice annually,
one month immediately preceding the relevant date of the
Board meeting for the approval of the Company’s half year
results and annual results, that the Director cannot deal in
the securities and derivatives of the Company until after such
results have been published.

Directors are required to notify the Chief Executive Officer
and receive a dated written acknowledgement before dealing
in the securities and derivative of the Company. In the case
of the Chief Executive Officer himself, he must notify the
Chairman and receive a dated written acknowledgement
before any dealing.

All the Directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

Corporate Governance Report
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The Company has also established a written guidelines for
securities transaction by relevant employees (include any
employee of the Company or a director or employee of a
subsidiary or holding company of the Company, who, because
of such office or employment, are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive information in relation to the
Company or its securities) on no less exacting terms than the
Model Code. No incident of non-compliance was noted by
the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a Board of Directors which has
the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company.
The Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs.

Currently, the Board comprises eight Executive Directors,
including the Chairman and two Deputy Chairmans, and four
Non-executive Directors, including three Independent Non-
executive Directors. With the exceptions of Mr. Li Kai Fai,
David joining the Board and Mr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric resigning
as Independent Non-executive Director respectively on 24
December 2007, and both of Mr. Pan Linwu and Mr. Zhang
Chuanjun joining the Board as Executive Directors and Mr.
Ren Haifeng resigning as Executive Director respectively on 5
February 2008, all other Directors served for the whole year
of 2007. The biographical details of the Directors are set out
on pages 11 to 16 of this annual report.

At each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.
The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last election but as between
persons who became Directors on the same day who to retire
shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be
determined by lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for
re-election. A new Director appointed by the Board (in the
case of filling a casual vacancy or an addition to the existing
Board) after the preceding annual general meeting is subject
to retirement and is then eligible for re-election at the first
general meeting after his appointment.
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The Company currently does not have a nomination
committee. The Board is directly in charge of nomination of
directors.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight
over the management. The Board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group's goals and directions with the prevailing economic
and market conditions. Daily operations and administration
are delegated to the management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
Company reviews the extent of this insurance each year.

All Directors have access to the services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on Governance
and regulatory matters. Any Director, in the furtherance of
his or her duties, may take independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstance through the Chairman at the
expense of the Company. The availability of professional advice
extends to the Audit and Remuneration Committees.

Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the Company
Secretary and, together with any supporting Board papers,
are available to all Board members. During the year under
review, eight full Board meetings were held by the Company.
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The attendance of individual directors at the Board meetings SEEROEFEALFEESggR LA
and other Committee meetings during the year under review HmEEEEHRNEHEIANTE

are set out in the table below:

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/BITEERE
Remuneration Audit
Full Board Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting
Director BEE TREEY FHEES EREEE
Executive Directors HITESE
Fu Shula & 8/8 3/3 -
Wang Xinkuo F 0O 7/8 - -
Ji Guirong ES g S 8/8 - -
Ma Zhiping BETF 6/8 - -
Diao Weicheng B 7/8 - -
Liu Rongchun EES 7/8 - -
Ren Haifeng (Eisa 3 8/8 - -
Non-executive Director FHNITEE
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond TR 8/8 - -
Independent Non-executive Directors — B IF#HTEF
Chu Yu Lin, David K4 B 8/8 3/3 2/2
Li Ka Cheung, Eric PR 7/8 2/2 2/2
(resigned on 24 December 2007) (FA2007F 12 A24H B E)
Li Ka Fai, David R E 0/0 1/1 0/0
(appointed on 24 December 2007) (FA20075 12 H24HEE L)

Li Zhaoxi IR ER 8/8 - 2/2



CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
Chairman is separate from that of the Chief Executive Officer.
The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are Mr. Fu Shula and Mr. Ji Guirong respectively.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its
role and for setting its agenda and taking into account any
matters proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the
agenda. Agendas and accompanying Board papers are
circulated where possible at least 3 days before the time of a
Board or committee meeting. The Chairman is also responsible
for making sure all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings. The Chief Executive Officer is
delegated with the authorities to manage the business of the
Group in all aspects effectively.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer has been clearly established and
set out in writing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skill and
experience to the Group. They serve the important function
of providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding
the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Board considers that three of the four Non-executive
Directors are independent in character and judgment and fulfill
the independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. All Non-executive Directors including Independent Non-
executive Directors are appointed without specific terms, but
are subject to retirement by rotation as explained above.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one
Executive Director, Mr. Fu Shula (as Chairman), and two
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Li Ka Fai,
David and Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee met three times during the
year under review to review and approve the remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management. The attendance
of each member is set out in the table above under section
Board of Directors.

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Company to retain
and motivate Executive Directors by linking their compensation
with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
Under the policy, a director is not allowed to approve his
own remuneration.

Details of the directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young are the auditors of the Company. The services
provided by them include audit and non-audit. Fees for
auditing (including interim review) and non-auditing services
amounting to HK$3,418,000 and HK$246,000 respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established
in compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. It
currently comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company, namely Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David (as Chairman),
Mr. Li Ka Fai, David and Mr. Li Zhaoxi. The Audit Committee
met two times during the year under review. The attendance
of each member is set out in the table above under section
Board of Directors.

Full minutes of meetings are kept and sent to all members of
the Board. Matters raised at the meetings were reported back
to the Board so that due consideration was given as to the
action to be taken.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements of each financial period, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the financial
statements, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting
policies and have applied them consistently, and adopted Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditors are responsible for forming an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those financial statements
and to report their opinion solely to the shareholders of the
Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness through
the Audit Committee. The Group’s system of internal control
plays a key role in the management of risks that are significant
to the fulfillment of its business objectives. Procedures have
been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, for maintaining proper accounting records;
and for the reliability of financial information used within the
business or for publication. The procedures provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material errors, losses or
fraud. Procedures have also been designed for compliance of
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

A review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control system covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions, was conducted at the end of 2007
solely by senior management of the Company. The result was
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. No material
deficiencies was identified. During the year under review, the
Board considered that the Company’s internal control system
was adequate and effective and the Company has complied
with the provisions on internal control of the CG Code. The
Board confirms that systems and procedures are in place to
identify, control and report on significant risks involved in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives. Exposures to
these risks are monitored by the Board with the support of
various committees and senior management.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure, comprehensive
and transparent reporting. Effective communication with
shareholders has always been one of the Company’s priorities.
Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through various formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

General meetings of the Company provide good opportunities
for direct communications between the Board and its
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board, all other Directors
and senior management endeavor to attend any general
meeting of the Company and answer queries from
shareholders. Separate resolution is proposed for each issue
by the Chairman of the meeting at each general meeting.
Notice of general meeting is served together with the circular
to the shareholders at least 21 days before an annual general
meeting and a meeting called for passing of a special
resolution, and, at least 14 days before a meeting other than
an annual general meeting or a meeting for the passing of a
special resolution. Details of poll voting procedures and the
rights of shareholders to demand a poll is included in the
circular to shareholders and is also be explained during the
general meeting.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended
31 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries during the year
comprise:

(i) the supply of electric and steam power in the Linping
industrial region of Hangzhou in the People’s Republic
of China through its 70%-owned subsidiary, Hangzhou
Sealand Electric Power Company Limited;

(i) the aero-technology related business, including the
share of profit from the development, manufacture and
distribution of helicopters; and also

(iii) the facade contracting works, including the design,
manufacture and installation of fabricated aluminium
and stainless steel products for buildings, such as
curtain wall and cladding systems, windows, doors,
skylights and other related products, which was
disposed during the year. Further details of the disposal
are included in notes 12 and 39 to the financial
statements. There were no other changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2007 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 37 to
188 of this annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2007.

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 « —EZ t £ F )

Report of the Directors

EEEHRS

EXEgRNERBE_TELF T A=
T—RALFREZEFTERERAARER
SEZRERBBEHRE -

TEREHK
ARTAEBHERERR -
AZEBEBEE

FREKEA

(i) BBHEBTO%E ZHERBMIN
BMAERRARETEARKM
([PEDMMEFITXEBEREE
N R RBEE

(i) MEBMHEBERL  BESIZFH
BHERDEETEZEN A
K

(i) KEIMNETIR BERT - "ER
THRANRKEZ R R T HMEE
M B ERREEERRR
HoP Rk EMEBRER -
ERFALE HEZ#E—THIE
BN HRERWMEI12K39 - AEE
CEBEBHERFRALELME

REARKRE

AREEHEEZ-_TTLtF+-_A=Z+—H1I1
FEZHFMEARRNGENEENZH 2B
BARRERN ARNFRFEITE188H 2 P53k
i% o

E=Zg UV MEARNBE_TTLF+ =
AZ+—BUEFEZEARES -



CATIC International Holdings Limited A B i 2= 4 #if B BR 12 AR 5 PR 2 &

Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 189 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the investment property and property,
plant and equipment of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial
statements, respectively. Further details of the Group’s
investment property are set out on page 190 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the year are set out in notes 36 and 37
to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’'s Bye-laws/Articles of Association or the laws of
Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 38(b) to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2007, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
amounted to HK$96,269,689. In addition, the Company’s
share premium account, in the amount of HK$194,444,479
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:
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2007 2006
—EEBLHF —EERF
% %

Percentage of purchases: HRBEAESO
From the largest supplier KEEAEER 8 5
From the five largest suppliers KERAREER 31 20

The percentages of the Group’s sales attributable to the
Group's major customers are as follows:

AEBTIZEFPMEASEZHERDLL
wmr

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETARF
% %

Percentage of sales: HEEB DL
From the largest customer KEEAEP 17 14
From the five largest customers KEREKREF 57 54

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest customers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Fu Shula
Wang Xinkuo
Ji Guirong
Ma Zhiping
Pan Linwu
(appointed on 5 February 2008)
Diao Weicheng
Liu Rongchun
Zhang Chuanjun
(appointed on 5 February 2008)
Ren Haifeng
(resigned on 5 February 2008)

Non-executive Directors:

Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond
Chu Yu Lin, David*
Li Ka Fai, David*
(appointed on 24 December 2007)
Li Zhaoxi*
Li Ka Cheung, Eric*
(resigned on 24 December 2007)

* Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, Messrs. Li Ka Fai,
David, Pan Linwu and Zhang Chuanjun, who were appointed
as directors subsequent to the preceding annual general
meeting, will hold office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting and will then be eligible to offer themselves for re-
election at the meeting. Furthermore, Messrs. Ma Zhiping,
Liu Rongchun, Chu Yu Lin, David, and Li Zhaoxi will retire by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Messrs. Chu Yu Lin, David, Li Ka Fai,
David, and Li Zhaoxi, and as at the date of this report still
considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 11 to
16 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors are not appointed for a specific term, but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director during the year had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its
holding companies and subsidiaries was a party during the
year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2007, the interest and short position of
the directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

Long position in share options of the Company:

bt
m

EEH

Name of director
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mRAR
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PARNE
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Number of options
directly beneficially owned

EREZBEE2BRERE

it
i

Ji Guirong =

20,000,000

Certain directors have non-beneficial personal equity interests
in certain subsidiaries held for the benefit of the Company
solely for the purpose of complying with the minimum
company membership requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, none of
the directors of the Company had registered an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above and in the
section “Share option scheme” below, at no time during the
year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any director
or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any
of its holding companies and subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates an employees’ share option scheme
(the "Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Further details of the Scheme are
disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options outstanding under the Scheme during the year:

Number of share options
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* The vesting period of the share options is from the date of * EhEsBEBEREDERLARERETT
grant until the commencement of the exercise period. REARRBA B A LE -

*x The exercise period shall not exceed a period of five years *x TEMREREEEMAEE R AR
commencing on the expiry of a period of not less than six AT EBBRF A% -
months after the date the option is accepted. *rx o EEREZITHEEARHR SR B AR S

**%  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment AR R AR AN B A E KR DL B B 4 HE
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes o

in the Company’s share capital.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND FEREREMALIRER®G
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES KREBRHG ZE=

AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2007, the following interests of 5% or RZEZELF+ZA=+—8 AR AHE

more of the issued share capital of the Company were BCBHERBERD)F336KTFE 2 Ea
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by Bt 2 N ARIS% A LB FHITRA

the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO: BEmmT
Long positions: ¥E
Percentage of
the Company’s
Number of issued share
ordinary capital
shares held ol NN
FEEBER 2 RITRAE
Name of shareholders R E B g =] PA=E
Speed Profit Enterprises FISH R AR A A
Limited (“Speed Profit”) (rehs511) 508,616,000 * 10.63
Tacko International Limited Tacko International Limited
("Tacko") (ITackol) 1,335,767,000 * 27.91
508,616,000 # 10.63
CATIC (H.K.) Limited hEMZERMEL O (FE)
("CATIC (H.K.)") BERAR (i (FE)]) 1,844,383,000 * 38.54
China National Aero-Technology B ZE B A D A8 A F]
Import & Export Corporation (M nall)
("CATIC") 1,844,383,000 # 38.54
China Aviation Industry PEMEIESE - SEQA
Corporation | ("AVIC 1) ([T 1,844,383,000 * 38.54
China Aviation Industry PEMEIESE _SEQA
Corporation Il (“AVIC 1I") (MM T) 1,844,383,000 * 38.54
Atlantis Investment Atlantis Investment
Management Ltd. Management Ltd. 434,000,000 * 9.07




* These shares were directly beneficially owned by these
shareholders.

# These shares were owned through controlled corporations.

Note: Speed Profit is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tacko, which is

in turn a wholly-owned subsidiary of CATIC (H.K.). CATIC
(H.K.) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CATIC, which is in
turn owned as to 50% by AVIC | and as to 50% by AVIC II.
Pursuant to the SFO, Tacko is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by Speed Profit; and each of CATIC (H.K.), CATIC,
AVIC | and AVIC Il is deemed to be interested in the aggregate
shares directly held by Speed Profit and Tacko.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, no person,
other than the directors of the Company whose interests are
set out in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and the Group had certain
connected and continuing connected transactions, details of
which are set out in note 44 to the financial statements and
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter
14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out in
note 44 to the financial statements and have confirmed that
these continuing connected transactions were entered into (i)
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii)
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to independent third parties;
and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of
the Company’s total issued share capital was held by the
public as at the date of this report.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the
Group are set out in note 47 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Fu Shula
Chairman

Hong Kong
23 April 2008

AREBEBRHEE
REARRELARGERSNENLEE
EA BEARESH  ARALTEDH
BARRRIDEITRABEL25% °

HERREE

ERASEEAEERRFTEZABAN
BTSRRI 547 -

% 4]
ZXERTEMBHEAEREE - MAKRT
ZERBEAREG LKBIRZ2RZREEZ
FHAM S 7% A 28 AN X ) Az BLAD -

=
=

REE=E

FE
¥ &

Bk
“EEN\FMA-+ZH



ANNUAL REPORT 2007 « —EZ t £ F )

|||“ |11
| Ell ERNST & YOUNG

7 ik

Ernst & Young

18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

Independent Auditors’ Report
BYZEHMBES

RAWEEFEHR
HFERIREAMESR
B &R 0281818

BEE: +852 2846 9888
{5E: +852 2868 4432

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CATIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of CATIC
International Holdings Limited set out on pages 37 to 188,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 December 2007 and of the Group's profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
23 April 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement vear ended 31 December 2007

HENNBR snz-szt5+-A=+-816E

2007 2006
“EELE “ETREF
Notes HKS$ HKS$
Mt BT BT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FEREXH
REVENUE Uy &5 5 195,087,660 172,045,118
Cost of sales i & PR (163,678,387) (146,358,446)
Gross profit EA 31,409,273 25,686,672
Other income and gains H U A K F 8 5 19,046,666 11,791,976
Administrative expenses THREBRER (26,393,313) (23,556,775)
Other operating income/(expenses), net Hit@&F8,/ (Ax%) 38 6 (1,813,124) 1,956,949
Finance costs B R % 7 (6,384,095) (5,114,777)
Surplus on revaluation of an investment RENFESEHALR
property 14 9,300,000 -
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of items ME BENREEBER
of property, plant and equipment B/ (BB) 15 2,972,406 (8,444,086)
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate BRALERE DA
Z B 19 32,919,641 22,030,133
Gain on disposal of an associate S B A 5] 2 F 19 4,395,983 -
Share of profits and losses of associates DEBENT 2 BRE 13,149,401 (22,170,693)
Impairment of a financial asset under EC120H B v B & E R
Project EC120 20 (14,000,000) (4,800,000)
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale HE A HERRE 2T
investment 21(b) 26,597,032 -
Fair value gain/(loss) on equity investments ERBEREATEIEN
at fair value through profit or loss and BRARERITESBMIA
derivative financial instruments ZRFEFE,/ (F#B) (33,445,660) 37,796,956
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B A& 6 57,754,210 35,176,355
Tax WA 10 (4,594,170) (2,452,654)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM RESEEB 2 RFHA
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 53,160,040 32,723,701
DISCONTINUED OPERATION ERILEREXRK
Profit for the year from a discontinued BRIEREER 2 RERT
operation 12 30,342,199 18,379,414
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KERF 83,502,239 51,103,115
Attributable to: e &R
Equity holders of the parent NEERRFAA 11 77,996,196 47,949,807
Minority interests SERE 5,506,043 3,153,308
83,502,239 51,103,115
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FERNER sz-sstst-p=t+-ALFE
2007 2006
“EEtE ZEERF
Note HKS HK$
i &% B BT
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE RABERERFEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EhEEREN
OF THE PARENT 13
Basic BN
~ For profit for the year — RE HK1.73 cents Bfli  HK1.22 cents 1l
— For profit from continuing operations - REEEEERT HK1.05 cents &l HK0.75 cent 7 1ll
Diluted BE
— For profit for the year — R E ) A HK1.72 cents &l N/AT i
- For profit from continuing operations ~RBELEER 2 ET HK1.04 cents &1l N/A 32 F
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 31 pbecember 2007

%é‘ﬁgﬁ%% —EEtF+=HA=+—H

2007 2006
ZEBELHF —ETREF
Notes HK$ HK$
Kt &t BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment property wEME 14 24,200,000 14,900,000
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BE MG 15 202,735,517 194,482,989
Prepaid land lease payments A L E R 16 28,215,916 28,578,881
Goodwill kS 17 38,116,502 38,116,502
Interests in associates BN R 19 21,205,240 48,135,686
Financial asset under Project EC120 EC120IH B 2 M & & 20 11,959,462 25,959,462
Available-for-sale investments Al HENKRE 21 115,720,980 91,102,100
Deferred tax assets RIEFIRE E 22 - 3,700,000
Deposit for acquisition of IWERENZE S
an investment 23 20,029,325 -
Rental and utility deposits MERAREERS 92,536 2,255,113
Pledged time deposits BEHE I E TR 30 - 9,360,000
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 462,275,478 456,590,733
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 24 17,399,830 15,623,659
Amounts due from contract customers & #&F XA 25 - 70,550,508
Trade and retention receivables EREZERMREE 26 22,837,580 251,727,962
Prepayments, deposits and other ERRIE - Re REM
receivables JE U2 BR X 27 62,461,447 58,253,066
Equity investment at fair value through & B E R A FEFIE
profit or loss ") R AN 38 & 28 54,189,450 79,887,500
Derivative financial instrument PTESBTA 29 638,365 -
Pledged time deposits EEAEHEFER 30 36,327,623 64,045,974
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFE 30 508,074,602 112,092,141
Total current assets mEEERE 701,928,897 652,180,810
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MEEEBEBR —z2tst-A=+-8

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
Notes HK$ HK$
K aF ET BT
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Due to a minority shareholder FE 15 D 81 I% SR BR FX 44(b) 5,740,106 =
Amounts due to contract customers REHNE P FIAE 25 - 113,568,100
Trade and bills payables BNEZEREEE 37 80,758,195 109,568,693
Tax payable &1~ B 18 2,312,557 2,552,579
Warranty provision R38R E 32 - 10,301,487
Other payables and accruals EMENFIERETER 33 17,424,539 75,577,926
Derivative financial instrument PTESRITE 29 2,209,425 =
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER 34 96,017,131 167,613,883
Finance lease payables Bh & & T R 35 57,841 222,456
Total current liabilities mEaEEE 204,519,794 479,405,124
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 497,409,103 172,775,686
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHBRARDARS
LIABILITIES 959,684,581 629,366,419
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE 22 3,721,118 4,511,909
Finance lease payables #1570 & e I8 35 - 57,841
Total non-current liabilities EmBBERE 3,721,118 4,569,750
Net assets BEFE 955,963,463 624,796,669
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity AR EBRERAEN
holders of the parent =
Issued capital BEBITIRA 36 478,530,300 398,530,300
Reserves &k 1 38(a) 444,387,297 193,193,771
922,917,597 591,724,071
Minority interests DERRE R 33,045,866 33,072,598
Total equity A E 955,963,463 624,796,669
Ji Guirong Zhang Chuanjun
B REE
Director Director
- BF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity vear ended 31 December 2007
REERBER az—sstet-A=t-ALEE

Attributable to equity holders of the parent
NERRREARGER
Property,  Available-
plant and for-sale

Share  equipment investment Exchange
Issued ~ premium revaluation revaluation Reserve fluctuation  Retained Minority Total
capital account reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
VES aft
BEARE  HERE EX SHBR
BRTRE ROEER EREE  ERERE fEE  RBEE  EmEd &it B  RHAE
Notes HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
i3 BT BT AT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
(note 38(a))
(H2£38(a)
At 1 January 2006 RZZExE-f-B 374,148,100 1,972,500 320,300 - 4,600,788 4278952 86,529,892 471,850,532 34,071,075 505,921,607
Exchange realignment EXAE - - - - - 5,959,708 - 5,959,708 - 5,959,708
Change in fair value of AHRHENREL
available-for-sale investments : 21 - - - 37,184,956 - - - 37,184,956 - 37,184,956
Surplus on revaluation 15 - - 1,452,489 - - - - 1,452,489 - 1,452,489
Total income and expense for ~ ERNEZEDZ
the year recognised directly RERARRZEE
in equity - - 1,452,489 37,184,956 - 5959,708 - 44,597,153 - 44597153
Profit for the year REEH - - - - - - 47949807 47949807 3,153,308 51,103,115
Total income and expense for ~ AERARFEZLE
the year - - 1452489 37,184,956 - 5959708 47,949,807 92,546,960 3,153,308 95,700,268
Transfer to reserve fund BREREES - - - - 1,251,808 - (1,251,808) - - -
Issue of shares ¥k 36 26,850,000 4,027,500 - - - - - 30,877,500 - 30,877,500
Share issue expenses EhER 36 - (1,148,490) - - - - - (1,148,490) - (1,148,490)
Repurchase of shares BE KRG 36 (2,467,800) 65,369 - - - - - (2402,431) - (2402,831)
Dividend to a minority R¥LERERS
shareholder - - - - - - - - (4,151,785 (4,151,785)
At 31 December 2006 RZZERE
+-A=+-H 398,530,300  4,916,879*  1,772,789* 37,184,956*  5,852,596* 10,238,660* 133,227,891* 591,724,071 33,072,598 624,796,669
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity vear ended 31 December 2007
MEERBER sz-sstrt-A=t-RLEE

Attributable to equity holders of the parent
ARREREARLER
Property, ~ Available-
plant and for-sale

Share Share  equipment  investment Exchange
Issued ~ premium option revaluation revaluation  Reserve fluctuation  Retained Minority Total
capital ~ account reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
VES aft
HEARE HERE EX SHRR
BRARE ROEERE BRERE EHEE EREE fEe XBEE gl ait BE REEE
Notes HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS
i3 BT AT BT AT AT BT BT BT BT AT BT
(note 38())
(Hiz38(a)
At 1 January 2007 398,530,300 4,916,879 - 177,789 3718495 585,596 10,238,660 133,227,891 591,724,071 33,072,598 624,796,669
Exchange realignment EXAE - - - - - - 13,015,951 - 13,015,951 - 13,015,951
Change in fair value of AftEnEE2
avallable-for-sale investments AYERD 2 - - - - (32,480,741) - - - (30.480,741) - (32480741)
Surplus on revaluation EfiBR 15 - - - 3134520 - - - - 313450 - 313450
Total income and expense for HERERERL
the year recognised KERARAR
directly in equity a8 = = - 3,134,520 (32,480,741) - 13,015,951 - (16,330,270) - (16,330,270)
Profit for the year AEREH = = - - - - - 719%,1% 7799619 5506043 83,502,239
Total income and expense for FERARAZEE
the year - - - 3134520 (32,480,741) - 13015951 77,9919 61665926 5,506,043 67,171,969
Transfer to reserve fund EREY £ - - - - - 1,086,742 - (1,086,742) - - -
Issue of shares and share options &1 ks RiE 363 72,000,000 155,060,084 17,739,916 - - - - - 244,800,000 - 244,800,000
Share issue expenses ¥RER 36(a) - (2472400 - - - - - - (2472400 - (2472400
Issue of shares upon exercise ROFERERS
of share options i3 36(b) 8,000,000 19,200,000 = = = = = - 27,200,000 - 27,200,000
Transfer of reserve upon exercise ~ R{TEERESE
of share options ] 36(b) - 17,739916 (17,739,916) - - - - - - - -
Disposal of subsidiares HEHBAT - - - - UBN0) (12134 (098000 3583134 = = =
Dividend payable toa mnority 4P HHBEERS
shareholder - - - - - - - - - (5532,775)  (5,532,775)
At 31 December 2007 WZE%tE
tZR=1-H 478,530,300 194,444 479* =% 4907,309%  4,231215%  6,927,204* 20,156,611% 213,720,479* 922,917,597 33,045,866 955,963,463
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of ~— * hEFERBASKEEEERRRAZ
HK$444,387,297 (2006: HK$193,193,771) in the consolidated IR 444,387,297 BT (ZTT AT ¢

balance sheet. 193,193,771 70) °
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement vear ended 31 December 2007

HEHRERER sz-22t5+-A=+—-ALEE

2007 2006
—EZEHF —EERF
Notes HK$ HK$
Kt at BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: B 2% Al g A
From continuing operations BERFELEER 57,754,210 35,176,355
From a discontinued operation BEERIEREER 12 31,796,055 20,478,151
Adjustments for: FEEESE
Finance costs Hﬂkﬁﬁ X 7 6,390,582 5,366,089
Share of profits and losses of pal ) /N D=
associates (13,149,401) 22,170,693
Bank interest income |RITH B A 5 (11,709,055) (4,698,622)
Interest income on a convertible bond FAI#EH 2 A BWA 5 (244,899) -
Gain on disposal of an associate i & B = A | 2 ) E (4,395,983) -
Gain on deemed disposal of ERAHEHMERR
an associate Z A (32,919,641) (22,030,133)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBAR ZFE 39 (5,579,462) -
Loss on disposal of items of property, HE&¥W*E - BEM
plant and equipment RIEHEE 2B 6 916,523 -
Depreciation, net of amounts E  BENREBE
capitalised to long term REEESNER
construction contracts Z A 6 15,740,282 13,613,312
Surplus on revaluation of KEYFEHBER
an investment property 14 (9,300,000) =
Deficit/(surplus) on revaluation of RFBERME,
items of property, plant and (BT A) 2%
equipment charged/(credited) R 5 A 5% 5 18 B
to the income statement BHER/ (BER) 15 (2,972,406) 8,444,086
Gain on disposal of an HEMMHEENKRE
available-for-sale investment 2 K (26,597,032) =
Fair value loss/(gain) on an equity FEBEREATE
investment at fair value through PIERRAIEE K&
profit or loss and derivative ?ﬁi@%ﬁlﬂz
financial instruments ANEEERE(FH) 33,445,660 (37,796,956)
Recognition of prepaid land lease R L E X%
payments 6 959,990 957,163
Write-back of provision JE%ZT%EE & E
for impairment of trade and OB R B F R
retention receivables, net 6 (426,965) (1,015,791)
Write-off/(recovery) sy, (Wem)
of an other receivable H b & Y2 BR 3K 6 327,000 (1,956,949)
Impairment of available-for-sale AHEENRE 2
investments A 6 - 580,000
Impairment of a financial asset EC120IH B 2 81 7%
under Project EC120 BERE 20 14,000,000 4,800,000
Provision for financial gurantee B ERE QOEE
contracts 6 1,498,929 -
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HERESREBER sz ts+-A=+—ALEE

2007 2006
—EELE ZETRHF
Notes HK$ HK$
Mt &t B AT
55,534,387 44,087,398
Increase in rental and utility deposits ~ & & AR EEiL S
¥ 0 (50,606) (1,054,773)
Increase in receivable in respect of 8 R AL H HE 2 I AR TR
an exclusive distributorship #n - (1,560,005)
Increase in inventories FE N (2,278,642) (4,018,294)
Movement in amounts due from/to BREPRR/ REH
contract customers BEFREEH 26,644,080 20,179,130
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B E 5 R RARE &
retention receivables () R 1,629,240 (35,953,012)
Increase in prepayments, AR - e REAM
deposits and other receivables JE L BR 5K 38 AN (18,939,132) (14,641,551)
Increase in trade and bills payables FERE SRR R EEIE M 52,954,248 11,121,503
Increase in warranty provision R B R ABIE 1,171,843 71,363
Increase/(decrease) in other payables — H b i 1~ BR 3¢ & f&E 51
and accruals BRI CRD) (894,464) 11,330,085
Cash generated from operations CEEAZIRS® 115,770,954 29,561,844
Interest paid EEEES) 7 (8,043,200) (9,117,505)
Interest element on a finance lease MEMRE 2 EEH 7 (11,352) (24,951)
Overseas tax paid 28N IE (8,373,362) (5,963,640)
Net cash inflow from operating KETEE 2R MAFRE
activities 99,343,040 14,455,748
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement vear ended 31 December 2007

HEHRERER sz-22t5+-A=+—-ALEE

2007 2006
ZEBELHF —TTREF
Notes HK$ HK$
Kt i BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETH2HERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, AV - REMEE
plant and equipment I8 B 15 (66,604,142) (39,405,544)
Receipt in respect of an exclusive 18 R A% 35 #E W B FROA
distributorship - 39,780,000
Increase in prepaid land lease payments J& 1 + ith FH & ZX 4% fn 16 (955,613) =
Deposit for acquisition of R EN RS
an investment 23 (20,029,325) -
Purchase of an additional equity BB A\ B2 R Al RRAME
interest in an associate (4,253,955) -
Purchases of available-for-sale BATHEENEE
investments (18,688,513) (2,340,000)
Purchase of an equity investment BABZBEREATFEY
at fair value through profit or loss BERHRAEE (16,847,936) -
Purchase of a derivative financial BATEEMTIA
instrument 21(c) (1,313,605) -
Acquisition of an associate U B B = | - (18,828,724)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate &% A & Fi13 A 19 8,565,310 -
Proceeds from disposal of HERHEENKRE
available-for-sale investments FT 15 FX 18 44,114,514 11,702,100
Proceeds from disposal of equity HEEREEEATE
investments at fair value through FIME B IR A% & AT 1S
profit or loss, net of issue expenses HIE - BEHNRERER 6,632,117 =
Proceeds from issue of a derivative BITESRIAMSG
financial instrument FRIE 5,352,874 =
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEMZE  BEMZE
property, plant and equipment 18 B Fr 13 5k 18 1,272,032 -
Disposal of subsidiaries it & KB A A 39 112,785,775 =
Dividend from an associate REBERARANRKE 5,629,526 =
Interest received =R N 11,709,055 4,698,622
Interest received on a convertible bond B Y AT # f% (& 5 5| & 244,899 =
Increase in pledged time deposits 2 K 48 F 2377 ZUE N (11,251,049) (18,594,353)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BEEBZHERAS
investing activities () F 88 56,361,964 (22,987,899)
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HERESREBER sz ts+-A=+—ALEE

2007 2006
—EELE ZETRHF
Notes HK$ HK$
Mt &t B AT

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHHRERE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares, BITRG S EIE -

net of share issue expenses EHkRERER 36 242,327,600 29,729,010
Proceeds from issue of shares upon LATIE BB AR AT AR (D

exercise of share options BT 18 3K 38 36 27,200,000 -
Repurchase of shares 8 O f% 1 - (2,402,431)
New bank loans IRITE R 106,723,769 120,137,749
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (135,230,920) (118,557,692)
Increase in import loans # OB 5N - 9,691,778
Capital element of finance lease BEHEHE AR

rental payments &1 (222,456) (208,857)
Dividend to a minority shareholder BT LERRERE - (4,151,785)
Advance from a minority shareholder  2& B 2> 8% 5 24 3¢ 207,331 =
Net cash inflow from financing BEEB RSN

activities et 241,005,324 34,237,772
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBELEEEM

CASH EQUIVALENTS FEE 396,710,328 25,705,621
Cash and cash equivalents FeRekBeEE

at beginning of year 112,092,141 85,266,784
Effect of foreign exchange b = B ) 2 B F R

rate changes, net (727,867) 1,119,736
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZRERAETEE

AT END OF YEAR 508,074,602 112,092,141
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH B2 RESZEHBE

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHEF 30 52,119,022 76,884,259
Non-pledged time deposits with ISR RAEE R

original maturity of less than TE=EAZ

three months when acquired =45 1 E HifE K 30 455,955,580 35,207,882

508,074,602 112,092,141




Balance Sheet 31 pecember 2007

BEESBEBR —ssts5+-p=1--8

2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
Notes HK$ HK$
B &t AT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Investment property KEMEE 14 24,200,000 14,900,000
Property, plant and equipment Y - RE MR AE 15 12,451,580 13,042,851
Interests in subsidiaries P =NGTE E 18 299,402,045 354,706,866
Total non-current assets ERHEELE 336,053,625 382,649,717
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and ERFRIE ek
other receivables H th & U BR 3K 27 1,335,925 4,062,024
Cash and cash equivalents HekBeEE 30 455,907,458 41,464,405
Total current assets MEEERE 457,243,383 45,526,429
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Accruals st & A 33 4,052,540 1,230,807
Interest-bearing bank borrowings S ERITEXK 34 20,000,000 20,000,000
Total current liabilities BB ERE 24,052,540 21,230,807
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 433,190,843 24,295,622
Net assets BEFE 769,244,468 406,945,339
EQUITY R
Issued capital BEITRA 36 478,530,300 398,530,300
Reserves F] 38(b) 290,714,168 8,415,039
Total equity s EE 769,244,468 406,945,339
Ji Guirong Zhang Chuanjun
=4 REE
Director Director
- BEFE
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BB RMET —szts+-a=+-n5

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 1. AAEH
CATIC International Holdings Limited is a limited liability PR ZERMTEEZERER AR A
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office —EARBEBREEFMK I ZERA
of the Company is located at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria A o AR Az M= & Canon's
Street, Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda. Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton,

HM 12, Bermuda °

During the year, the Group was involved in the FA - AEEBZFEXBBRIE :
following activities:

0) the facade contracting works, including the (i) KESME TR BFER
design, manufacture and installation of BERTERARNKE 2 A8
fabricated aluminium and stainless steel products RAFHER  WEBERE
for buildings, such as curtain wall and cladding R fBERES - & > -
systems, windows, doors, skylights and other R R B fth B B EE an

related products;

(i) the supply of electric and steam power; and (iy FEhORFEAHEE: &

(iii)  the aero-technology related business, including (i) MEFWHEBES  B8ED
the share of profit from the development, ZTHE RERDIHEETE
manufacture and distribution of helicopters. A e

During the year, the Group disposed of and FR - AKREHERKIEAXRESN

discontinued its facade contracting works business, i LIRER - BB RT KR

further details of which are included in note 12 to the =MEE12 0

financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, China National Aero- EXZgRREPEARKEME ([H
Technology Import & Export Corporation (“CATIC"), a B 1) & B 22 BT P AR R A
state-owned enterprise in the People’s Republic of (MM A AT BARRA R Z &K
China (the “PRC"), is the Company’s ultimate holding AR o Z AR AP BEEEREE
company, which is owned as to 50% by China Aviation BECHBMETEE —SERAR
Industry Corporation | and 50% by China Aviation REMZETIEE _SBERE S 5%
Industry Corporation Il, both of which are directly under B50% °

the regulation of the State Council of the PRC.
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2.1

Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2007

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment property, certain plant and
equipment, equity investments and derivative financial
instruments, which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2007. Adjustments are made to
bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that
may exist. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which
the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All significant intercompany transactions and balances
within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and
net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

2.1 IRBIEE
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MBEHREABTE2 (FRIESHH
) e

ReEX%E

REMBHRREEARARENE
RE(RBAKEDBE_ZFTZTL
FT+_A=+t—RIEFEZUBR
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2.2

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements. Except for in certain cases, giving rise to

new and revised accounting policies and additional

disclosures, the adoption of these new and revised

standards and interpretations has had no material effect

on these financial statements.

HKFRS 7

HKAS 1 Amendment{& 2] 7
HK(IFRIC)-Int 8
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
HK(IFRIC)-Int 10

Capital Disclosures
Scope of HKFRS 2

Interim Financial Reporting
and Impairment

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised

HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

(b)

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

This standard requires disclosures that enable
users of the financial statements to evaluate the
significance of the Group’s financial instruments
and the nature and extent of risks arising from
those financial instruments. The new disclosures
are included throughout the financial
statements. While there has been no effect on
the financial position or results of operations of
the Group, comparative information has been

included/revised where appropriate.

Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Capital Disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make
disclosures that enable users of the financial
statements to evaluate the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for managing capital.
These new disclosures are shown in note 46 to
the financial statements.

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

2.2

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HARKEIERT 2B RM
BREEN 2 &

AEBRAFEHBRERTER
FRA LA T # T A AL AE ETHKFRS © B
ETERT e e st 28 3iE
REE AR IS RN - R
R ET M A S 7T B9 28 BI AN 22 12
REMBRREEEATE -

PRTA  HEFHR
BEXRBEEFE
HKFRS 2 £ # [
BERERANNETLA
o B BY 75 5 R % R (E

R 40 Ut 55 37 5T JR 48 6 3T HKFRS ) &
¥

ZZEWMT

(a) HKFRS7 £@TH : #E
9]

HERREELE THE
FEHBHBERRBREFEASE
BemTANEZNE UK
ZEEeMIAEMELNER
MERIEE - FIREFER
MBREAE - BEER
RN LR e e

REXBYETE  BHEE
BEAT @8I BT

BEH -

(b)  HKAS 1 87T 7= 1 % #% % #Y
E2HEEF -EXHEEE
REFTREARAEE(EHE T
BE - EHBREARET
HAEEEHEAEEMNE
B R REE o ZFHEE
PO 7S B 75 S 2k B 5 460 At
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2.2

Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2007

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(c)

(d)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

This interpretation requires HKFRS 2 to be
applied to any arrangement in which the Group
cannot identify specifically some or all of the
goods or services received, for which equity
instruments are granted or liabilities (based on
a value of the Group’s equity instruments) are
incurred by the Group for a consideration, and
which appears to be less than the fair value of
the equity instruments granted or liabilities
incurred. As the Company has only issued equity
instruments to its employees in accordance with
the Company’s share option scheme, the
interpretation has had no effect on these
financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

This interpretation requires that the date to
assess whether an embedded derivative is
required to be separated from the host contract
and accounted for as a derivative is the date
that the Group first becomes a party to the
contract, with reassessment only if there is a
change to the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows. As the Group’s existing policy of
accounting for derivatives complies with the
the
interpretation has had no effect on these

requirements of the interpretation,

financial statements.

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

22 HMEAIREBIT 2EREM
BHREENZEE (B)

(c)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 HKFRS 2
i 8

AREBHATEMAEER—IE
2 PE R A a8 B K 28 s P
BERBMERKRY - &
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BEENE) ERRE Mz
RELUTF SER TR LHRAR
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2.2

2.3

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(e)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting
and Impairment

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of
1 January 2007, which requires that an
impairment loss recognised in a previous interim
period in respect of goodwill or an investment
in either an equity instrument classified as
available-for-sale or a financial asset carried at
cost is not subsequently reversed. As the Group
had no impairment losses previously reversed in
respect of such assets, the interpretation has
had no impact on the financial position or results
of operations of the Group.

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

HKAS 1 (Revised) (%
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKFRS 2 Amendments {& £] 7%
HKFRS 3 (Revised) (& {&3T)
HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

<f

i

— —
—

Borrowing Costs'
Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements®
Share-based Payments'
Business Combinations®

Operating Segments’

Y

W
\\ﬂ’ \\ﬂ’ ik
ok ok —1

r\,\
FE
—

= S

i

Share Transactions?

HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury

2.2 %ﬁ%‘T&,@ﬂk‘ﬂZE% Bt

2.3

Presentation of Financial Statements’

Service Concession Arrangements*

% 8

(e)

=]
& it

REE
B R W
CHIP4

SRR (B)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 & £ 81 %
A 3R K% ol 1B

AEBEH-_ZEZELF—A
—BRBERAARZEE - NZE
BE RBEFREHSEERE

B HEANHEENRKRAN
Iﬂi%ﬁ)@ﬂ‘ﬁ”ﬂﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
ENKRERRNBRERET
ERAEZRED - ARAKHE
WESLRI B % S B E R B/
BEBE  HZ2EHAS
B 5 B A AR sk A A

4 2240 o

BEEHARERZE
BRERN 2 E

W ERANHAEHRREAAT
18 1 R A R 2 AE fAT T /T SR 4%
HKFRS °

BEBEHLZ 25
EERL

= A
A

R 7 2 58 7% 8 %5

RS
EBAO

Z<T< ww

/‘\ %Ew

I-/KFRSZ EEREGRGER S

RE AL

5P

Vi

Customer Loyalty Programmes?

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction*

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19— REREFIZEH R & -

RIEE S TR IHEBFEFE

R-ZEZENF—HA—HH 2’

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 L

January 2009 18 HY 6 E HA R AR 3

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 RZZZ+F=A—Hzz2&H
March 2007 18 B F E HA R A R

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 e RZZZNFLA—Hz2&H
July 2008 ﬁAEﬁfFrHHFEJExK

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 —EENF—A—Hzxz2%ERA
January 2008 ﬁAEﬁfﬁrHHFEJExK

: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 5 RZZZNFLA—Hz 2R
July 2009 ﬁAE’JfFE,HﬂF'EJE)&
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Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2007

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The revised HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The
statement of changes in equity will include only details
of transactions with owners, with all non-owner
changes in equity presented as a single line. In addition,
the standard introduces the statement of
comprehensive income: it presents all items of income
and expenses recognised in profit or loss, together
with all other items of recognised income and expenses,
either in one single statement, or in two linked
statements. The Group is still evaluating whether it
will have one or two statements.

HKAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation of
borrowing costs when such costs are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset. As the Group’s current
policy for borrowing costs aligns with the requirements
of the revised standard, the revised standard is unlikely
to have any financial impact on the Group.

The revised HKAS 27 requires that a change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary is accounted for as
an equity transaction. Therefore, such a change will
have no impact on goodwill, nor will it give rise to a
gain or loss. Furthermore, the amended standard
changes the accounting for losses incurred by the
subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary.
The changes introduced by the revised HKAS 27 must
be applied prospectively and will affect future
acquisitions and transactions with minority interests.

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7
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2.3

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 2 restrict the definition of
“vesting condition” to a condition that includes an
explicit or implicit requirement to provide services. Any
other conditions are non-vesting conditions, which have
to be taken into account to determine the fair value
of the equity instruments granted. In the case that the
award does not vest as the result of a failure to meet
a non-vesting condition that is within the control of
either the entity or the counterparty, this must be
accounted for as a cancellation. The Group has not
entered into share-based payment schemes with non-
vesting conditions attached and, therefore, does not
expect significant implications on its accounting for
share-based payments.

HKFRS 3 introduces a number of changes in the
accounting for business combinations that will impact
the amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results
in the period that an acquisition occurs, and future
reported results. The changes introduced by the revised
HKFRS 3 must be applied prospectively and will affect
future acquisitions and transactions with minority
interests.

HKFRS 8, which will replace HKAS 14 Segment
Reporting, specifies how an entity should report
information about its operating segments, based on
information about the components of the entity that
is available to the chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of allocating resources to the segments
and assessing their performance. The standard also
requires the disclosure of information about the
products and services provided by the segments, the
geographical areas in which the Group operates, and
revenue from the Group’s major customers. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 8 from 1 January 2009.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 requires arrangements whereby an
employee is granted rights to the Group’s equity
instruments, to be accounted for as an equity-settled
scheme, even if the Group acquires the instruments
from another party, or the shareholders provide the
equity instruments needed. HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 also
addresses the accounting for share-based payment
transactions involving two or more entities within the
Group. As the Group currently has no such transactions,
the interpretation is unlikely to have any financial
impact on the Group.

23 EEBEHARERZE
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Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2007

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 requires an operator under public-to-
private service concession arrangements to recognise
the consideration received or receivable in exchange
for the construction services as a financial asset and/or
an intangible asset, based on the terms of the
contractual arrangements. HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 also
addresses how an operator shall apply existing HKFRSs
to account for the obligations and the rights arising
from service concession arrangements by which a
government or a public sector entity grants a contract
for the construction of infrastructure used to provide
public services and/or for the supply of public services.
As the Group currently has no such arrangements, the
interpretation is unlikely to have any financial impact
on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires that loyalty award credits
granted to customers as part of a sales transaction are
accounted for as a separate component of the sales
transaction. The consideration received in the sales
transaction is allocated between the loyalty award
credits and the other components of the sale. The
amount allocated to the loyalty award credits is
determined by reference to their fair value and is
deferred until the awards are redeemed or the liability
is otherwise extinguished.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the limit under
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits, on the amount of a refund
or a reduction in future contributions in relation to a
defined benefit scheme that can be recognised as an
asset, in particular, when a minimum funding
requirement exists.

As the Group currently has no customer loyalty award
credits and defined benefit scheme, HK(IFRIC)-Int 13
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 are not applicable to the Group
and therefore are unlikely to have any financial impact
on the Group.

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESHBRERE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, including an unincorporated
entity such as a partnership, not being a subsidiary or
a jointly-controlled entity, over which the Group has
significant influence.

The Group's interests in associates are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results and reserves of associates is included
in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates, which was not previously
eliminated or recognised in the consolidated reserves,
is included as part of the Group's interests in associates.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
associates represents the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed as at the date of acquisition.
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Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2007

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement
date is on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset, initially
measured at cost and subsequently at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. In the case of
associates, goodwill is included in the carrying amount
thereof, rather than as a separately identified asset on

the consolidated balance sheet.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed

in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included
in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the
operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is
measured based on the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

2.4
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTHEME (&£

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated
retained profits

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of
Standard Accounting Practice 30 Business Combinations
(“SSAP 30") in 2001, goodwill arising on acquisition
was eliminated against consolidated retained profits in
the year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3,
such goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated
retained profits and is not recognised in the income
statement when all or part of the business to which
the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes
impaired.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, construction contract assets, deferred
tax assets, financial assets, investment property and
goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTHEME (&£

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to
whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the Group;
(ii) has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has
joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group, or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTHEME (&£

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than an
investment property and construction in progress, are
stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items
of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant
and equipment and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the property, plant and equipment
revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income
statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to the income statement to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the
asset revaluation reserve to retained profits is made
for the difference between the depreciation based on
the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred
to retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTHEME (&£

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives used
for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings Over the lease terms

Leasehold improvements 4 years
Plant and machinery 5 years
Generation plant and related

structure 15 years
Furniture, fixtures and

equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Tools and moulds 4 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTHEME (&£

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment which are in their acquisition phase and is
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. The acquisition phase of an asset includes
the period when the asset is under construction,
installation and testing. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction together with borrowing costs incurred
during the asset acquisition period that theoretically
could have been avoided if expenditure for the asset
had not been made. The capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all of the activities
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are
completed. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when it is completed and ready for use,
notwithstanding any delays in the issue of the relevant
commissioning certificates by the relevant authorities.

Investment property

Investment property is an interest in land and building
held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such property is measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
investment property is stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the investment property are included in the income
statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased
asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum
lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases are included in property, plant
and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of
the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to
the income statement so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, and available-for-sale financial
assets, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction

costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an
embedded derivative when the Group first becomes a
party to it and assesses whether an embedded
derivative is required to be separated from the host
contract when the analysis shows that the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative
are not closely related to those of the host contract.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows that would otherwise be required under
the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the balance
sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHHEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include the financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
these investments are recognised in the income
statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the income statement does not include any dividends
on these financial assets, which are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
Recognition” below.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (ii) the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the
financial asset contains an embedded derivative that
would need to be separately recorded.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
guoted in an active market. Such assets are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the loans
and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well
as through the amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted securities,
contractual right and financial assets under Project
EC120 as set out in notes 20 and 21 to the financial
statements, that are designated as available-for-sale or
are not classified in any of the other two categories.
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value, with gains or losses
recognised as a separate component of equity until
the investment is derecognised or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is
included in the income statement. Interest and
dividends earned are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
the income statement as “Other income” in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below. Losses arising from the impairment of such
investments are recognised in the income statement
as “Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial
assets” and are transferred from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTHEME (&£

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded
in organised financial markets is determined by
reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of
business on the balance sheet date. For investments
where there is no active market, fair value is determined
using valuation techniques. Such techniques include
using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference
to the current market value of another instrument
which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow
analysis; and option pricing models.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on loans and receivables carried at
amortised cost, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced either directly or through the
use of an allowance account. The amount of the
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement, to the
extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to trade and retention receivables, a
provision for impairment is made when there is
objective evidence (such as the probability of insolvency
or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
significant changes in the technological, market
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor) that the Group will not be able
to collect all of the amounts due under the original
terms of an invoice. The carrying amount of the
receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they
are assessed as uncollectible.

2.4
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTHEME (&£

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these
assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current
fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the income statement, is transferred from
equity to the income statement. A provision for
impairment is made for available-for-sale equity
investments when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or
where other objective evidence of impairment exists.
The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. In addition, the Group
evaluates other factors, such as the share price volatility.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available-for-sale are not reversed through the income
statement.

Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed
through the income statement, if the increase in fair
value of the instrument can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2007

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where:

J the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired;

o the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;
or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a
written and/or purchased option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred
asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group
may repurchase, except in the case of a written put
option (including a cash-settled option or similar
provision) on an asset measured at fair value, where
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is
limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred
asset and the option exercise price.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTHEME (&£

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including
interest-bearing loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payable,
other payables, interest-bearing bank borrowings,
finance lease payables and amount due to a minority
shareholder are initially stated at fair value less directly
attributable transaction costs and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. The
related interest expense is recognised within “finance
costs” in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the amortisation process.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS 39
are accounted for as financial liabilities. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially at its fair value
less transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of the financial guarantee
contract, except when such contract is recognised at
fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18 Revenue.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTHEME (&£

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the income statement. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the income statement does
not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of a group of financial
liabilities which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the
financial liability contains an embedded derivative that
would need to be separately recorded.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHHEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts of a long term nature are stated
at cost, plus any attributable profits, less any
foreseeable losses, and progress payments received and
receivable. Contract costs incurred comprise direct
materials, the cost of subcontracting, direct labour, and
an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed
construction overheads, including depreciation on plant
and machinery used in construction projects, and
capitalised interest on loans to finance specific projects.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as
they are anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is treated as an amount due from contract
customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is treated as an amount due to contract
customers.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories for construction contracts, comprising raw
materials and sub-materials, are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value, after making due
allowance for any obsolete or slow-moving items. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to the
underlying specific contracts in progress in which the
inventories will ultimately be used.

Inventories for the generation of electric and steam
power, comprising mainly coal and spare parts and
consumables for repairs and maintenance of machinery
and equipment, are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value, after making due allowance for
any obsolete or slow-moving items. Cost is determined
on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as expenses
in the income statement in the period in which they
are incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHHEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
balance sheet date of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Provisions for warranties granted by the Group are
recognised based on past experience of the level of
repairs, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the income statement, or in equity
if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or
a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from
goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTHEME (&£

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset,
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to
the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the
grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the income
statement over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are initially recorded using the
functional currency rates ruling at the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the
income statement. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries and associates are currencies other than
the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance sheet date,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and,
their income statements are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are included
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a
foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount
recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequent recurring
cash flows of the overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the rendering of contracting works services,
based on the stage of completion of the
construction contracts; as further explained in
the accounting policy for ”“Recognition of
income from construction contracts”;

(b) from the sale of electric and steam power, based
on actual consumption derived from the reading
of meters during the year;

(c) from the development, manufacture and
distribution of helicopters, when the Group’s
right to receive its share of profit from Project
EC120 has been established (note 20);

(d) from the rendering of services, when the services
are rendered;

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset;

(f) rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms;

(9) government grants, on a systematic basis over
the periods necessary to match the grant to the
costs that it is intended to compensate;

(h) income relating to the exclusive distributorship
of certain helicopter engines, on an accrual basis
pursuant to the relevant agreement; and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTHEME (&£

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i) income from the sale of coal residues, when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold.

Recognition of income from construction
contracts

Profit on long term construction contracts is recognised
in the income statement on the percentage of
completion basis when the outcome of each contract
can be ascertained with reasonable certainty and when
a contract is at least 20% complete, by reference to
the total estimated cost of such contract, after making
due allowances for contingencies. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably
and when a contract is less than 20% complete,
revenue is recognised only to the extent that contract
costs incurred are recoverable. Provision is made for
any foreseeable losses as soon as such losses are
anticipated by management.

The Group makes claims for additional work done,
which may arise either under specific circumstances
provided for under the contracts, or due to variations
made to the contract specifications by its customers.
Where the amounts of such claims have not been
formally agreed at the balance sheet date, the likely
amount receivable as estimated by management, based
on all of the information available at the time, is
included in the contract value in determining the
estimated profit or foreseeable loss on the contract.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTHEME (&£

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 2 in respect of equity-settled awards and has
applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards granted
after 7 November 2002 that had not vested by 1
January 2005 and to those granted on or after 1
January 2005.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTHEME (&£

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme being effective, the Group
operated a defined contribution provident fund for
those employees who were eligible and had elected to
participate in the fund. This fund operated in a way
similar to the MPF Scheme, except that when an
employee left the fund prior to his/her interest in the
Group’s employer contributions vesting fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Group were
reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
contributions. Upon the implementation of the MPF
Scheme with effect from 1 December 2000, the
provident fund was frozen and no further contributions
by the Group or the eligible employees were made
after that date. When eligible employees leave the
Group, they receive their entitlements pursuant to the
existing rules of this fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESTHERE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBRELEE

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

li u,iv?{:n\ﬁ%/miﬁﬁﬁg CBHe kR
TEEREFRRESEHER
&T%ﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬂﬁA%ﬁF@

SEE R AR AHREE (—RBEK
BRA=EARNIH) 2EHaRE
HHRE  ETREARERERE
REBRAREERRESEE
DZI|ITEX o

REERBERME  RekReF
ERFARRTERES  BRHERAR
ITERGIMEELUR S 2 EHRF
RREE o

EERGRHE R ME

EEEREARENYBRRE -
AR - At RBRER - MaF
FIET - BRI RBREREERME
ﬁZWA'ﬁi'éF&EFmﬁ
SRNARAERECELY
3 R ARBBREMGEE
EArmERE Bl E8ERN
BEREXZENEEXBENERR
BEEHERAE -

Judgements W) B
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting FREBASESTHRRBES - &

policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property. The Group has determined
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of this property which is leased out on
operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment property and
owner-occupied property

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
an investment property and has developed criteria in
making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If
these portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts
for the portions separately. If the portions could not
be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as an investment
property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification of equity investments between equity
investment at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sale investment

The Group determines the classification of its equity
investments after initial recognition and, where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the
balance sheet date. The Group designated 9.82%
equity interest in Sino Gas Group Limited (“Sino Gas"”)
out of the 18.11% interest held by the Group as at 31
December 2007 as an equity investment at fair value
through profit or loss as such portion of equity interest
in Sino Gas is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy.
The rest of 8.29% equity interest in Sino Gas out of
the 18.11% interest held by the Group as at 31
December 2007 had been designated as available-for-
sale investment. More details are included in notes 21
and 28 to the financial statements.

Profitability and percentage of completion of
construction contracts

The Group determines the profitability of its
construction contracts based on the net income that
could be obtained after deducting its estimation of
the total costs of the contracts. The Group also
recognises its revenue from its contracts by the
percentage of completion of the contracts which is
measured by reference to the proportion of costs
incurred to date to the estimated total costs of the
relevant contracts.

Judgement is also made on the contingency costs that
may arise from variation orders and claims as well as
the recovery of such costs from their customers.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amounts of goodwill on the acquisition
of a subsidiary and an associate at 31 December 2007
were HK$38,116,502 (2006: HK$38,116,502) and
HK$2,936,264 (2006: HK$2,936,264), respectively.
More details are included in note 17 to the financial
statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. As at 31 December 2007, the
carrying amount of deferred tax relating to tax losses
was nil (2006: HK$13,153,200) and the amount of
unrecognised tax losses was HK$15,455,989 (2006:
HK$25,897,308). Further details are included in note
22 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of a financial asset under Project EC120

The Group determines whether the financial asset under
Project EC120 is impaired on an annual basis. The
financial asset has been valued based on discounted
future cash flows generated from the sale of helicopters
covering a 8-year period by applying a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The carrying amount of the financial asset
under Project EC120 at 31 December 2007 was
HK$11,959,462 (2006: HK$25,959,462). Further details
are included in note 20 to the financial statements.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment, the Group
has to consider various factors, such as expected usage
of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care
and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits
on the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful
life of the asset is based on the experience of the
Group with similar assets that are used in a similar
way. Additional depreciation is made if the estimated
useful lives and/or the residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment are different from
previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at each financial year end date based on
changes in circumstances. The carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2007
was HK$202,735,517 (2006: HK$194,482,989). Further
details are included in note 15 to the financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of trade and retention receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated losses
arising from the inability of its customers to make the
required payments. The Group makes its estimates
based on the ageing of its trade and retention
receivable balances, customers’ creditworthiness, and
historical write-off experience. If the financial condition
of its customers was to deteriorate so that the actual
impairment loss might be higher than expected, the
Group would be required to revise the basis of making
the allowance and its future results would be affected.
The carrying amount of trade and retention receivables
at 31 December 2007 was HK$22,837,580 (2006:
HK$251,727,962). Further details are included in note
26 to the financial statements.

Fair value of unlisted investments and derivative
financial instruments

The unlisted investments, including available-for-sale
investments and derivative financial instruments, have
been valued based on the expected cash flows
discounted at current rates applicable for items with
similar terms and risk characteristics. This valuation
requires the Group to make estimates about expected
future cash flows and discount rates, volatility of
underlying securities, risk-free interest rate and other
factors relevant to the underlying securities, and hence
they are subject to uncertainty. The fair value of the
unlisted investments, derivative financial asset and
derivative financial liability at 31 December 2007 were
HK$16,901,514 (2006: HK$11,214,600), HK$638,365
(2006: nil) and HK$2,209,425 (2006: nil), respectively.
Further details are included in notes 21 and 29 to the
financial statements.

Management has estimated the potential effect of using
reasonably possible alternatives as inputs to the
valuation model, and considered that the fair values
using less or more favourable assumptions are not
significantly different from the carrying value.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two
segment formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting
basis, by business segment; and (ii) on a secondary
segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other business segments. Summary
details of the business segments are as follows:

(a) the facade contracting works segment engages
in the design, manufacture and installation of
fabricated aluminium and stainless steel products
for buildings, such as curtain wall and cladding
systems, windows, doors, skylights and other
related products;

(b) the electric and steam power supply segment
engages in the generation and sale of electric
and steam power in the Linping industrial region
of Hangzhou in the PRC; and

(c) the aero-technology related businesses segment
engages in the share of profit from the
development, manufacture and distribution of
helicopters.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to
the segments based on the location of the assets.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(continued)

(b) Geographical segments

The following table presents revenue and certain
asset and expenditure information for the
Group’s geographical segments for the years
ended 31 December 2007 and 2006.

Hong Kong Mainland China Macau

B HERS 1
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
CERLE CTENE CRRLE CR55F D8RLE JRTE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Fér TEr TEx  TEn  TErn  TEx

TEER (B)

(b)y HWESE

TREJIAEEBEEZ_FTZT
tERZZETERF+A=
T-ALFEZTEMERZ
WahkamsTEERRAXE

£ o
United States
of America Others Consolidated
%6 i &8

000 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
CRRLE CTIAF CRRLE JTINF RME J3NF
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tér TET TEx TET TEx TER

Segment revenue: HENE -
Sales to external NRPHE
customers 122,058 348379 259,521 228,666 150,370 281,967
Attributable to AREEAL

discontinued operation @eZf  (122,058) (348379)  (64,433)  (56,621) (150,370) (281,967)

146,686 155178 175,004 42964 853,729 1,057,154

(146,686)  (155,178) (175,094)  (42,964) (658,641) (885,109

Revenue from continuing ¥

ABERH
&

&4
operations Z - - 195088 172,045 - -

- = - - 195,088 172,045

Other segment information:  Z o A EH -
Seqment assets PEEE 646,886 582,391 517,318 415,684 - 4269
Capital expenditure BRRR M8 1000 38186 35551 - 5

- 65360 2,636 1,164,204 1,108,772
27,393 2611 677 238 66,604 39,406

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5.
GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
an appropriate proportion of contract revenue of the
construction contracts; the net invoiced value of electric
and steam power sold; and income from Project EC120
for the development, manufacture and distribution of
helicopters.

Weam ~ E WA R FE

ek (BN E 2 & ¥%8) T
HITEHNIEZEE REHEHEE
HREAZBEFE  UWRKREH
% - %m&%ﬁﬁaﬂ%ZEmzolﬁ
BZWA o
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS (continued)

5. W > Httlr A RAHE
(%)

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as Wz s H A RFES AT
follows:
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
Note HK$ HK$
i 2 B BT
Revenue W =
Generation and sale of electricand £ ENMEEE N R XA
steam power 192,663,175 170,786,264
Share of profit from Project EC120 #{HRBER% « RiEK
for the development, manufacture 48 &4 & F#4 2
and distribution of helicopters EC12078 B 2 & A 2,424,485 1,258,854
Attributable to continuing DMEREFNBERMZH
operations reported in the CEBREET
consolidated income statement 195,087,660 172,045,118
Value of contracting works DIEEERIELEEB 2
performed attributable to EMTENIREZEE
a discontinued operation 12 658,641,389 885,109,287
853,729,049 1,057,154,405
Other income Hpug A
Income in respect of an exclusive ETEAKSIZEER
distributorship of certain DR 2 WA
helicopter engines - 1,560,005
Bank interest income RIT A B BA 11,709,055 4,698,622
Interest income on a convertible ATk ESR 2 M EKA
bond 244,899 -
Income from installation of ZERMTEE WA
infrastructure for steam supply 5,177,136 818,583
Government grants* U 6 B & 701,754 1,203,384
Income from sale of coal residues & K&z U A 3,011,930 5,812,097
Gross rental income e W ABEE 587,760 587,760
Others H 134,335 91,624
21,566,869 14,772,075
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. W& Ht AR FE
GAINS (continued) (&
2007 2006
—EELEHF —ETRF
Note HK$ HK$
M aE T BT
Gains ) E 2,000 30,000
21,568,869 14,802,075
Attributable to a discontinued DIHEBE K LE
operation (note 12) &R 12 2,522,203 3,010,099
Attributable to continuing NG LS FIEE
operations reported in the Fr2W e FaEE
consolidated income Ey i
statement 19,046,666 11,791,976
21,568,869 14,802,075
* Various coal prices subsidies and government grants 3 LN T BT B0 B £ 4 2 B K ik

B REDBEMMETZER
R IE 8 B 12 0 2 TR K AT 8 B)
£ - AARIE AN K Sz 5 1B T 4e 2
HMERFAENEER ARTIRE
WA—IRRER - B ERMALK
BB RERERMBERBTZ
BREHIANER -

relating to anti-pollution research activities in
Hangzhou, the PRC, have been received from the
government authorities in Hangzhou. Government
grants received for which related expenditure has not
yet been undertaken are included in deferred income
in the balance sheet. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies relating to these subsidies
and grants.
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after
charging/(crediting):*

BR Bt A1 % A
AREZBBAEFE MG G
AV TIER : *

2007 2006
—EELF ZETREF
Notes HKS$ HK$
Kt i V- BT
Cost of contracting works: AR TR :
Cost of contracting works BEHITEHIIE
performed Z KR 572,857,173 813,304,472
Warranty provision IREE R 32 2,900,000 3,920,000
12 575,757,173 817,224,472
Cost of electric and steam HEBNRER
power supply 2 AR 163,678,387 146,358,446
739,435,560 963,582,918
Depreciation e 15 19,454,624 17,260,191
Less: Amounts capitalised to long & : BIERHIEEE D
term construction contracts &N 7 5 EE 40(a) (3,714,342) (3,646,879)
15,740,282 13,613,312
Minimum lease payments under T REEFLERL
operating leases on land and Z xIEMEE
buildings 8,848,171 5,226,532
Less: Amounts capitalised to long  J&t : BERHIZEL Y
term construction contracts B2 AR (5,155,697) (3,695,341)
3,692,474 1,531,191
Recognition of prepaid land lease MR IEN L &5
payments 16 959,990 957,163
Employee benefits expense EERHNER (TR
(excluding directors’ remuneration ®EH# & (ffzF8)) :
(note 8)):
Wages and salaries TERS® 59,173,435 32,188,138
Pension scheme contributions RIKE TSI 2,817,629 2,560,142
Less: Forfeited contributions W BRI K (144,363) (97,495)
Net pension scheme RN RS FFEE
contributions* 2,673,266 2,462,647
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

6. PBRBIAEF (45)

2007 2006
—EBBLEHF —EERF
Note HK$ HK$
Mt & ET BT
Other operating expenses/(income), HE &&=~
net: (FIFE) %58 -
Write-back of provision B E FER R
for impairment of trade and REE ZRBE
retention receivables, net Be {5 o B F =R 26 (426,965) (1,015,791)
Write-off/(recovery) of an other Hhss (Y e)
receivable H th & U BR 3K 327,000 (1,956,949)
Impairment of available-for-sale AHEENRE
investments Z BB - 580,000
Financial guarantee contracts HIEHERE L 1,498,929 =
1,398,964 (2,392,740)
Loss on disposal of items of HEWE - BKEM
property, plant and equipment REIBEE 2B 916,523 -
Auditors’ remuneration = EEh B & 2,150,000 1,300,000
Foreign exchange differences, net  ANE R IBZ%E - F58 (1,783,433) 178,367
Net rental income Ao A F5E (587,760) (587,760)
* At 31 December 2007, the Group had no forfeited S R_ZEZ+F+_A=+—8"

contributions available to reduce its contributions to

the pension schemes in future years (2006: nil).

# The disclosures presented in this note include those

amounts charged/credited
discontinued operation.

respect of the

7N 6 8] 3F 4 AT 4A] 2 58 W 4 3R AT A
ER DR REE 2 RIRETEI
(ZZTRE &) o

AMEM2FIBREBERIERL
EEBZMEEHRFAZE

B o
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7. FINANCE COSTS MR <
Group
REE
2007 2006
—EELEHF —EERF
Notes HKS$ HK$
k2 T BT
Interest on bank overdrafts and HARAFAEZIHER
bank loans wholly repayable ZRITEZ RIRTT
within five years BERZAE 8,043,200 9,117,505
Less: Amounts capitalised to long & : B{ERHFZ S
term construction contracts EHERZ
FRIE 40(a) (1,663,970) (3,776,367)
6,379,230 5,341,138
Interest on a finance lease MEME ZHE 11,352 24,951
6,390,582 5,366,089
Attributable to a discontinued DIRFEE R IEREFET
operation 12 6,487 251,312
Attributable to continuing DG ELEE FEE
operations reported in the FTE®mo 8
consolidated income statement E 6,384,095 5,114,777
6,390,582 5,366,089
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEM=
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant B EMBRBRES RGNS
to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong 161EHBECEESME T ¢

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Group
AEH
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
HK$ HKS$
H# T BT
Fees: e
Executive Directors HWITES 252,000 250,839
Non-executive Directors FEHITES 420,000 420,000
672,000 670,839
Other emoluments EMMe ITES)
(Executive Directors):
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EBEREYA R
in kind 5,825,520 5,516,550
Pension scheme contributions RN E FTEIH R 359,160 359,160
6,184,680 5,875,710
6,856,680 6,546,549
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8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
(continued)

(a)

Independent Non-executive Directors

The fees paid to Independent Non-executive

EESME (&7

=

(a)

BYFBTES

RERNIN FBILIFERNITE

Directors during the year were as follows: E2BEWT
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HKS$ HK$
E T BT
Chu Yu Lin, David 5K o) Bk 120,000 120,000
Li Ka Cheung, Eric TR 117,419 120,000
Li Zhaoxi ZJKER 60,000 60,000
Li Ka Fai, David TRE 2,581 =
300,000 300,000

There were no other emoluments payable to
the Independent Non-executive Directors during
the year (2006: nil).

R R E A RS T B S IR AT
EZNME (ZT2RF: E\) -
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEME (&
(continued)
(b) Executive Directors and a Non-executive (b) BMITEER—BHFITES
Director
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
e 2H RikE
ik RENH G HE R Mewm
2007 HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
“EELE B BT B BT
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Fu Shula & fr 36,000 - - 36,000
Wang Xinkuo T O 36,000 - - 36,000
Ji Guirong FEE 36,000 3,386,520 219,000 3,641,520
Ma Zhiping Bo T 36,000 - - 36,000
Diao Weicheng AER 36,000 - - 36,000
Liu Rongchun LS 36,000 - - 36,000
Ren Haifeng . 36,000 2,439,000 140,160 2,615,160
252,000 5,825,520 359,160 6,436,680
Non-executive Director: FEHITEE
Ip Tak Chuen, EEe
Edmond 120,000 - - 120,000
372,000 5,825,520 359,160 6,556,680
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EHEM=E (&
(continued)
(b) Executive Directors and a Non-executive (b) BMITEER—BHFITES
Director (continued) (%)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions  remuneration
e 2W BIKE
we REDNE AR Aok
2006 HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ZETRE BT BT BT BT
Executive Directors: HITES
Fu Shula & fr 36,000 - - 36,000
Wang Xinkuo TOE 36,000 - - 36,000
Ji Guirong FEE 36,000 3,360,000 219,000 3,615,000
Ma Zhiping Bo T 34,839 - - 34,839
Diao Weicheng AER 36,000 - - 36,000
Liu Rongchun KA 36,000 = = 36,000
Ren Haifeng (e 36,000 2,156,550 140,160 2,332,710
250,839 5,516,550 359,160 6,126,549
Non-executive Director: ZEH{TES :
Ip Tak Chuen, EEe
Edmond 120,000 - - 120,000
370,839 5,516,550 359,160 6,246,549

There was no arrangement under which a
director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

FALEBTMLHBEEEHRL
REREEAML -
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. HERGFEES
The five highest paid employees included two (2006: hEmeFEEREME (ZTE X
two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set F:WMREZ  FEMNEZ2FESH
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of REXKFES  EBp=5(ZFTZF X
the remaining three (2006: three) non-director, highest F:=ZR)BaFFESEE2He
paid employees for the year are as follows: = U
Group
AEE
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Basic salaries, allowances and EAFHE  EZBEREYHN =
benefits in kind 4,304,144 3,796,960
Pension scheme contributions BRSEEIHK 267,728 254,478
Performance related bonuses TERIBABIEAL 1,020,000 1,020,000
5,591,872 5,071,438
The number of non-director, highest paid employees MeE TSR cRRFIFEESE
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is B A :
as follows:

Number of employees

EEZB
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7t — 2,000,0007% JT 2 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T — 2,500,0007% 7T 1 1
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10.

TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions
in which the Group operates, based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

10.

Bi 1A

AEBERFANRRES ZMETE
R IA1T7.5% (Z BTN 4E
17.5%) 2B REH B BEFNE B &
18 o E i [E FE SR B A 2 B IE B
XRBRASELERERR EER
BER MK  BIEFEEITE
Bl - RERKEMGE -

Group
AEHE
2007 2006
—EELF e A
HK$ HK$
T BT
Current Bl HA
- Hong Kong — &% 3,015,856 (12,934)
— Elsewhere — H fth i = 6,284,961 5,230,092
Deferred (note 22) BIE (B aE22) (3,252,791) (665,767)
Total tax charge for the year ANEFIEFA S B5E 6,048,026 4,551,391
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10. TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit

before tax using the statutory rates for the countries/

jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority

10. FiIE (&)
KRR MEFEWNBRARERAE
BR /" EEEREEERRFTEZR
B i A B T8 32 B R & B AR E R

of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge for HEY H2EHERNAT
the year is as follows:
Group - 2007
FRE--22LE
Mainland
Hong Kong China Elsewhere Total
EE B HithE &t
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
BT Er Er BT
Profit before tax BR AR R
(including profit from (BEREERLER
a discontinued operation) £5.28F) 5,420,941 69,799,487 14,329,837 89,550,265
Tax at the statutory tax rates BAEHEAEZHE 948,665 23,033,831 3,348,456 21,330,952
Lower tax rates for specific provinces % €% 3 2 BIEH % - (7,525,454) - (7,525,454)
Deemed income of the PRC REBEXZRRBA
construction business - 1,460,574 - 1,460,574
Profits and losses attributable o~ A {EBE A F 2 B%
associates - (986,205) - (986,205)
Income not subject to tax BAMB A (5,191,890) (12,897,024) (4,038,718) (22,127,632)
Expenses not deductible for tax TENF A% 5,616,427 2,599,578 - 8,216,005
Tax losses utilised from HRBLARTESSE
previous periods (161) (1,091,130) (1,560,000) (2,651,291)
Increase in unprovided tax losses A B EEEH B ER
carried forward & 2,142,815 - 188,262 2,331,077
Tax charge/(credit) for the year RERBERY/ (KR) 3,515,856 4,594,170 (2,062,000) 6,048,026
Represented by: ARSI BERR :
Tax charge attributable to PEEERIEEE
a discontinued operation EBIRBRX
(note 12) (Hfzt12) 1,453,856
Tax charge attributable to PMEEGEFBRM
continuing operations reported in 2z HE L4
the consolidated income B RERY
statement 4,594,170

6,048,026
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10. TAX (continued) 10. $i\E (&)
Group - 2006
KEF-—FERE
Mainland
Hong Kong China Elsewhere Total
) 7 Hifip & A3
HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BIL
Profit/(loss) before tax (including BB EIER]/ (B 8)
profit from a discontinued (BEXBERLESR
operation) EX ey 48,581,683 27,870,811 (20,797,988) 55,654,506
Tax at the statutory tax rates BEEREGEZHE 8,501,795 9,197,368 (7,531,494) 10,167,669
Lower tax rates for specific provinces % &% 3 2 BURH & - (6,905,582) - (6,905,582)
Deemed income of the PRC hEBEXRIKA
construction business 169,242 562,823 - 732,065
Profits and losses attributable PEBERR L B
to associates 4,661,967 (535,672) - 4,126,295
Income not subject to tax BAARKA (13,103,767) - (63,732) (13,167,499)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR ZHX 2,914,820 2,586,187 1,514,049 7,015,056
Tax losses utilised from previous HEBTARRESS
periods (814,930) (220,284) - (1,035,214)
Increase in unprovided tax losses KB EEEHEEE
carried forward s - 45,074 3,573,527 3,618,601
Tax charge/(credit) for the year AERBERZ/ (ER) 2,329,127 4,729,914 (2,507,650) 4,551,391
Represented by: TR SERE :
Tax charge attributable to AEEBRILEEER
a discontinued operation LHBERX
(note 12) (H#t12) 2,098,737
Tax charge attributable to PMEEGEFERFMER
continuing operations reported i~ ZBELLEH 2
the consolidated income statement ~ FIER X 2,452,654

4,551,391
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TAX (continued)

Certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group were eligible for
exemption from corporate income tax (“CIT"”) for the
two years starting from the first year in which
assessable profits were generated, and a 50%
exemption from CIT for the following three years. In
addition, another PRC subsidiary was eligible for a
concessionary CIT rate of 16.5%.

During the 5th Session of the 10th National People’s
Congress, which was concluded on 16 March 2007,
the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the “New
Corporate Income Tax Law”) was approved and will
become effective on 1 January 2008. The New
Corporate Income Tax Law introduces a wide range of
changes which include, but are not limited to, the
unification of the income tax rate for domestic-invested
and foreign-invested enterprises at 25%. In addition,
for those enterprises benefiting from lower preferential
tax rates, such preferential rates will be gradually
phased out by increasing them over the next five years.
This change in income tax rate will directly increase
the Group’s effective tax rate prospectively from 2008.

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting
to HK$1,314,066 (2006: HK$1,010,171) is included in
“Share of profits and losses of associates” on the face
of the consolidated income statement.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders
of the parent for the year ended 31 December 2007
includes a profit of HK$92,771,529 (2006: loss of
HK$10,651,671) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 38(b)).

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 30 August 2007, the Company announced the
decision of its board of directors to dispose of FEA
Holdings Limited (“FEA”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “FEA Group”). FEA Group engages in
the facade contracting works including the design,
manufacture and installation of curtain walls,
aluminium windows and other related products, and is
a separate business segment that is part of the
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and the United
States of America operations. The Group has decided
to cease its facade contracting works business although
it is profit-making because it plans to focus its resources
on its aero-technology related business. The disposal
of FEA Group was completed on 28 December 2007.
Details of the net assets of FEA Group disposed of are
disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements.

10.

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

BiIE ()

AREBETHEMBARSERERR
BEELA EFREMFELERER
THROEMRESR ([FAER]) » &
AR = FRNEBS50%ZFT 5 FiR
%o b B—RPBEWEARA
BRZH165% 2 BEREMEH
R o

RIBEZLF=F+BEHAENE
TEEZEBARRRASERANSH
o PECERERA([FhERT
BEEDBERE  ABR-_ZZ
NE—B—BRERER - FIDEFMSE
FRBIA—RHNEE) - B (BRR
) BRINECERNFSHEE —5&
25% ° IbSh - MR ESZRIEERDN
TEME  BEHRERBERKRAF
NEZS ASEZBUEERR R o
TEHRECEMBH R ARG ERE
TR AEEE T N\FENER
TiE o

& AR 2 I A1,314,06678 7T
(ZEZ/R4F 1,010,171 7m) 28
EEGEABERZ [DIEBERRZ
BEIA -

RAEEFEAERMLRE
A

BEe_ZT+F+-_A=+—HIt
FEZAGEREEABGGEE %
A BT RARRMEERET
2% F92,771,5295 7T (ZEE N
£ : 10,651,671 ) (K &7
38(b)) °

CRIERER

R=BZLEN\A=+A  ARF
B EE LR E & FEA Holdings
Limited ([FEA]) R EK B R A (5
[FEA%E ) - FEAR B E K E S

fBILi2 r BHE&R  BERTRKR
BEE wmEREMBEEER T

RERA - BF BFIREBREERN
Eh—EBIEBSI - BEAE
INET IR B RBF 2 %5 - AR
SEATRIEERNEIIE LR
W EAEAEBHEEREERE
MZERITEREER £ - HEFEARE
E-_ETE+F+ A=+ NH=E
Ko B EFEASBEEFE
18 1R B 75 3R 2% B 5 394 55 o
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12.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

12. CRIEBEER (&)

(continued)
The results of FEA Group for the year are presented FEAREFAEEZTMT -
below:
2007 2006
—EERLF —EERF
Notes HKS$ HK$
Kt i BT BT
Revenue Wz 5 658,641,389 885,109,287
Cost of sales & KA 6 (575,757,173) (817,224,472)
Gross profit EH 82,884,216 67,884,815
Other income H A 5 2,522,203 3,010,099
Administrative expenses THRERER (59,597,499) (50,601,242)
Other operating income, net Hih &M= F8 414,160 435,791
Finance costs B 75 B S 7 (6,487) (251,312)
Profit of the discontinued operation T 4% |4 & 278 7 % 7 26,216,593 20,478,151
Gain on disposal of FEA Group i EFEAS B 2 7 ) 39 5,579,462 =
Profit before tax from ERIEREEBL
the discontinued operation Fx %5 B i A 31,796,055 20,478,151
Tax I8 10 (1,453,856) (2,098,737)
Profit for the year from ERIEKEEB 2FA
the discontinued operation i Al 30,342,199 18,379,414
Attributable to: A IR
Equity holders of the parent NAlEEFAA 30,622,579 18,379,414
Minority interests DB (280,380) -
30,342,199 18,379,414
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AR E iﬂxgﬁxﬁﬁﬂ
ZERBEETEER
IO 15 8L

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during
the year used in the basic
earnings per share calculation

ARG & & MR8 % 7
ZE B INKE
T8 (AfE13)

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the diluted
earnings per share calculation (note 13)

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 12. ERIEREER (&)
(continued)
The net cash flows incurred by FEA Group are as FEARSEELE 2R SR FHLOT
follows:
2007 2006
—EELF ZETR
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Operating activities 1R E) 84,421,428 2,566,067
Investing activities "EEE (36,345,208) 13,265,579
Financing activities Bl &S (4,386,533) (308,222)
Net cash inflow e RAFRE 42,689,687 15,523,424
Earnings per share: BRRH -
Basic, from the discontinued BEAR - REEKRIE
operation i HKS0.68 cent B {ll  HK$0.47 cent &1L
Diluted, from the discontinued g ke ®RIE
operation A B HK$0.68 cent 3 fli /A
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share REDRIEREXEB 2 BRERR
from the discontinued operation are based on: BERADETYSETE
2007 2006
—EELE —ERRF
Profit attributable to ordinary equity ARAIEEEREE A
holders of the parent from EERBEERIERE
the discontinued operation EY HK$30,622,5793% & HK$18,379,414/8 1T

4,512,755,055  3,937,995,160

4,543,534,340  3,937,995,160
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13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount
for the year ended 31 December 2007 is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in
the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

A diluted earnings per share amount for the year ended
31 December 2006 has not been disclosed as the share
options outstanding during that year had an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share for that
year.

13.

AAEBEREBARE
16 8 K= A

SREARF BB AT ERIES
BB AR AR R R R E BT
LA 7 NAE T H -

BE_TTLF+-_A=+—RHIt
FESREEENDIRA R EBE
BRAEARGEFRGHNFTE - BIE
AAEZEBBRNEFORDGES
RERGBHNAABzFANEETER
BER  UEBIRGEERER
17 WRIECTTRRBRAEEE
BETERSE B BB E
FHE -

HREBE_TTERNF+T _A=1+—
BIEFEARTEZRBREEZSE
FH 2T ERG NI E BT
2 HhYERESRETEENE
B e
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. AR ERERBEAARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY HERER (&)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
(continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share FREARREE R E R
are based on: &
2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings z Al
Profit attributable to ordinary AREBERFEA
equity holders of the parent: JE 54 A -
From continuing operations REFERKE XS 47,373,617 29,570,393
From a discontinued operation REERIEELEER 30,622,579 18,379,414
77,996,196 47,949,807
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
Number of shares v =]
Weighted average number of AR EERERER
ordinary shares in issue during ZERNBEBTTAR
the year used in the basic 2 INHETF 5 2
earnings per share calculation 4,512,755,055 3,937,995,160

Effect on dilution — weighted
average number of ordinary
shares:

Share options

58 200 — B IR0
FH

R RS

30,779,285

4,543,534,340 3,937,995,160
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14, REYHE

Group and Company

AEERAEATF
2007 2006
—EZTLHF ZETREF
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEREAER 14,900,000 14,900,000
Net profit from a fair value N EREEZFHE
adjustment 9,300,000 -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HAZEKEE 24,200,000 14,900,000
The Group’s and the Company’s investment property AEERARRZEEDHER T
was revalued on 31 December 2007 by BMI Appraisals TLF+ A=+ —HHBUFEE
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, AERGEMPBBERTIHERA
at HK$24,200,000 (2006: HK$14,900,000) on an open AR AFME RAEAGEESH
market, existing use basis. {518 524,200,000/ 7T (ZZEZE N
% : 14,900,000 7T) °
The Group’s and the Company’s investment property is AEBRARRB ZIREWMETIALR
situated in Hong Kong and is held under a medium BEBWZRPHEAOREE - AEF
term lease. At 31 December 2007, this investment +tF+=-A=+—H " "WEEME
property was pledged to secure a bank loan of the EER  (ERAEERARQARIT
Group and the Company (note 34(a)(i)) and was leased B2 ER (B iE34:)30) « WiRE
to a shareholder of the Company under an operating EHOHBEFARE 2 RE - &5F
lease, further details of which are included in notes 15 E R BB WK M E4Ga)K

41(a) and 44(a)(i) to the financial statements. 44(a)(i) °
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15. ¥ - MEMNRE

EQUIPMENT
Group AEM
Generation
plantand  Furniture,
Construction ~ Llandand  Leasehold  Plant and related ~fixtures and Motor  Tools and
in progress  buildings improvements  machinery  structure  equipment  vehicles moulds Total
i REERR A %E
EEIR IHRET NEEE HEEREE  EERG ET 5E IAREE &
HKS$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$
31 December 2007 228t
tZB=1-A
At31 December 2006and ~ RZFERE
at 1 January 2007; t-B=1-A
RZ5%tE
-R-R:
Cost or valuation RASfE 35,808,517 89,479,368 14,594,103 14,324,451 81863545 24,643,612 13234611 2,368,328 276,316,535
Accumulated depreciation  ZIETE - (26,507,181) (14,191,777) (11,462,636) - (17,037,447) (10,609,503)  (2,025,002) (81,833,546)
Net carrying amount REFE 35,808,517 62,972,187 402,326 2,861,815 81,863,545 7,606,165 2,625,108 343,326 194,482,989
At1January 2007, netof ~ RZEFtE
accumulated depreciation -R-R"
h2ENE 35,808,517 62,972,187 402,326 2,861,815 81,863,545 7,606,165 2,625,108 303,326 194,482,989
Additions hE 1,262,472 21641662 1284523 8,170,024 5123879 2371399 3,275,699 474,484 66,604,142
Disposals & - - - - (2,188,555 - - - (2,188,555
Transfers g5 (37.897,977) 11,062,198 - - 26835719 - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR
(note 39) (H£39) (4,770,134)  (29,611,413)  (1,146,110) (8,663,436 - (7,647,951)  (2,154,154)  (522,751) (54,515,949)
Surplus on revaluation EfiRR - - - - 6,106,926 - - - 6106926
Depreciation provided ENfERE
during the year - (3,905518)  (540,739)  (2,368,403)  (9,949,515)  (1,892,322)  (1,303,068)  (295,059) (19,454,624)
Exchange realignment EiA% 2,683,722 3,140,910 - - 5,762,544 139 13273 - 11,700,588
At 31 December 2007, netof  HZFF%
accumulated depreciation t-R=+-8°
AR2ENE 20,086,600 66,100,026 - - 113,554,603 437,430 2,556,858 - 202,735,517
At 31 December 2007: RZ55tE
t-A=1-A
Cost or valuation RAFfEE 20,086,600 91,716,499 - - 113554603 1520103 8,477,838 - 35,355,683
Accumulated depreciation 2IEfE - (25,616473) - - - (1,082673)  (5,920,980) - (32,620,126)
Net carrying amount KEARE 20,086,600 66,100,026 - - 113,554,603 437430 2,556,858 - 202,735,517
Analysis of cost or valuation: (A ZEA
At cost A& 20,086,600 91,716,499 - - - 1520103 8,477,838 - 121,801,040
At 31 December 2007 BI3RLE
valuation tZA=1-A
L1 - - - - 113,554,603 - - - 113,554,603
20,086,600 91,716,499 - - 113554603 1520103 8477838 - 235,355,603
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. Y% - REMRE (&
EQUIPMENT (continued)
Group (continued) KEM (&)
Generation
plantand  Furniture,
Construction landand  Leasehold  Plant and related  fixtures and Motor ~ Tools and
in progress buildings improvements  machinery structure—— equipment vehicles moulds Total
ik YERER A k2
ERIE THRET  NEEE RREREE  AERE Rtk A8 IARER ait
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

AT AT AT BT BT AT AT BT AT

31 December 2006 R-EENE
t-A=t-A
At 1 January 2006; RZEENE
=f=f:
Cost or valuation RAT{EE 20791485 84487197 14,468,033 13,345,378  78331,695 19,888,016 12,232,535 2,266,024 247,810,363

Accumulated depreciation 2hiE (15,405,227)  (10,190,124)  (1,784,349) (73,321,102)

(22,964,573)  (13,162,146)  (9,814,683)

Net carrying amount REAE 22791485 61522624 1305887 3530695 78331695 4482789 2042411 481,675 174,489,261

At 1 January 2006, netof R ZEEAE
i

accumulated depreciation -A-H

NkgEnE 2791485 61520624 1305887 3530695 78331,695 4482789 2,042,411 481,675 174,489,261
Additions AE 29438993 908005 126070 979073 1681514 4755455 1414130 102,304 39,405,544
Transfers 8% (17,039,185 2,063,429 - - 14750457 - 4509 - -
Deficit on revaluation BfiER - - - - (6,991,597) - - - (6,991,597)
Depreciation provided ENRERR
during the year - (2858,113)  (1,029.831) (1,647,953 (8,563,701) (1,632,169)  (1,287.971)  (240,653) (17,260,191)
Exchange realignment EXA% 817,04 1336242 - - 2655177 90 31,239 - 4839912
At 31 December 2006, netof  HZFEAE
accumulated depreciation t-B=t-A

nE2ENE 31808517 62972187 402326 2861815 81863545 7606165 2625108 343,326 194,482,989
At 31 December 2006: RZZE/E

t-f=f-A
Cost or valuation RAfEE 35,808,517 89479368 14594103 14324450 81863545 24643612 13234611 2368328 276,316,535
Acumulated depreciation 27 E - (26,507,181) (14191777) (11,462,636) - (17,037447) (10,609,503 (2,025,002) (81,833,546)
Net carrying amount EESE 35808517 62,972,187 402326 2861815 81863545 7606165 2625108 343326 194,482,989

Analysis of cost or valuation: A FHESH :

At cost BHA 35808517 89,479,368 14,594,103 14,324,451 - 4643612 13234611 2,368,328 194,452,990
At 31 December 2006 BZZENE
valuation t-F=1-H

LIE - - - - 81,863,545 - - - 81,863,545

35808517 89479368 14594103 14324451 81863545 24643612 13234611 2368328 276,316,535
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

15. % - BMEMR

& (&)

Company ¥ /N
Furniture,
Land and fixtures and Motor
building equipment vehicles Total
B KB
T i RAEF kFE AE ast
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS
V- # T # T # T
31 December 2007 s 2 2
+=A=+—-H
At 31 December 2006 and RZZEZTREF
1 January 2007: +=ZA=+—8
RZETLE
—A—R8:
Cost AR 12,750,000 1,484,899 331,547 14,566,446
Accumulated depreciation Z2EHE (600,000) (840,708) (82,887) (1,523,595)
Net carrying amount REHE 12,150,000 644,191 248,660 13,042,851
1 January 2007, net of RZZTLF
accumulated depreciation —R—8"
B EBIE 12,150,000 644,191 248,660 13,042,851
Additions NE - 30,816 - 30,816
Depreciation provided ERNTERRE
during the year (300,000) (239,200) (82,887) (622,087)
At 31 December 2007, netof WM-ZTZT+H4F
accumulated depreciation +ZA=+—-8"
nERBHE 11,850,000 435,807 165,773 12,451,580
At 31 December 2007 RZEELE
+=RA=+—-8:
Cost AR 12,750,000 1,515,715 331,547 14,597,262
Accumulated depreciation 2ENE (900,000) (1,079,908) (165,774) (2,145,682)
Net carrying amount REHE 11,850,000 435,807 165,773 12,451,580
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (continued)

Company (continued)

QT (8)

15. ¥ - MEMNRE (&

Furniture,
Land and fixtures and Motor
building equipment vehicles Total
R - KE
T RIEF &g TE &&F
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
31 December 2006 “TTRE
+-A=+—"H
At 31 December 2005 and RZZERF
1 January 2006: +=-A=+-8
EZELTREF
—A—8:
Cost A 12,750,000 1,434,389 780,000 14,964,389
Accumulated depreciation 2REME (300,000) (605,031) (780,000) (1,685,031)
Net carrying amount REFE 12,450,000 829,358 = 13,279,358
At 1 January 2006, net of RZBEZREF
accumulated depreciation —A—H
NE2EME 12,450,000 829,358 = 13,279,358
Additions NE - 50,510 331,547 382,057
Depreciation provided FERMERE
during the year (300,000) (235,677) (82,887) (618,564)
At 31 December 2006, net of RZEERF
accumulated depreciation +-A=+—H
MK EBRME 12,150,000 644,191 248,660 13,042,851
At 31 December 2006: RZZTERF
+-R=+—-8:
Cost A 12,750,000 1,484,899 331,547 14,566,446
Accumulated depreciation 2REME (600,000) (840,708) (82,887) (1,523,595)
Net carrying amount FEFE 12,150,000 644,191 248,660 13,042,851
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

An analysis of the lease terms of the Group’s and the

1lts),

M- BEMNZRE (&

REERANRR 2 L1 R8T HY

Company’s land and buildings is as follows: DITATR -
Company
AEE PN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEtE ZETREF “EEtE —EERX
HKS HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At cost, located in: B IR
Hong Kong, held under B BREMEY
a long term lease A - 6,000,000 - =
Hong Kong, held under BB RPHAEL
a medium term lease =¥ 12,750,000 12,750,000 12,750,000 12,750,000
Mainland China, held under RE A - R
a medium term lease AHFE 78,966,499 70,729,368 - =
91,716,499 89,479,368 12,750,000 12,750,000
As at 31 December 2006, the net book value of the RZZBEZERNF+_A=+—H &

Group's items of property, plant and equipment held

under a hire purchase contract included in the total

amount of motor vehicles amounted to HK$45,137.

ANABEBBZ AEBIZBEEE LOF
B2YE  BEMKXMEEEEREE
{8 AB45,13748 7T °
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15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

At 31 December 2007, the Group’s generation plant
and related structure was revalued at HK$113,554,603
(2006: HK$81,863,545) by BMI Appraisals Limited on
the open market value and existing use basis, resulting
in a revaluation surplus of HK$6,106,926 (2006:
revaluation deficit of HK$6,991,597), of which a surplus
of HK$3,134,520 (2006: HK$1,452,489) was credited
to the property, plant and equipment revaluation
reserve whereas the remaining surplus of HK$2,972,406
was credited to the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31 December 2007 (2006: deficit of
HK$8,444,086 charged to the consolidated income
statement).

Had these generation plant and related structure been
carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, their carrying amounts would
have been HK$97,979,639 (2006: HK$68,816,073).

As at 31 December 2007, certain of the Group’s land
and buildings with a net book value of approximately
HK$30,817,213 (2006: HK$38,631,489) were pledged
to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 34(a)(ii)).

1lts),

M- BMENZE (&)

R_ETZt+tF+-_A=+—H &
SEZREREREERELFERE
BAMERARIEARMAERER
REeEEEETENGHER
113,554,6038 L (ZE T X F -
81,863,545%7) ' HILEELEEMEHA
#/36,106,926/B L (Z T T /X F
E(LE 16,991,597 ) » H
3,134,520 T (Z & & X F -
1,452,489/ 7T) < BERET AW % -
BEMZEBEEGRG@ZERE 8B T2
2,972,406 T 2 BERAIGT ABIZEZ
ZE+F+_A=+—HIEFEZ
HENBRA(ZEENF
8,444,086/ 7T 2 BN R A FIE &R
WHKR) °

MZEREMEREBREUESL
AR RETERREESERA
Bk A RSEZEBEERER
97,979,639 L (Z T E X F
68,816,073/ 7T) °

RZZBEZLF+_A=+—H " &

EF(E4930,817,2138 L (ZZEZ X
4 :38,631,489/870) 2 NEBET
THREFLEEER  EREAEE
FTE—RBTEEZER (M
34(a)(ii) e
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FE{FT LA ER
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EZTLF ZETRF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEAEE 29,539,219 29,537,844
Exchange realignment bE 3 & 2,043,230 958,538
Addition 30 955,613 -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39)  HEMK B R A (K :#39) (2,656,691) -
Recognised during the year (note 6) FR#R (K :16) (959,990) (957,163)

Carrying amount at 31 December W+ -—A=+—HZEEE

Current portion included in mEN By - BIEETER KA
prepayments, deposits and % & K H i JE W AR 5K A

other receivables

28,921,381 29,539,219

(705,465) (960,338)

Non-current portion FE T Eh B 19

28,215,916 28,578,881

The leasehold land is held under a medium term lease
and is situated in Mainland China.

As at 31 December 2007, certain of the Group's
leasehold land with a net book value of approximately
HK$4,852,118 (2006: HK$3,306,615) was pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group
(note 34(a)(iii)).

ZEEL MR FMENTE LM
AR B A o

RNZEBEZLE+-_A=+—0H "k
EF(E 44,852,118 70 (ZEZE /X
F :3,306,6158 L) ZASEH T
HETHEEER  (ERREEMR
B-—RBITEEZER (M3
34(a)(iii)) °
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17. GOODWILL

Group
rEE
HK$
BT
Cost and carrying amount R-ZZTETRF
at 1 January 2006, ZEEZRF+ZA=1+—H
31 December 2006, —TELFE-A-BR
1 January 2007 and 22+ F+=ZA=+—8H
31 December 2007 ZRA R EREE 38,116,502

As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial
statements, the Group applied the transitional
provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill in
respect of business combinations which occurred prior
to 2001, to remain eliminated against consolidated
retained profits.

The amounts of goodwill remaining in consolidated
retained profits, arising from the acquisition of
subsidiaries prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 in 2001,
were HK$162,134 as at 31 December 2006 and 2007.
The amount of goodwill is stated at its cost of
HK$162,134 which arose in years prior to 1 January
2005.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of Hangzhou
Sealand Power Company Limited (“Hangzhou Sealand”)
has been allocated to the electric and steam power
supply cash-generating unit, one of the reporting
segments of the Group, for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the electric and steam
power supply cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
senior management covering a five-year period. The
discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 8%
(2006: 11%) and cash flows beyond the first five-year
period are extrapolated using a zero growth rate.

BRI EHREM FE2. 40T - A%
B FFAHKFRS 3H9 38 63+ 5215
REAH T —FIZRAEEHZ
BENMAEGE BT MAHE -

RZZEERNFR=ZEZELF+ A
=+—H KEHBRARE (R=ZF
— FERFASSAP 3081) FTEE 2 15 &
MIDARBIEGEB T RN 225
#162,134/ 70 © 11£162,1348 7L 2
BEDTR_ZTRF—A—HAE
EN IR AN ETIE o

BE R E R

WEMMEBAERR 2 A ([HM
BB FELECHEEIREED
REAHEZRSELSE T (HAE
BEFT—E2®RS ) ERER -

BOARERAHBZASELE LY
A E B EEEREERSE -
ZEREERASRERAKEE -
MELBARBREBECEEERESR
MR FHPBREME - FIEM
ZHFHEER/8B(ZTEZTRF :
M%) - BEAFHNASRERT
R R A
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GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Key assumptions used in its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill are as
follows:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is
the average gross margins achieved in the year
immediately before the budgeted year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before

tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
units.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

%E (/,‘g
mEZREIR (&)

ETHEREIR RS RERR
FifEmzEBRERMT ¢

EEFIF-—BEEMNMEZ2EMET
$E'<%F%E L FER—FRERNTY
EFEFTE WHEAEBEARERE

g o

FHEE-FTEAZFRETIREA
Y RBABERNETZHERR

18. MB A A&

Company
KA F

2007 2006

—EBELHF ZEERF

HK$ HK$

T BT

Unlisted shares, at cost ELETRG  EEKA 7,911 277,877,823
Due from subsidiaries M8 A R R 389,389,687 333,205,540
Due to subsidiaries =N E S (11,824,138)  (13,000,000)

BB

Impairment

377,573,460 598,083,363

The balances with the subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and are not expected to be repaid within
one year. In the opinion of the Company’s directors,
the amounts due from the subsidiaries are considered
as quasi-equity loans to the subsidiaries. The carrying
amounts of the balances with subsidiaries approximate
to their fair values.

(78,171,415)  (243,376,497)

299,402,045 354,706,866
R [T BB A A1 B 2 SRR RRER R 4K
B REAR-FRER- X
RAEERR  WEBARIRAAR
RAMNE AR EERE N -
HfB ARG RAERELAF

BRE -
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18.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at the balance

18. MEB A BRERE (&

TEMBARIRNGEERZHEN

sheet date are as follows: S 4
Nominal value
of issued and
Place of fully paid-up Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
ERTRAR
AR/ LERK R ERARERERE
a8 AR E BRAZEE EZAMLL TEER
Direct Indirect
EE &
CATIC Helicopter PRC/Mainland HK$42,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development China 42,000,000/ 7 REER
(Shenzhen) Limited** ~ ® & /B E A,
oh R B A PR
(RY) R A7) =
Billirich Investment Ltd.  British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 100 = Investment holding
("Billirich")# Hong Kong 1,000% T REER
RERTEE /BB
Hangzhou Sealand*** PRC/Mainland RMB68,000,000 - 70 Generation and sale of
AU g B China 68,000,0007C A K electric and steam
ME /R ERL power
EERHETNRER
* CATIC Helicopter Development (Shenzhen) Limited is & AR B AR TR TS ORI B
registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PR A AR 4R R B A Bl s it = 2 ok
the PRC law. Bz -
B Hangzhou Sealand is registered as a foreign investment B M 8 Bt AR #5 B V% Il 5 1R s A1

enterprise under the PRC law.

W All the statutory financial statements of these
subsidiaries were not audited by Ernst & Young Hong
Kong or other member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network.

A

# Fii B S T B8 A~ ) AOYE TE B 75 3
RIYI IE M 2K BB HE A LK
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. MiB A TR (&

(continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, disposed of REER  RFEFAREZEZNE
during the year, as at the date of disposal are as NAIZFHBEWT -
follows:
Nominal value
of issued and
Place of fully paid-up Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
BRTRAR
EmEL/ EERK ERREERE
£ AR E R REzEE EREOL TEXR
Direct  Indirect
B# B
FEA Cayman Islands/ US$18,880,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 18,880,000 T RERR
REHS/ B
Better View Investment  Hong Kong/ HK$2 = 100 Property holding
Limited Mainland China 2B RENE
RARERRAA B/ PEN
Far East Aluminium Hong Kong/ HK$2 - 100 Property holding
Works (Guangzhou) Mainland China 28T RENE
Company Limited B/ PEANM
BERBEIE(BM)
BRAA
FEA Technology Limited  Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of
BRIEMBERAR AB BT transportation services
REER RS
Far East Aluminium Hong Kong HK$90,500,000 - 100 Design, manufacture
Works Company EE 90,500,00078 7T and installation of

Limited
REHRETRE
ARAH

curtain walls,
aluminium windows
and other related
products

Rit HERZERE
B BEREM
1B Em
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. MiB A TR (&

(continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, disposed of REER  RERNLEZEZHE
A2 FEMT - (&)

Q
N
~
AN

Z

during the year, as at the date of disposal are as

follows: (continued)

Nominal value
of issued and

Place of fully paid-up Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
BRTRMAR
AR/ LERE /G ERAEERE
£ AR EEE kEzEE EEEOL TEXR
Direct  Indirect
EE &
Seniford Engineering Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Design, manufacture
Limited & 28T and installation of
EHEIRERAF curtain walls,
aluminium windows
and other related
products
Rt HERZERE
B BERER
i
Far East Aluminium Singapore SGD50,000 - 100 Design, manufacture
Works (Singapore) 0% 50,0003 7 and installation of
Pte. Ltd. curtain walls,
aluminium windows
and other related
products
Rt RERZERE
Bie - mEREAM
HEER
Netfortune Engineering  Macau MOP25,000 = 100 Design, manufacture
(FEA) Macau Limited ~ 2F9 25,0007 & # and installation of

curtain walls,
aluminium windows
and other related
products

Rt HERZERE
B REREM
BHEmM
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

18. MEB A BRERE (&

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, disposed of REER  REALEZEEHE
during the year, as at the date of disposal are as REZFBEWMT « (F)
follows: (continued)
Nominal value
of issued and
Place of fully paid-up Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
BRTRAR
EmBL/ LERK/ ERREERE
£ AR R R RAZEE EEAMLL TEEH
Direct  Indirect
B &
Heng Fai International  British Virgin Islands/ HK$1,000 = 100 Manufacture of curtain
Ltd. Mainland China 1,000/ 1 walls, aluminium
RBRZEE/ windows and other
B A3 related products
HERBEER mER
At E @
Netfortune Limited Hong Kong/ HK$500,000 - 100 Installation of curtain
NEBR AR Mainland China 500,000/ 7T walls and aluminium
B/ FEAM windows
ZEEBEERREE
Netfortune (Shanghai) PRC/Mainland China RMB 10,000,000 - 96.25  Design, manufacture
Aluminium Works FE /A i 10,000,0007T and installation of
Company Limited ARE curtain walls,
EBNERETR aluminium windows
BRAA and other related
products
HEt BMERTERE
Bie BEREM
BB Em
Far East Aluminum United States of US$200,000 - 100 Design, manufacture
Works (U.S.) America 200,000 1 and installation of
Corporation = curtain walls,

aluminium windows
and other related
products

Rt RERZERE
B REREM
HEER
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18.
(continued)

B~ R ()

FRIHEZRRIBEREARFE
XESBRASEEEFETES

MZARAMBAR - EZRSM
=5 E A BT B A R B R K8 D TT

of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the K o

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. Bt&E N TR
Group
AEHE
2007 2006
—ETLEHF —ZEERX
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 18,268,976 45,199,422
Goodwill on acquisition W g g 2 2,936,264 2,936,264
21,205,240 48,135,686
As at 31 December 2006, the Group’s interests in R /T$+:)EJ =+—H XEER
associates included 21% equity interest in &= £ & & 11 GERARNERPERESEME DR

B NRELE R A A, a company engaging in the trading
of ironware, coal and other chemical products, with
registered share capital of RMB5,000,000; 28.71%
equity interest in China Nav-Info Co., Ltd (“China Nav-
Info”), a company engaging in the manufacture of
location-based navigation products and provision of
related services, with registered share capital of
RMB63,400,000; 40% equity interest in CATIC Siwei
Co., Ltd. ("CATIC Siwei"), a company engaging in the
provision of aero-photographic services, with registered
capital of RMB56,758,150; and 20% equity interest in
Ning Bo Dawn Aerospace Bio-Science Developing Co.,
Ltd. (“Ning Bo Dawn”), a company engaging in the
research and development of biological products, with
registered share capital of RMB20,000,000. All of these
companies were registered in the PRC.

BERAFTMN2I %R A= (—RNREEE
e HErREEMEIEROAR @ Zft
& 7K /5,000,000 A R#E) ~ db =04 [E
HEMEEFMERAR ([IEREF]) B
2871 %A R (— RN EFRETLEM
EmkREEEREHAR - FMEXRA
63,400,0007T A R#) « P4 &M= H R
RAE ([PO4ER]) B40%RAEZ (—K
REREMEBERBOHAE - THER
#456,758,1507C A RH) R %) R 5 ALfin K
EYRHERAEER AR ([ZRERFA]) K
20% M AR (—RIEERRARAZED
EmiAar - Zft & A& %&20,000,0007T A
R¥) - BERRZHRFRHEM -
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

During the year, the Group’s interest in China Nav-Info
had been diluted from 28.71% to 20.14% (including
direct interest of 16.49% and indirect interest of
3.65%) through various capital transactions of China
Nav-Info. A gain on deemed disposal of the Group’s
interest in China Nav-Info amounting to
HK$32,919,641 was derived and was credited to the
consolidated income statement for the year. As a result
of the above dilution, in the opinion of the directors,
the Group had lost its significant influence over China
Nav-Info and the directors have designated the Group’s
investment in China Nav-Info as an available-for-sale
investment. (note 21(b)).

On 26 December 2007, the Group disposed of its 10%
interest in Ning Bo Dawn to a major shareholder of
Ning Bo Dawn for a cash consideration of
RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,565,310). Before the disposal, Ning Bo Dawn
was 20% owned by the Group and was accounted for
as an associate with share of net assets of
HK$8,338,655. Upon disposal, a gain on disposal of
an associate of HK$4,395,983 was credited to the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2007. The remaining 10% interest in Ning
Bo Dawn with carrying amount of HK$4,169,328 was
reclassified to available-for-sale investment (note 21(b))
thereafter.

During the year, the Group entered into a series of
arrangement with an independent third party, to
dispose of the Group’s 40% equity interest in CATIC
Siwei at its then carrying amount and no gain or loss
was generated from the said disposal. Subsequent to
such disposal, the Group is no longer the shareholder
of CATIC Siwei.

Pursuant to another agreement, the Group acquired
from the above party certain rights derived from the
interest so disposed of as mentioned above for a
consideration of HK$19,711,216. As a result, in the
opinion of the directors, it is appropriate to account
for such an interest using the equity method of
accounting and therefore include it in the balance of
this account as at 31 December 2007.

The above entities were not audited by Ernst & Young
Hong Kong or other member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network.

19.

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

BeEnAER (&

FRN - AEELBBRARSER
BENIL R B 2 BEM28.71%%#
SEZE20.14% (BIEE##EZ16.49%
N R R 3.65%) © A H
32,919,641 B L2 R AR ERE
ERtREH 2 BEE T
BREFAFRGZEFBER - B
ThEtEE BEERE AEEE
KELRBHTNERATEN  EF
BAEBRIERBHNEEREAR
A ERNIRE (HE21(0)) -

RZZBEZEF+-_A=+"H &
& E AR 4 K {E8,000,0007T A R &
(B 7 #98,565,310/8 7T) A1 2K B
FHAZ—ZEEREHEERER
R4 210%HE - RHEER - 2
WRFARAEBEEF20%Em &
EABE R RNR (DHEEFEAE
8,338,655/%870) - R &R - 1 E
Bt N B 2§58 4,395,983 T 2 &t
ABE-_ZEE+F+-_A=+—H
IEFEZEAFBER - REFERF
L Z2HT10%ER (REEA
4,169,328 L) KA BN HHEET
HHENKRE (K:F210)) °

TR AEER-ZHF UL =FHE
T—E2BERE NERKREELE
AR B0 #EE R 40% PR AN HE
7 RSN EEE E AN ERE
B HER AEETBEMOAE
BARR e

BES—0HE ASBRZE=
EBA—MOEFEEERDNRRK =
o REA19,711,2168 7T - B
Iy EERAEBEELZES s AR
HAERE FIUNBRE_ZZTLF
T+ A=+ HAKRBZEHR -

AEERBYIFHLKBERLKE
RE@ZEMKE RRERZ -
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. BE AR ER (&
(continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRINEAEEBERRIREER
information of the Group’s associates at the balance EBEZFZELFR_FTRF+
sheet dates and for the years ended 31 December 2007 AT HEFEZHBEENE
and 2006: £
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEEREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT
Assets BE 86,249 236,709
Liabilities =R (28,598) (68,676)
Revenues Lo 184,950 155,406
Profit/(loss) m A (& R) 60,306 (113,478)

20. FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT 20. EC120 EH 2 i EE

EC120

The balance represents the carrying value of the Group’s EHREASER_ZEZF{H M
interest in 80% of CATIC's interest in the net income KR AR FTE ZEC120I8 B BT 2
in relation to Project EC120 which was acquired from FUA 2 80% Ewm » HEHREE °
CATIC in 2002. Project EC120 is a jointly-controlled EC120BE R—ER— L NL=F+
operation established in October 1992 by CATIC in co- FEHAMBBAARIEBIE =%
operation with Eurocopter S.A. and Singapore Eurocopter S.A.JX Singapore
Aerospace Ltd., both independent third parties, to Aerospace Ltd.pk 3 2 £ B 2 1B
develop, manufacture and globally distribute the multi- B-ZEQrABERBLERSER
purpose EC120 helicopters. T BERRIREIHECI208 5% 2

ZHEEH -

CATIC’s net income derived from Project EC120 is R A QB R EEC120E B 2 %
limited to CATIC's share of income, net of all expenses, WA - R R A AR FITEECTI20
to be derived from its interest in Project EC120 in HEERMEEZEGUATIEE Z
relation to (i) the sale and production of parts and WACBRFTBERS) : (VEEREE
spares of helicopters and profits accrued to CATIC from BEARTHG  RYPMEAEAAFR
the sale of helicopters globally; (ii) the recovery of EHEEEAM 2 BETRA (DI
non-recurring costs accrued to CATIC; (iii) commission Bl FF i B4R R Al FE AT 2 FEEE AL
income accrued to CATIC from the sale of helicopters (iR B R RSB B A
by CATIC; and (iv) administrative income accrued to ZHEMBE AT ETHAERA &
CATIC from the operations of Project EC120. (ivF AT 4 A FIREC120I8 B & &8

ZREFERIA -
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FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT
EC120 (continued)

As the investment represents a contractual right to
receive cash in the future from another enterprise, the
investment has been classified as a non-current
available-for-sale financial asset and stated at cost less
any impairment losses. The allowance for impairment
have been estimated using discounted cash flow
analysis which requires the directors to make estimates
about the expected future cash flows, which are
discounted at the current rate of 8% (2006: 11%).

During the year, having considered the future cash
flows and profit forecasts of Project EC120, the
directors made a provision for impairment of
HK$14,000,000 (2006: HK$4,800,000) which was
charged to the consolidated income statement in the
current year.

The cost less accumulated impairment losses of the
financial asset is analysed as follows:

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

20. EC1200 BB 2 Bi 5 E &

(4%
HRZAREREARES —HKEXE
WER & 2 &N - BtZRE

ENBEARERDAHKENNKE
E + I B % AR BT RDRUE B 1R 5

cREBRFEEHRBARRERE

7Fﬁ1$.ﬁr WiR8% (ZFFNEF :
11%) BUREYLL RITER - Z DT EK
EXFHAMERARAXREREZ
flr &t o

FER o KREEECI20BR 2 AKE
&= Rim A TRl %%E%Hﬂ
BB B 5 14,000,000/8 7T (ZZZ N
4 : 4,800,000/87T) © RERBL
EFEERMRE -

PBEEZHKARERREERZ
DT ¢

Group
rEH
HK$
BT
Cost: AR
At 1 January 2007 and RZZETLHF-—H—AK
31 December 2007 —EELF+_A=+— 39,759,462
Accumulated impairment: ZBERE :
At 1 January 2007 RZEE+HE—H—H 13,800,000
Impairment during the year FRREE 14,000,000
At 31 December 2007 RZEBEE+F+_A=+—H 27,800,000
Fair value: N
At 31 December 2007 R-ZBELtE+=-A=+—H 11,959,462
At 31 December 2006 R_ZEEXRFT_A=+—H 25,959,462
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

21. ATHHENRE

INVESTMENTS Group
rEH
2007 2006
—EERLF —EEREF
HK$ HK$
B BT
Listed equity investment in REBZ ETRAEZE -
Hong Kong, at fair value BRATE (Kit@E)
(note (a)) 45,753,750 79,887,500
Unlisted investments, at cost JELETKRE - HAEKAR 53,065,716 -
(note (b)) (K1 & (b))
Unlisted investments, at fair value: JELETRE LA F(E
Convertible bond (note (c)) AR ES (Bt et () 14,854,405 =
Club debentures &S 2,047,109 380,000
Guaranteed funds and REES RERE
certificates of deposits - 10,834,600
115,720,980 91,102,100
Notes: HaE -
(a) The directors had designated the Group’s 10% equity (a) RZZEZERF+ZA=+—8 -

investment in Sino Gas Group limited (“Sino Gas”) to
be an available-for-sale investment as at 31 December
2006. According to the Group’s accounting policy,
the fair value loss of HK$34,133,750 of such
investments had been recognised directly in equity
during the year ended 31 December 2007 (2006: gain

of HK$37,796,956).

EZEEAKERPIRZEEE
ERABR ([HHZE]) 210%
BAREERE R HBENR
H o REBEAEENGIBE %
ARENBEZE-ZZELE+ A
=t HLEFENRFEERR

34,133,750 L (Z T TR F ¢

M58 37,796,95678
REHER o

T EEER
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

During the year, as a result of the reduction in the
equity interests in China Nav-Info and Ning Bo Dawn
(note 19 to the financial statements), the directors
have designated the Group’s interests in these
companies at their then carrying amounts of
HK$63,285,262 and HK$4,169,328, respectively, as
available-for-sale investments thereafter.

On 20 December 2007, the Group entered into two
sales and purchase agreements with two independent
third parties to dispose of 4% equity interest in China
Nav-Info for a cash consideration of HK$40,985,906,
resulting in a gain on disposal of HK$26,597,032.

During the year, the Group entered into a series of
arrangement with an independent third party, to
dispose of the Group’s remaining 12.49% equity
interest in China Nav-Info and no gain or loss was
generated from the said disposal. Subsequent to such
disposal, the Group is no longer the shareholder of
China Nav-Info.

Pursuant to another agreement, the Group acquired
from the above party certain rights derived from the
interest so disposed of as mentioned above. As a
result, in the opinion of the directors, it is appropriate
to account for such financial interest as an available-
for-sale investment as at 31 December 2007.

21.

Bt 75 ARk B A

—2TtF+-A=+-8

AHEHENRE (&)

Hrat

(b)

(%)

FA - ARAEERIL R EH &
R R 7 ALH) R AN = R 4 (B
BHMERME19) EFEHAE
BRNZERANERD IRZSE
NAEE R AR (63,285,262/%8
7T 54,169,328/ JT 15 7 A3 Al
HENEKE -

RZTTZ+LF+A=+H " ' &
SEEREBLE =EFLMIE
EEH#E WERBEERKRE
40,985,906/ 7T ) & A 4t = B 37
WA% A  EmMEEALE
#1726,597,032/8 7T °

FR - AEEE-FBIE=F
ETEERY HEAREER

it/‘?\.%ﬁZﬂﬁ?Q 49% & A 1
% EE A AR S

Eﬁ°ﬁ¢é AEBTFZI

REFHORRE

REZ— i - AEBRZE
:%ﬁA*”%Eﬁéﬁimw
miE  BEERR NR_TTLHF
+_ﬂ:+—B'QE%%%%
BsERAHEHENKERE -
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@)

On 25 January 2007, Billirich entered into an
agreement with Sino Gas to purchase a convertible
bond issued by Sino Gas with a principal amount of
HK$15,600,000. The convertible bond is interest-
bearing at a rate of 2% per annum and is convertible
into ordinary shares of Sino Gas at HK$0.65 per share
(subject to adjustment upon the change in capital
structure of Sino Gas) and the convertible bond will
mature in two years after the issue of the convertible
bond. Sino Gas may request Billirich to convert when
the market price of Sino Gas reaches certain
predetermined prices. Assuming a full conversion was
made by Billirich, the convertible bond can be
converted into 24,000,000 ordinary shares of Sino
Gas. On 25 May 2007, the conversion price of
HK$0.65 per share was adjusted to HK$0.633 per
share as a result of the issuance of the share capital
of Sino Gas pursuant to a share placement during the
year.

The convertible bond is a hybrid instrument that
includes a non-derivative host contract and an
embedded derivative. The non-derivative host contract,
representing the bond component (the “Sino Gas
Bond"”), has been designated as an available-for-sale
The embedded derivative,

investment. being a

derivative financial instrument, represents the
conversion option (the “Embedded Derivative Asset”),
which allows Billirich to convert the convertible bond
into ordinary shares of Sino Gas at an established
conversion rate (i.e., HK$0.633 per share) before the

maturity date of the convertible bond.

As at 19 March 2007 (the issue date of the convertible
bond), the fair values of the Sino Gas Bond and the
Embedded Derivative Asset were stated at
HK$14,286,395 and HK$1,313,605,
based on valuation performed by independent

respectively,

professionally qualified valuers.
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Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2007

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(c) (continued)

As at 31 December 2007, the fair values of the Sino
Gas Bond and the Embedded Derivative Asset were
stated at HK$14,854,405 and HK$638,365 (note 29),
respectively, based on valuation performed by
independent professionally qualified valuers.
Accordingly, a fair value gain of HK$568,010 related
to the Sino Gas Bond was credited to the consolidated
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve and
a fair value loss related to the Embedded Derivative
Asset of HK$675,240 (note 29) was charged to the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2007.

The above investments consist of investments in equity
securities which were designated as available-for-sale
investments and have no fixed maturity date or coupon
rate. During the year, the gross loss of the Group’s
available-for-sale investments recognised directly in
equity amounted to HK$32,480,741 (2006: gain of
HK$37,184,956).

The fair value of a listed equity investment is based on
quoted market value. The fair values of unlisted
available-for-sale equity investments have been
estimated using a valuation technique based on
assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the
directors to make estimates about the expected future
cash flows including expected future dividends and
proceeds on subsequent disposal of the shares. The
directors believe that the estimated fair value resulting
from the valuation technique, which is recorded in the
consolidated balance sheet, and the related change in
fair value, which is recorded in the consolidated equity,
are reasonable, and that they are the most appropriate
values at the balance sheet date.
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21.

22.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS (continued)

As at 31 December 2006, certain of the Group’s
unlisted investments amounting to HK$10,834,600
were pledged to banks to secure certain banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 34(a)).

As at 31 December 2007, certain unlisted equity
investments with a carrying amount of HK$53,065,716
(2006: nil) were stated at cost because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that
the directors are of the opinion that their fair value
cannot be measured reliably.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in the Group's deferred tax assets and
liabilities during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Group

21.

22.

AHEHENRE (&)

R-_ZTEAF+-_A=+—8" &
£010,834,600/8 L 2/ T A& B 3
LEWIREBRHER TRT - ERAE
EERSE TRITHME ZER (FiF
34(a)) °

B’\_ggtEJr*ﬁ:Jr*El  BR
[ {8 453,065,716/ 70 (ZZ T /X
F o \) 2B T LMIEERKAT
R BAARGEATEM2EER
REKX  UWBEZRAKEATE
NEEH A SEET £ o

iIF: 3E i 1]
$¢ILLHE§FﬁE%F¢
ZEEBIOT
EEBEEE
rEE
2007
—

Losses available
for offset
against future
taxable profit

] {4 35 88 K 2R

ERB =N ZEER

HK$

H# T

At 1 January 2007 RZEE+LF—H—H 3,700,000
Deferred tax credited to the income FREMBRFTAZEERIE*

statement during the year* 2,462,000

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEKTE AR (K :£39) (6,162,000)

Gross deferred tax assets
at 31 December 2007

R-_FBELHET+_A=+—H
ZEEFAEERS
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22. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 22. EEERIE (&2
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHREES
Group KEE
2007
—EFLF

Revaluation of
property, plant
and equipment

BEfMWE -
R 5 &
HK$
#E
At 1 January 2007 RZEZELF—-H—H 4,511,909
Deferred tax credited to the income FAREMNBERFTAZBELERIA
statement during the year* (790,791)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZEZELF+_A=+—H
at 31 December 2007 ZIEERIBAERE 3,721,118
* Total deferred tax credited to the income statement 3 Bz—_ZZ+F+-_A=+—H
during the year ended 31 December 2007 was IEFEAEMNERT A ZIRLED A
HK$3,252,791 (note 10). 4% 53,252,791 7t (M &

10) °
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22. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Group

22. EEBIIR (&

ELBAEE
A EE

Losses available
for offset
against future

2006
—EERF

taxable profit Others Total
A {5 85 R 2Rk
J& 2R 75 s A
2 EE E A, a5
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2006 RZETREF
—H—H 4,110,862 495,527 4,606,389
Deferred tax charged to the 4 R F B & 1%
income statement during 2 AR RE 7 I8 *
the year* (410,862) (495,527) (906,389)
Gross deferred tax assets RZZTZEARF
at 31 December 2006 +ZA=+—H2
BEMIREERR 3,700,000 - 3,700,000
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22. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

Group

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

22. EEHE (&)
EEHRES S
AEE

2006
—EERF

Revaluation of

property, plant

and equipment Others Total
EEME -
% 55 AN 5% 1 H A AEr
HK$ HK$ HK$
T AT BT
At 1 January 2006 RZEZTF—H—H 6,401,374 (317,309) 6,084,065
Deferred tax charged/ FRNEFEER
(credited) to the income Nk GtA) 2
statement during the year* & %&£ 18 * (1,889,465) 317,309 (1,572,156)
Gross deferred tax liabilities R ZZZ/RNF
at 31 December 2006 +=—A=+—H
ZEBEERIERBELRE 4,511,909 - 4,511,909
@ Total deferred tax charged to the income statement * HE-ZT"F+-_A=+—H
during the year ended 31 December 2006 was IEFEEFERNGR 2 BEHRIE
HK$665,767 (note 10). 48 %8 5 665,76778 T (Hfa£10) o
At 31 December 2006, the Group had tax losses arising RZEERF+ZA=1+—H =&

in Hong Kong of HK$1,961,200 and in the United
States of HK$11,192,000 that were available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits
of certain subsidiaries in which the losses arose. As
the Group expected that the subsidiaries would have
sufficient taxable profits generated in the future to
utilise these tax losses, a deferred tax asset had been
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2006.

SETAARERELECHERBE
71,961,200/ 7T 2 11,192,000%
7T AT REREEEEE S T
BRRZRRERTEF o ARA
SEEHZMBARTARKEER
HERM RN EAZERIBEE -
BUEREBE—SENFT+_A=+
—BIEEER  ETEHBEBEERRE
iR o
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22.

23.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At 31 December 2007, the Group had aggregate tax
losses arising in Hong Kong, in the PRC and in the
United States of HK$15,455,989 (2006:
HK$25,897,308) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised.

At 31 December 2007, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2006: nil) for taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
certain of the Group’s subsidiaries or associates as the
Group has no liability to additional tax should such
amounts be remitted.

At the balance sheet date, the Company did not have
any significant temporary differences for which deferred
tax assets/liabilities were not provided.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to
the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

DEPOSIT FOR ACQUISITION OF AN
INVESTMENT

During the year, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement with CATIC, to acquire an equity interest in
an unlisted investment. A deposit has been paid at the
balance sheet date. Further details of the transaction
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
7 November 2007. The directors are in the process of
obtaining relevant approvals from the relevant
authorities which, in the opinion of the directors, will
be obtained in due course. In the opinion of directors,
the investment is intended to be held for a long term
purpose. Accordingly, the deposit and the direct
professional fee totalling HK$20,029,325 was classified
as a non-current asset in the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2007.

22.
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SETEARS PEERERELEZH
THE A /515,455,989 L (= F
TN ¢ 25,897,308/ ) ¢ Al FR{E
HiH IR BB QR 2 KRR ERTE
e aRZEEERERIKEALIE
EBREZHBAR @ mAXLFRER
Be B FE R T m A A B) A A IE B
B RETEBRREENIBEE -

R-BTLF+-_A=+—H &
BERAKEETHBARNKBEQ
AlZARELANMENZREARE
AREREEHREAB (ZFTERX
FoE) BDERAEEEELS
BRI EBEMBEIFIERE -

REER - KRB EARFIELER
HEE/ABEREBEZENERLE
EE

AN A [A) BCRUIK B A B B TS AE
AMERER -

BiERENERS

FA - AEEEP ML RF L
e ER  AKRE—EELD
BREZRE REEBEXN TR
& o RRPDZE—FHBHINA
RAR—_ZEZTLF+— A+t BT
ZRE -EREFREBIAMESSE
AN (ZEERABEREZBEE
13) - BEERE  ZEREBERR
ERRERFE - Al R=ZTZ L
&+ - H=+—H8 '@ & #
20,029,325 L 2 ike N EEE X
BERWIBEAGAEEREBRZ—
HIEREBEE o



ANNUAL REPORT 2007 « —EZ t £ F )

24.

25.

Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2007

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

INVENTORIES 24.
Group
AEME
2007 2006
—EELHF —ZZEERX
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials R 17,399,830 15,431,748
Sub-materials 8l R & - 191,911
17,399,830 15,623,659
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) 25. BREFRR/(&&
CONTRACT CUSTOMERS HNEFMHE)
Group
rEH
2007 2006
—EELHF TEZRF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Gross amounts due from contract & XEE R 4E5E
customers - 70,550,508

Gross amounts due to contract REHNBPERIEBEER

customers

(113,568,100)

(43,017,592)

EHREANESEHE
Z 3 0 A6 R
AERZER

Contract costs incurred to date
on long term construction
contracts plus attributable
profits, less foreseeable losses

Less: Progress payments received R B FE WU B SR

and receivable

2,677,170,878

(2,720,188,470)

(43,017,592)
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26. TRADE AND RETENTION 26. ERESRARRE S
RECEIVABLES
Group
KEH
2007 2006
—ETLEHF —TETX
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables B E 5 8RR 22,857,957 172,269,214
Retention receivables & UK 1R B & - 96,403,859
22,857,957 268,673,073
Impairment (B (20,377)  (16,945,111)

22,837,580

251,727,962
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Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2007

TRADE AND RETENTION
RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2006, the Group’s trade receivables
mainly represented progress payments receivable from
facade building contracting works and retention
receivables represented certified contract payments in
respect of works performed, for which payments were
withheld by customers for retention purposes, and
were released to the Group pursuant to the provisions
of the relevant contracts after the completion of the
projects in question. The Group adopted credit policies
which are consistent with the trade practices prevalent
in the building industry in Hong Kong. The Group
recognised its trade receivables when the value of the
subcontracting works was certified by the architect.
Pursuant to the trade practices, the main contractor
from time to time made applications for payment
certificates which included the certified value of the
nominated subcontracting works. Normally within 14
days of receipt by the main contractor of the payment
from the employer against the payment certificate from
the architect, the main contractor shall pay to the
subcontractors the certified value of their
subcontracting works, less amounts previously paid
and retentions attributable to the subcontracting works
as explained above. No aged analysis of retention
receivables was presented as the amount retained was
provided for on each payment up to a maximum
amount calculated on a prescribed percentage of the
contract sum.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s trade receivables
mainly represent the receivable from the sale of electric
and steam power. The Group’s trading terms with
these customers are mainly on credit, except for new
customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally 60 days,
extending up to 90 days for major customers. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
The carrying amounts of the trade receivables
approximate to their fair values.

26.
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26. TRADE AND RETENTION 26. EWESRIFARGRES
RECEIVABLES (continued) (&)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the REFER  ERESERIZERH
HARMBRERE REROTOT

balance sheet date, based on the invoice date and net
of provisions, is as follows:

Group

rEE
2007 2006
—EBLF —EETREF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current B 5 20,085,923 130,271,356
31-60 days 31-60H 2,259,450 35,819,695
61-90 days 61-90H 464,476 2,082,328
Over 90 days 90H A £ 27,731 1,730,313
22,837,580 169,903,692

The movements in provision for impairment of the trade

FEUE 5 B M ARE & 2 BE R HE

and retention receivables are as follows: BEIINR -
Group
REH
2007 2006
—EELEHF =il g
HK$ HK$
H#E T BT
At 1 January nR—A—H 16,945,111 17,958,784
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) # ol 2 B EE (A :+6) (426,965) (1,015,791)
Amount written off as uncollectible &~ 8] Uz [B] #fi $8 2 X IE (5,830,620) =
Disposal of subsidiaries HE W B A A (10,669,016) =
Exchange realignment PE 5 38 =& 1,867 2,118
20,377 16,945,111
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Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2007

TRADE AND RETENTION
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
and retention receivables is a provision for individually
impaired trade and retention receivables of HK$20,377
(2006: HK$16,945,111) with a carrying amount of
HK$20,377 (2006: HK$16,945,111). The individually
impaired trade and retention receivables relate to
customers that are in financial difficulties and only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

The aged analysis of the trade and retention receivables

26.

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

BREZRERRRE S
(&

ATALMERE ZERARRE S 2
WERBE 2R ENRE2EKE S
R RIRE S 2 ##20,3778 T (=
TEINE 1 16,945,1117%87T) @ BRE
BEAR203778B L (ZEZT X F ¢
16,945,111/ 7T) © {ERIREE 2 B
B 50K 5 &R B 5 B R B 7% R 2
ZLEFAEARE B EKERTE
HAR] T UL E o ANE BN R PR 5% L A4S
the LREEMERKEMEER
7 .

ARG BB IEZ B E 5 IR KRR

that are not considered to be impaired is as follows: E&RETAT :
Group
rEHE
2007 2006
—EELHF ZETREF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Neither past due nor impaired R 38 B fo R OB E 22,345,373 136,568,564
Less than 1 month past due BEHLR—EA 464,476 31,546,001
1 to 3 months past due BH—=={EA 27,731 1,789,127
22,837,580 169,903,692

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
which there is no recent history of default.

Receivables that are past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.

K@ EITRARRBE 2 FE W AR 3R 2 3R
ZHILEFPER  ZBEFFPER
ERESE -

%
AT

238 H I i RO (B 2 M8 YRR R B R
ZHEAESERARIBEREZTE
YEFER  REBELR A2
RIESRA  MEARZLERIE
HERRERE BEEEEHE
EREHREHRADRESA 2
Ym e REBWRRZLEESRZ E
HRETMERRKEMBEERA -
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 27. AARE - ZEekH M

OTHER RECEIVABLES & Uit BR =X
Group Company
AEE AQF
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EEtE  ZETIRF  ZEBEtE ZTEIRN
HKS HKS$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Prepayments BAHE 20,884,378 13,940,786 695,346 482,633
Deposits and other receivables &% J E 4t & U B 3 41,577,069 44,312,280 640,579 3,579,391
62,461,447 58,253,066 1,335,925 4,062,024

bt E ESEE B RIE &
ALt sz M EEREKITE
KESEMEBERRER -

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there is no recent history
of default.

28. EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR 28. EREFZKRAFEIE

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS WREARE
Group
rEHE
2007 2006
—EEBLF —EETREF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Listed equity investment in REBZ ETRAEE -
Hong Kong, at fair value bi-/NS L =] 54,189,450 79,887,500
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EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

The investment represents an equity interest in Sino
Gas. Upon initial recognition, the investment has been
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss as it is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented investment strategy of the Group. Such
designation is in line with the Group’s strategy and
increased its flexibility on resources allocation. Any fair
value gains or losses on these investments are
recognised in the income statement.

The Group held 145,250,000 shares in Sino Gas at the
beginning of the year and on 15 March 2007, the
Group disposed of 30,000,000 of such ordinary shares
of Sino Gas to a company beneficially owned by a
director of Sino Gas at HK$0.4 per share for a total
aggregate consideration of HK$12,000,000, and issued
a call option to that company to acquire a maximum
of an additional 45,000,000 ordinary shares of Sino
Gas from the Group at an exercise price of HK$0.5 per
share on or before 14 March 2009.

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

28. BREREAFEIE

MBRARE ()

HRERTRREZRAER - 1R
BASEKRERBIEIAEEX
o ZRAREUNRNFEOERE
TTEEMTE - Fb R A6 R
BIEZBRERESEBBRRBRAF
BEIENMBEE  HOBEERE
Bz REE—2 - WHBEEMERD
EMEENE - EAHFERENAF
EMBRERANFBRER -

A& B R F 415 B 145,250,0008% F
MRz  R_ZEZELF=A
+HA  AEEZRFROABTEE
30,000,000/% 1 H 2 88 2 & B T
PHRE, —RESTERBEAZIAR
A - BHREHS 12,000,000 7T -
RAZAREHAEERE  F.20]
AZZETANF=A WA ZATIA
FROSETTHITEERAREBERE
%8 4N & % 45,000,0000% 1 i 2 88 2
L@k Mm -
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28. EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(continued)

The consideration of HK$12,000,000 received
represented total consideration received for the sale of
30,000,000 ordinary shares and the call option issued
to a company beneficially owned by a director of Sino
Gas to acquire 45,000,000 ordinary shares. Based on
the valuation performed by independent professionally
qualified valuers, the fair value of the call option was
valued at HK$5,352,874 such that the consideration
attributable to the 30,000,000 ordinary shares was
HK$6,647,126. Accordingly, a loss on disposal of the
30,000,000 shares amounting to HK$10,467,883 was
recorded in the consolidated income statement. Besides,
a derivative liability of HK$5,352,874 was recognised
in respect of the said option issued by the Group (see

note 29 below).

As at 31 December 2007, together with the loss on
disposal of HK$10,467,883 above, a fair value loss of

HK$35,913,869 (2006: fair value gain

HK$37,796,956) was charged to the consolidated
income statement. The fair value of the listed equity

investment was based on quoted market prices.

28. BREREAFEIE

MBRARE ()

2 YEX 2 12,000,000 70 2 KRB T}
K 2R H £ 30,000,000 8% & 58 B LA &
BHRERETRRRE . —BE
EEaBEBZIRAANUNREB
45,000,000 % & i I AT Y ER 2 481K
B - REBUEXSERMERME
T2 B - REHEZ AT EH#G
E745,352,8748 7L - Bt ZHREE
30,000,000 ¥ @ik 2 KB &
6,647,1268 7T ° - &
30,000,000 B 7 2 & 18
10,467,883/ Jt E & A 4R & F 8
Foltsh BERt LB B 2 B
5,352,874 B L Z T EAE (R
TEMEE29) ©

RZBEEL+F+-_A=+—H &
A b at & §51810,467,8837% 7T
35,913,869 T2 A FEEE (ZF
TN ¢ 37,796,95658 5T 2 A F{E
FE) BEEGEFIERMBER - LWk
KB 2 AR FETDBEFHRTER

= o
A
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29.

Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2007

EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

The market value of the Group’s equity investment at
fair value through profit or loss at the date of these

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

28. BRERELAFEIE
MBRARE (&)

AEEZEBEREAFEIENK
AEERUEFMMHRERTIE BB

financial statements was approximately Z T{E#) 534,922,090/ 7 - &8
HK$34,922,090. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Bi&  RABREZZERAER
changes were made to the holding of such equity ZHEBEEETEL - FBERME
interests in Sino Gas. Please see note 47 for details. 47
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 29. fTE€mMIA
INSTRUMENTS
Group
rEH
2007 2006
—BEBLHF —ETRE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Asset: BE
Embedded derivative asset BRAXTEEE
(note 21) (Btat21) 638,365 -
Liability: =N
Derivative liability MEBRE 2,209,425 =

The Group’'s derivative financial instruments are
managed and their performance are evaluated on a
fair value basis. Any fair value gains or losses are
recognised in the income statement.

The embedded derivative asset was acquired as a result
of the purchase of the Sino Gas Convertible Bonds on
19 March 2007 as detailed in note 21 to the financial
statements. The asset was stated as a derivative
financial instrument at HK$638,365 as at 31 December
2007 based on the valuation performed by independent
professionally qualified valuers. A fair value loss of
HK$675,240 was charged to the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2007.

AKREZTESRTADIZAFE
EEEELFE - E 2 FEMNE
HEBRBRMBRAER -

BRARTEBENRAE-_ZZTLF
:H JFjIE,E\%,\EP/Hﬂ/%HZ—J}ﬁHX{E
HFiMER - BN B IREM T
21 BBEBILEHEA ERGERME
T2fhE ZEER_ZEZLF+
— A=1+—H1%638,3658 LHIEE A
TESMTIE - 6752408 T2 AF
EEEEREBEEZE_ZZT+tF+=A8
=T —HIEFEZEEMNBERAN
[5,/%\\ o
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29.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The derivative liability, being a financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss, is measured at fair value
with gain or loss being recognised through the income
statement. It arose as a result of the issue of a call
option for the acquisition of 45,000,000 ordinary shares
of Sino Gas as detailed in note 28 to the financial
statements. The derivative liability has been stated as
a derivative financial instrument at HK$2,209,425 as
at 31
performed by independent professionally qualified
valuers. A fair value gain of HK$3,143,449 was credited
to the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2007.

December 2007 based on the valuation

The fair values of derivative financial instruments have
been estimated using valuation techniques based on
assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the
directors to make estimates, including expected cash
flows and volatility of the underlying securities. The
directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting
from the valuation technique, which are recorded in
the consolidated balance sheet, and the related changes
in fair values, which are recorded in the consolidated
income statement are reasonable, and that they are
the most appropriate values at the balance sheet date.
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the derivative
liability was cancelled. Please see note 47 for details.

29.

TTEEmI A (&

MESRMITEABEBEREZEATE
HE2HMBEE  DEATETE
WHEFEREREZ o b DA
t 7R i B DA 4 3R B8 45,000,000 %
HROBREE 2 R MEE - FFIEH
RIS HRERKT 5228 - RIBEBIL B
EERGEMETZEE  ZITE
BER-_ZETLtF+=ZA=1+—H
2,209,425 AR AT E SR T
B 03,143,449 L 2 A EFHEE
REBEE_ZEZELF+-_A=+—H
IEFEFAZEFEE -

MESBMIAZAFEDIAMRKE
B BREEREGETER - MzER
BRWEBBER 2 TIHEKHE R
BT  HEEESIELHGHR - 2
BREHREREREBEES 2K
18 - EFMAEERGERNE D m
THREEEBBERARZETATE
B UREGEMNERARZ AT
BEEPELSE  UALEFAZESE
HEME #EBR% TEBEE®
B - FEIE R MIEE47 -
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30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 30. BEREBEEEEHEIK

AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS HEX
Group Company
biN | b NG|
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EEtE T RF CZBEtEE —ZTTRFE
HKS HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT
Time deposits THER 492,283,203 108,613,856 443,107,614 35,207,882
Less: Pledged long term time 6 : B &R 2 E 4
deposits (note 34(a)) T (KB 7£34(a) - (9,360,000 - =
Pledged short term time EEAREESRER
deposits (note 34(a)(iv)) (B 5#34(a)(iv)) (36,327,623)  (64,045,974) - =
455,955,580 35,207,882 443,107,614 35,207,882
Cash and bank balances ReRBIER 52,119,022 76,884,259 12,799,844 6,256,523
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHeEE 508,074,602 112,092,141 455,907,458 41,464,405
At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances REER  XEBUARKLEH 2

and the time deposits of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to HK$88,045,113 (2006:
HK$61,986,600). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and
three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents
and the pledged deposits approximate to their fair
values.

BeRkBRTEBREAFTRA
88,045,113 L (Z T Z N F
61,986,600 7T) - AR A E H
B AHMER  AMBEFERA
thZ SNE B IR AR R AETE - EER
NEEERTE  AEEASERER
RETINERBRZBITHEARKER
BMAEEME o

ROTFRESEARTERNEAFE
B BRI RETR - RAFAKENA
BRSFL  FENF-—BE=E
ASETRMARNEHERFR - I
REBRHERERNEGFE - R
THEEREERZBITERTIIAE
MPERELERTEEREZR
7 BERRSFENURCERF
FOEmEEZERAFERS -



CATIC International Holdings Limited R EfiZHEMTEFRZERER A A

Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2007

BB RMET —ezts+-a=+-8

31. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 31. ENESZRIRERE
An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at NEER  EBRNESERRERIR
the balance sheet date, based on the invoice date, is BHEHHZERE AT
as follows:
Group
REH
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$ HKS$
H# T BT
Current B HR 78,753,628 99,604,768
31-60 days 31-60H 608,672 5,600,765
61-90 days 61-90H - 434,094
Over 90 days 90H Ak 1,395,895 3,929,066
80,758,195 109,568,693

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 90-day terms. The carrying amounts
of the trade payables approximate to their fair values.

ZERNEZERRD TS X —
ARIZ0A MIRBIE - BN E B IR
MEEEREEAFERS -

32. WARRANTY PROVISION 32. RERE

Group

REE
2007 2006
—ETLHF —TTREF
HK$ HKS$
T BT
At 1 January Kn—H—H 10,301,487 10,230,124
Additional provision (note 6) RINEEE (FaEe) 2,900,000 3,920,000
Amount utilised during the year FAREFHAZzER (1,728,157) (3,848,637)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39)  HEK B R A (K :#39) (11,473,330) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H - 10,301,487
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33.
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WARRANTY PROVISION (continued) — 32. {R¥EE (&
The Group provided warranties to its customers on RE B IR E K3 TE 2 & XA 5h
facade contracting works in accordance with terms and AEIEIRAEZEFPRERSE
conditions as stipulated in contracts, under which Bt ABREZIEBETEERE
defective works are rectified or replaced. The amount o REBBBCSENRBETS
of the warranty provision was estimated based on the IR &8 T LA - fhat 2 &
past experience of the level of defective works and ENEFBEEETURTERREE
the estimation basis was reviewed on an ongoing basis RrELEE] - REEHED AU B W
and revised where appropriate. The warranty provision WA 2 HEM B QA M
was disposed of as a result of the disposal of & °
subsidiaries set out in note 39 to the financial
statements.
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 33. HttENRIERENE
H
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an HiEAIRBI DGR - FHHER
average term of three months. The carrying amounts R=MER - EMENKIEZREE
of other payables approximate to their fair values. HEQNTERE °
INTEREST-BEARING BANK 34. FFEMRITER
BORROWINGS
2007 2006
ZRELE “IRRE
Effective Effective
contractual contractual
interest interest
Group rate (%) Maturity HKS rate (%) Maturity HK$
EZ EE
A5E ERFIE%) HHA BT BNFE%) 5|8A AT
Import loans - secured  # A&7 - B - - - Prime - 0.5 Within one year 47,476,134
53
E-05 -&R
Bank loans - secured 1753~ B HIBOR + 1.75 Within one year 96,017,131 HIBOR + 1.75 Within one year 120,137,749
t0 6.73 10 6.73
ERETRE -ER ERRIRE -ER
HE+1.75 KE+1.75
£6.73 £6.73
96,017,131 167,613,883
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34.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK 34. SFERITER (&
BORROWINGS (continued)
2007 2006
“ERLE —EERE
Effective Effective
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
Company rate (%) Maturity HK$ rate (%) Maturity HKS
EE EEZ
PN BHFIE %) %A B ANHE%) 3#A BT
Bank loans - secured ~ $R{TEH -~ BEA HIBOR + 1.75 Within 20,000,000 HIBOR + 1.75 Within 20,000,000
two months two months
EARTRE mEARA AERITAE mEAR
KE+175 fE +175
Notes: Bfat -
(a) As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s banking facilities (a) RZZEZELF+=A=+—8H -

were secured by:

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

a pledge of the Group’s and the Company’s
investment property with carrying value of
HK$24,200,000 (2006: HK$14,900,000) (note
14);

pledges of certain of the Group’s land and
buildings with an aggregate net book value
of approximately HK$30,817,213 (2006:
HK$38,631,489) (note 15);

pledges of certain of the Group’s leasehold
land with an aggregate net book value of
approximately HK$4,852,118 (2006:
HK$3,306,615) (note 16);

pledges of certain of the Group's short term
time deposits amounting to HK$36,327,623
(2006: HK$64,045,974) (note 30); and

REE 2 RITEEA TSRS
RER

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

KR B R A2 AR
H {8 & 24,200,0007% T
(22~

=

14,900,000/ 7T) 2 & &
Y2 (FfiE14)

BHAEBEREEFER
%A 4)/530,817,213%8 ¢
- T T KX F

38,631,489 L) 2 & T
T RAEF (HFaE15)

EHAEBEREEFER
%A #4) /54,852,118 T
- T FT KX F

3,306,615 L) 2 &
T (KraET16)

EvE L NS B
36,327,6238B L (=ZFZ
JN4F ¢ 64,045,974 7T)
2 & TR ETETR (A
##30) R
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(v) the Group’s short term bank loans of
RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$53,533,191) were guaranteed by /i 2 18
HmEFRAGF, BEMEEREAR DA
and #2805 B A BR A 7], independent third
parties (2006: short term bank loans of
RMB71,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$71,215,139) guaranteed by #7 /1 B 18 & #5
BERQA, BEMBEEREFER DA, MM
SMEBAER A A, AIERERIEDRDE, A
AEBHRERRARAG, MIBEREERR
A7 and HUINBE A ENZE AR 2 &, independent
third parties).

As at 31 December 2006, the Group's banking facilities
were also secured by the Group’s long term time
deposit of HK$9,360,000 (note 30), certain of the
Group's available-for-sale investments amounting to
HK$10,834,600 (note 21) and corporate guarantees
amounting to an aggregate of HK$185,000,000
executed by the Company (note 43).

(b) Except for secured bank loans of RMB71,000,000
(equivalent to HK$76,017,131) which are denominated
in RMB, all other bank borrowings are in Hong Kong
dollars.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company’s current borrowings approximate to their fair
values.

34.

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

SFERITER (&)

Hfat : ()

~

Z- e
HER

(v) AEEZEBEETER
50,000,0007T A R ¥ (49
8% 153,533,191 7T)
MBI E=EMMER
HREFRARA - BE
MEBREER QAR
M S8 & @A R A A
REER(CTTAE
RNEBZRBRITER
71,500,0007T A R (49
B 71,215,139% 7T)
MBYE=Fm/NEA
HHEFRAA - FE
MEEREERAAE
MMNEMEREFRAQ
Al AT ERREENR
AR T ERMES
MERRDR - HMIBR
BEEERAREMME
EEREBR A AR E
R) °

RZZBEXF+_A=+—8"
AEEZRITEENAREERS
279,360,000/ 7T (ff7#30) 2 &
HEBMER AXEEAEH
10,834,600 7T (ffa#21) 2 %H T
AHEEMNEE KERAAFH
B & 185,000,000 7t 2 A 7
ER (MF43)ERBER -

B T BHEMERITE 71,000,000
TARE (HEMR76,017,13175
T AARBELEEIN K2 B
LB TLEE -

ERARBNBERE ZREE
FEMRE °
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35. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases one of its motor vehicles under a
hire purchase arrangement which is repayable by
instalments of over 60 months and is classified as a
finance lease.

At 31 December 2007, the total future minimum lease
payments under the finance lease and their present
values were as follows:

Minimum lease payments

35.

BMEHEENKE

AEEREEABSOLZHEAERD
—&8)RE - RIZ601E A LA L5 BAfE
B XIFERERS -

R-BELF+_A=1T—H R
BEREHEZ RARREHERERE
MEBEWNT :

Present value of
minimum lease payments

BEREMN BEREANZRE
Group 2007 2006 2007 2006
S | “EEtE  ZTTRE  CZBEtE ZTESF
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Amounts payable: JERIFRIE -
Within one year —&R 58,452 233,808 57,841 222,456
In the second year £_F - 58,452 - 57,841
Total minimum finance lease ~ HEMEREM K
payments ok 58,452 292,260 57,841 280,297
Future finance charges ARIBHRL (611) (11,963)
Total net finance lease payables JEf} & & & 4 %5 57,841 280,297
Portion classified as current FIEREN B B2 B 1D
liabilities (57,841) (222,456)
Non-current portion JEm @ n - 57,841
At 31 December 2006 and 2007, the Group's hire RZZEERNFER=ZZEZELF+ A

purchase arrangement bore interest at a fixed rate and
its carrying amount approximated to its fair value.

=t—B AKREZHEHBANOLH
TREEM KRGS - MAKREESR
HAFEES -

[

+
T
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36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. BA&
Company
¥ NN
2007 2006
—EELHEF ZETRF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Authorised: JETE ¢
6,000,000,000 ordinary shares of  6,000,000,0000% & [i%
HK$0.10 each HE0.10% T 2 & Bk 600,000,000 600,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE :
4,785,303,000 (2006: 4,785,303,000%
3,985,303,000) ordinary shares (ZZEZREF
of HK$0.10 each 3,985,303,0000% )
BREME0.104 T
2 &k 478,530,300 398,530,300
During the year, the movements in share capital were FA - BRAZZESHOT -

as follows:

(a)

On 1 May 2007, pursuant to a share placing (a) RZEZ+FRHA—H 1B

and top up subscription arrangement, Tacko
International Limited, an existing shareholder of
the Company, sold 720,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company to certain independent third
parties at HK$0.34 per share, and subscribed
for 720,000,000 new ordinary shares issued by
the Company at the same price. Besides, the
Company also granted 80,000,000 share options
with an exercise price of HK$0.34 per share to
these independent third parties. The aggregate
cash consideration received, before share issue
expenses, is approximately HK$244,800,000.
These transactions resulted in the increase of
the issued share capital, share premium and
share options reserve of HK$72,000,000,
HK$155,060,084 and HK$17,739,916,
respectively. Share issue expenses of
HK$2,472,400 were charged to the share
premium account accordingly.

BrRekrm o BRHEER
B ARE—RBRERE
Tacko International Limited
([Tackol) # &I 0.34/8 T
# 7R A & 2 720,000,0004%
TEBRBRNETETELSE
=% WAHRESRER
A7) 317 2720,000,0008%
FEBBRRMGD o s AR
ATMETHEBILE=

80,000,00019 17 (B B &%
0.34B L2 Bl #E - B WA
HERERFABRER) &
£244,800,0008 7T © % &
RHZBHEHETRE - KH
i 18 BR % B IR 0 (R 4 0 Bl 38
1 72,000,000 JT

155,060,084 T &
17,739,916/% 1t -
2,472,400 T 2 R E H
HEEE R G R BRI -



CATIC International Holdings Limited = B fii %= 4 i

Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2007

MERERD A

BB RMET —szts+-a=+-n5

36. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

During the year, the subscription rights attaching
to options in respect of 80,000,000 shares in
(a) above were exercised at an exercise price of
HK$0.34 per share, resulting in the issue of
80,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each, for a total
cash consideration, before share issue expenses,
of HK$27,200,000, represented by the increase
in issued share capital and share premium of
HK$8,000,000 and HK$19,200,000, respectively.
Accordingly, share option reserve of
HK$17,739,916 was transferred to the share
premium account.

A summary of the transactions during the year with

reference to the above movements in the Company’s

issued share capital is as follows:

36. BRA (&

(b)

FAN - kEX(@EE @
80,000,0008% % 7 < &% A% ##
BRITEESR34B T ZE
T E BT
80,000,000f% & ix EI{E0.10
B lkm - BEERECR
sTEERRE ) £27,200,00078
T BETRARRKRMDGE
Bk 9 Bl #& Hn8,000,000/8 T &
19,200,000 7T ° & Lt -
17,739,916/ 7T 2 5 IR #E &
HEERERMHEER -

R PRARTEEITRALE
HrXHHBMT :

Number of Share premium Share option
shares in issue Issued capital account reserve Total
BRTRGEA BRfTRE R EER BRERE CEl
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2006 RZZERE-A-H 3,741,481,000 374,148,100 ,972,500 - 376,120,600
Issue of shares 2k 268,500,000 26,850,000 4,027,500 - 30,877,500
Share issue expenses ¥hER = = (1,148,490) - (1,148,490)
Repurchase of shares EERG (24,678,000 (2,467,800) 65,369 - (2,402,431)
At 31 December 2006 RZZERET_A=1-H
and 1 January 2007 RZE5tE-A-H 3,985,303,000 398,530,300 4,916,879 - 403,447179
Issue of shares and ERGRERER)
share options (a) 720,000,000 72,000,000 155,060,084 17,739,916 244,800,000
Share issue expenses (a) ERER() - - (2,472,400) - (2,472,400)
Issue of shares upon ROERRERTROD)
exercise of share
options (b) 80,000,000 8,000,000 19,200,000 - 27,200,000
Transfer of reserve upon EOFERESERED
exercise of share
options (b) - - 17,739,916 (17,739,916) -
At 31 December 2007 RZZB2LETZA=+-HF  4,785303,000 478,530,300 194,444,479 - 672,974,779




ANNUAL REPORT 2007 « — B2+ F £ 5

Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2007

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(a)

Employees’ share option schemes

At the annual general meeting held on 14 May
2001, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “2001 Scheme”) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations.

Subsequent to the adoption of the 2001 Scheme
on 14 May 2001, the Stock Exchange introduced
a number of changes to Chapter 17 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) on share option
schemes. These new rules came into effect on 1
September 2001. In compliance with the
amended Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, a new
share option scheme (the "“Existing Scheme"”)
was adopted by the Company at the annual
general meeting held on 13 May 2003 and at
the same time the 2001 Scheme was terminated.
Since the adoption of the Existing Scheme, no
options have been granted thereunder.

Major terms of the Existing Scheme include:

1. The purpose of the Existing Scheme is to
provide incentives to the participants.

2. The participants of the Existing Scheme
are individuals being employees, officers
or consultants of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries including any executive or
non-executive directors thereof.

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

37. BREE

(a)

EEZBRES

E-ZEE—FHATMHAEE
TZRERBAFREE AR
AR 4N T — T8 B AR A At &
([20015T8l)) © EEER R
ERANEBEEBZKINE
HERZEEKRSHEE -

R—ZEBEE—FHA+HWA
20015 BB 18 - B FT
MEZES EWMHRA ([ L
WA E17EEEERE
T8l 2 HESIAZIEER
BE-ZEZE—FNA—HRE
Mo BEBTFEMBAUEI7TE
KSR ZHE » NAFEZ
TT=-FRA+=BEITZ
BREBAFRAELEMNS B
TERER S ([RAE])
I [E B 4% 1F200151 8 » B 1R
#3575 5T I LASR - I Rt
FTEIR I AR AE -

BAFEZEZHRREBE

1. HRAFEEERZ2E
EITHLEER

2. BAEREZZ2EER
AR B 3k E AR A Mt B
REIZEE SHRB
R @A @ E
hEEEFAITRIE
WITES -
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continued)

(a) Employees’ share option schemes (continued)

3.

The total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Existing Scheme
and the 2001 Scheme (collectively the
“Schemes”) must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the share capital of the
Company in issue as at the date of
approval of the Existing Scheme. The
Company may refresh this 10% limit at
any time subject to prior approval by its
shareholders in a general meeting. The
overall limit on the total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options and yet to be
exercised under the Schemes must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital
of the Company at any time. No options
may be granted if this will result in such
limit being exceeded. The total number
of shares available for issue under the
Existing Scheme is 367,573,100 shares
which represented 7.68% (2006: 9.22%)
of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the balance sheet date.

The total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options
(whether exercised, cancelled or
outstanding) granted under the Schemes
in any 12-month period immediately
preceding any proposed date of grant of
option to each participant must not
exceed 1% of the share capital of the
Company in issue as at the proposed
grant date.

37. BREFE (&)

(a)

EEZBRESSE (&)

3.

HiTERER A E
K 2001518 (A8 5
2l) BT 2 20 e AR
1T 2 B in M2 -
EHRTFEBBARA
RBBIRBFEEH
ZEFETRAI0% °
AN ) A BE R R R %
10% EBR - HEEER
ERBRREASE EER
B - AITEREET
EIF & M RITE
AR REm T 2 R
BREERBLER @ 715
i NN K o ST
BEBITIRA30% ° i
RHERESEHE
BEBLR  ATE
KB E - BER
BEtEla T 2R M
42 81 5367,573,100
i - BEREEBAR
AEIBBETRAZ
7.68% (ZZFZTNF ¢
9.22%) °

TEARMEREETER
#EHa+ =@ A &
METERIERE SR
RE2HERE (THE
1fF - BEFdEsm A
1TE) A &2 B2
TREBETZRNDB
- NMFHEBERAR A
REZREBHZE
BITRA1% o
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continued)

(a) Employees’ share option schemes (continued)

5.

Options may be exercised at any time
during a period of 10 years commencing
on the date falling three to six months
after the date of grant.

A grant of an option must be accepted
within 28 days from the date of grant
together with a non-refundable payment
of HK$1.00.

The exercise price of an option to
subscribe for shares granted pursuant to
the Existing Scheme shall be the highest
of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange daily
guotation sheet on the date of
grant, which must be a business
day;

(b) the average of the closing prices
of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days
immediately proceeding the date
of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares of
the Company.

The Existing Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 13 May 2003 and
thereafter for as long as there are
outstanding options granted and
accepted pursuant thereto prior to the
expiration of the said 10-year period and
in order to give effect to the exercise of

any such options.

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

37. BREFE (&)

(a) EEZHEKRESS (E)

5.

BRETRNEGDAEH
B==/NEA LT
FARBRITE

EREANKE RS
%28 NER + WA
X AR B RIE
1.008 7T °

R8T A A BIFTE
RN 2 9 I i 2
TEEARTNZE
R

(@) mWMHAEERHA
H(ARER
H)&BRER
B ®EXR
ZWTHE

(b) MMHERHAE
H ol f = =
BB R &
BREXRZF
BRHE: &

(0 ARAKRMHE
{E o

BBEEBR=-ZTZT=
FRA+=A#EHT
FREM - MK Lt
TEHRMEEE R
B2 MATEER
REDAIITE ©
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 37. BRELE (&)

(continued)

(a) Employees’ share option schemes (continued) (a) EEZERESS (&)
Share options do not confer rights on the ERETER TRHEAZS
holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ ESRBERAG EREZ
meetings. R o
Notwithstanding the termination of the 2001 B SR2001ETEIE AR IE - B
Scheme, the relevant provisions thereof remain REBFEERATE EEm
in full force and effect to the extent necessary M R 1T 2 BE AR A D 7] B 2
to give effect to the exercise of any outstanding LB 8l 2 REITEE o

share options granted thereunder prior to its
respective expiry.

The following share options were outstanding FR20015T 8 T MW ARITHEZ
under the 2001 Scheme during the year: BRENT :
2007 2006
“EEtH ZEERE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
I fnE
THIKE BREHE THATEE  EREHE
HKS$ HK$
per share per share
SRET BRET
At 1 January and R—HA—B&

31 December +-A=+—H 0.13 42,000,000 0.13 42,000,000
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continued)

(a)

Employees’ share option schemes (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the
share options outstanding under the 2001
Scheme as at the balance sheet date are as
follows:

2006 and 2007
Number of options

—EEAFR=-FBFLHF

Exercise price (i)

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

37. BREFE (&)

EEBEKRESTSE (&)
NAEEEH - 20015121 T A&
1T 2 BB 2 1T B R AT
FHEMT :

(a)

Exercise period (ii)

BREZR TEE (i) 17 2 5 (i)
HK$ per share
HiRETT
42,000,000 0.13 25/8/2003 to 24/8/2008
—EE=FNA=+THA
EFTENFENAZ=ZFTHTEA
(i) The exercise price of the share options is (i) R 21T E AR AR

subject to adjustment in case of rights or
bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital.

(i) Share options must be held for a
minimum of six months before exercise.
Exercise period shall not exceed a period
of five years commencing on the expiry
of a period of not less than six months
after the date the option is accepted.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
42,000,000 share options outstanding under the
2001 Scheme. The exercise in full of the
remaining share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 42,000,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share
capital and share premium, before issue
expenses, of HK$4,200,000 and HK$1,260,000,
respectively.

TR B AT AN R B e AN B
Hip U Z B FE -

(i BEAFEERLARMBEATAT
ERERAE - ITE I B A
BEME B MmN @A RN
BERAFRE -

REER © 200158 FARRIES
42,000,00017 & P4 18 R AT © 7E
RARBEBERAERET - BETHE
Fleh 2 BEARER BB R R REINE
7742,000,0000% & @ A% A n - A%
AR DHEE (CRFETER) &5
5113 104,200,000/ 7T & 1,260,000
PEIT ©
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

B ESE

(#)

(continued)
(b) Other share option scheme (b) EHERETE
Further detailed in notes 36(a) and 36(b) to the i = A R W AN
financial statements, 80,000,000 share options B 7E36(a)}236(b) © MR ETT
were granted to certain independent third BOMETFTETBLE=,
parties as a result of the issue of shares and all 80,000,0001p i ik #& - FT &
share options were exercised which resulted in BRERTFRNEETE &
the issue of 80,000,000 ordinary shares of the B 7K A A] ¥ 1780,000,000%
Company during the year. The following share LB AR D o F AR R
options were outstanding under this share FT 8T M AR 1T 2 B AR 4D
option scheme during the year: N
2007 2006
—E2%tE ZETRF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price Number price Number
&  of options e of options
THIEE BRERE THOEE  BREHE
HKS$ HK$
per share per share
SRET BRET
At 1 January R—A—H - - - -
Granted during ERNERH
the year 0.34 80,000,000 - -
Exercised during FREETHE
the year 0.34  (80,000,000) - -
At 31 December R+ZA=+—R 0.34 - = =

FAEETEZBRERT

The weighted average share price at the date

of exercise for share options exercised during
the year was HK$0.627.

At the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Company had 42,000,000 share
options outstanding under the 2001 Scheme,
which represented approximately 0.9% of the
Company'’s shares in issue as at that date.

N i’
FHHZINEEGRHER
50.6274 T ©

R ERETBREER -
20015 & ™ & & 7 #
42,000,000 B P # 2 R 1T
£ H1EE BARE BT
B 1% 20.9% °

ant
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38. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior
years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 41 to
42 of this annual report.

Pursuant to the articles of association of a
subsidiary operating as a Foreign Investment
Enterprise in Mainland China and the relevant
PRC Company Law, the subsidiary shall make
an allocation from its profit after tax at the rate
of 10% to the statutory surplus reserve fund,
until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital of the subsidiary. Part of the statutory
surplus reserve may be capitalised as the
subsidiary’s registered capital, provided that the
remaining balance after the capitalisation is not
less than 25% of the registered capital of the
subsidiary. The statutory reserve is non-
distributable other than in the event of
liquidation.

38. &

(a)

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

AEE

REBREERUNEFEZ
EARGEESHHE N AE
WMEMNERAZEEHERE

BRA -

RIBE — KR B K EE A SNE
CEFTALEZHBRAZ
M ERE RABRERBDE
IR =INCI e
BEMZI0%BEZEZEATE
T BEERBFBEEZMN
BRREMEARZ50% ° &8
MAEAERBEAIRRELRR
MBARRA  HEREEAR
b 2 R T EHR T D RZ W
BARFEMEARZ25% ° B
BRIN  EAEREETBD

K e



CATIC International Holdings Limited = B fii %= 4 i

MERERD A

Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2007

BB RMET —ezts+-a=+-8

38. RESERVES (continued)

(a)

(b)

38. & (&)

Group (continued) (a) ZA&EH (&)
Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the B 40 B 7 R 2R MY RE 1 7R Ak
acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years remain ERAEFEWIEN B QA
eliminated against consolidated retained profits, EEXENETEHE2BEDA
as explained in note 17 to the financial FEiRE B a AN -
statements.
Company (b) AAF
Retained
Share Share profits/
premium option  Contributed (accumulated
account reserve surplus losses) Total
BEEH/
RREE BRERE g RR  (RHER) Bt
Notes HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$
Wizt BT BT BT & &I
At 1 January 2006 RZFE F-A—-H 1,972,500 - 5,243,300 8,906,531 16,122,331
Issue of shares Bkl 4,027,500 - - - 4,027,500
Share issue expenses ERER (1,148,490) - - - (1,148,490)
Repurchase of shares — EEIR{ 65,369 - - - 65,369
Loss for the year TEEE - - - (10,651,671)  (10,651,671)
At31 December 2006  HM=FExET=A=t-R
and 1 January 2007 RZE5t5-7-H 4,916,879 - 5,243,300 (1,745,140) 8,415,039
Issue of shares and BT
share options 36(@) 155,060,084 17,739,916 - - 172,800,000
Share issue expenses ERER 36@)  (2,472,400) - - - (2,472,400)
Issue of shares EFERE
upon exercise of BRH
share options 36() 19,200,000 - - - 19,200,000
Transfer of reserve EFERE
upon exercise of ERER
share options 36(b)  17,739916  (17,739,916) - - -
Profit for the year REET - - - 977159 92,771,529
At31December 2007 R-ZZtE+-A=1-H 194,444,479 - 5,243,300 91,026,389 290,714,168
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38. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Company (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the
consolidated net asset value of Far East
Aluminium (B.V.1.) Limited on 20 November 1991
when its entire issued share capital was acquired
by the Company pursuant to a group
reorganisation, and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued in consideration for
such acquisition, net of accumulated losses of
the Company set off in the prior years. Under
the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the
Company is distributable to shareholders under
certain circumstances.

The Company’s share premium account of
HK$194,444,479 (2006: HK$4,916,879) as at
31 December 2007 may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

38. fiife (&

(b)

AT (&)

RABZHBABHRBAR T
BEEEEHTHER -
— %+ —H =+ B AFar
East Aluminium (B.V.l.)
Limited % #B 2 17 IR A B
Far East Aluminium (B.V.l.)
LimitedZ 45 & & 2 FE HR
RAMERWBREMEITZ
RIDEEME 2Z8 - T E
HBERBEFEERE AR
A RFTEE - REARE—
NAN—FREEUBFIA) -
RABZHANBHREE TIB
ATAI#HSRTERE -

KRARIRZZEZELF+ A
=+ —BzkRHhaER
194,444,4798 L (ZZEEF X
4 :4,916,8797% JT) A LASK
BABRAFRDIE ©
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. HEKHEAF
2007
—EELFE
Notes HK$
Kt i BT
Net assets disposed of: BEHECEEFE
Property, plant and equipment M - BER&E 15 54,515,949
Prepaid land lease payments FEff + A E K 16 2,656,691
Available-for-sale investments AHEERNRE 11,526,000
Deferred tax assets R IR & E 22 6,162,000
Rental and utility deposits MERAREEES 2,213,183
Pledged time deposits EHEATHER 48,329,400
Cash and bank balances ReRBITHER 90,138,232
Inventories e 502,471
Trade and retention receivables BN E 5 ERER KR E S 227,688,107
Prepayments, deposits and TN FRIE - He kEA
other receivables Ji& Wt BR 5K 14,148,878
Amounts due to contract customers, net R&EKLEFERIEFEE (64,283,360)
Trade and bills payables EBNESEREEE (81,764,746)
Tax payable &~ A IE (1,167,477)
Warranty provision RAE R (11,473,330)
Other payables and accruals BEMENFIERETER (58,757,852)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STEIRITER (43,089,601)
197,344,545
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries i & MY B A &l 2 ) E 12 5,579,462
202,924,007
Satisfied by: AR
Cash e 205,000,000
Less: Transaction expense RS EH (2,075,993)

202,924,007
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. HEKE AR (&)
(continued)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash HEMBARICHEERREEEEM
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is ANFESMAT -
as follows:
2007
—EELF
HK$
B
Cash consideration ReRE 202,924,007
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEEEZREMRITERE (90,138,232)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents &M B A7 2
in respect of the disposal of RekReFERAFRE
subsidiaries 112,785,775

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED GCEHERERKE

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(@) Major non-cash transactions (a)

EXFBRERS

FA - AEESIFTE
depreciation charges amounting to f 2 3,714,3427% 7T
HK$3,714,342 (2006: HK$3,646,879) Sl A
(note 6) and interest expense of 3,646,879 ) (Kfat
HK$1,663,970 (2006: HK$3,776,367) in 6) B A B H X
long term construction contracts (note 7). 1,663,970/ 7t (=
TN ¢ 3,776,367
T BARBPRESH
BA (BtaE7) »

(i) During the year, the Group capitalised (i)

During the year, the Group’s interest in
associates with carrying amount of
HK$67,454,590 (note 21(b)) (2006:
HK$84,181,088) were reclassified as
available-for-sale investments of
HK$67,454,590 (2006: HK$42,090,544)
and an equity investment at fair value
through profit or loss of nil (2006:
HK$42,090,544), respectively.

REA - FEMEA
67,454,590 7t (K17t
21(b) (ZZEZT N & -
84,181,088 L) 2 /&
SEZEBE AR Ea
W E N D E B
67,454,590 L (=&
TN 1 42,090,544
T 2 Al S B3R
;éﬂ /’%E(—zq/\
4 : 42,090,544) BT
ZERBHEATE
HIEHRAEE -
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40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(continued)

(b)

Restricted cash and cash equivalent balances

Certain of the Group’s time deposits are pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group, as further explained in note 34(a)(iv) .

Certain of the Group’s cash and cash equivalent
balances are not freely convertible into Hong
Kong dollars (note 30).

41. OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

As lessor

The Group and the Company leases their
investment property (note 14) under an
operating lease arrangement with a lease
negotiated for a term of two years.

At 31 December 2007, the Group and the
Company had total future minimum lease
receivables under a non-cancellable operating
lease with its tenant falling due as follows:

40. ZERETREBRME
(%)

(b) ERHARERREZEHER

AEBZETEHFEREE
HYRT WERAEEE
BRZRITEE  E—THE
B M 5E 34()(v) °

AEEZETREREAEF
EEBTAIEELBERET
(KHtz£30) °

41. REHEN T H

(@) ERHBAA

AEBRARBREHEYZE
ERMFZREROREEH
HEEME (Ait14) -

R-FBTLHFE+-_H=+—
B ANEERAQARE SR
BRI FIA T F S H
ZAAHEEEHNEAAB
BREHKEREESBEEH
(U

Group and Company

AEERAERQF
2007 2006
—EBBtEHF —ZEER
HKS$ HK$
BT AT
Within one year —FR 802,680 587,760
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41. OPERATING LEASE 41.
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

As lessee

The Group and the Company leases its office
premises under non-cancellable operating lease
arrangements with terms ranging from one to
five years.

At 31 December 2007, the Group and the
Company had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

REENORS (B

(b) fEREEA
AEERANAFEEFFTL
TR EEROZHE - A
HANTF—ZRFEZM -

R-FEBLF+_A=+—
H - RENF AT FE R H
ZPAAIHEEEELY A&
BERACRFEARBOR
ERMNESERHINET :

Group Company
A5E N
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZBELE  —TEIR ZB2LE  —ZTEIR
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT B Er
Within one year —ER 768,000 1,550,808 768,000 127,500
In the second to fifth FE-_FZFHFR -
years, inclusive BREEME 208,000 331,416 208,000 =
976,000 1,882,224 976,000 127,500
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42. COMMITMENTS 42, FEIE

In addition to the operating lease commitments in note
41(b) above, the Group had the following commitments
at the balance sheet date:

B E XK aE41(0) 2 @& H A AT
Sh REBREE BB AT HAIE

Group
KEE
2007 2006
—EELHF —TERF
HK$ HK$
V- BT
Contracted, but not provided for: 54918 18 R B
Acquisition of plant and W BS54 25
machinery 2,063,176 2,990,035
Acquisition of land U B 1 3 - 19,598,530
Establishment of a joint venture B A &R R (B aE)
(note) 42,826,552 39,840,637
44,889,728 62,429,202
Note: HaE -

On 4 January 2006, Sino-Aviation Investments Limited (“Sino-
Aviation Investments”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a joint venture agreement (the “JV
Agreement”) with CATIC and Chengdu Aircraft Industry
(Group) Corporation Ltd. (“Chengdu Aircraft”) for the
establishment of a joint venture to engage in the research
and development, design and manufacture of, and provision
of technical services for, parts and components for commercial
aircrafts. According to the JV Agreement, the total registered
capital of the joint venture will be RMB100 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$107 million), of which 40%, 15% and
45% respectively, will be contributed by Sino-Aviation
Investments, CATIC and Chengdu Aircraft. The JV Agreement
is conditional upon (i) the internal approval obtained by each
of the three parties; and (ii) the approvals from the relevant
PRC authorities. As at 31 December 2007, the JV Agreement
has not become effective as the conditions stated above have
not been fulfilled.

RZZZRF—AMNAB r XREIZEE
Bff B A & Sino-Aviation Investments
Limited ([ Sino-Aviation Investments]) £
RREARRKERETE (5E)F
REMFARF ([KERE]) FTLE EHE
(Te&amzEl) WKL —REE QA -
REEMARKS G 2T Rt R
ERRHERMRY - REBEEEHE &
BN 7 Z A8 E& AN £3100,000,0007T
AR (FBF R £7107,000,000% 7T) -
H i Sino-Aviation Investments + F it i
BRARRKERESK D RIEE40%
15% K% 45% © & & MR A 5 A TR E
KEFESER  BREO=ASEES
BBE  R(NVESEBP EKE 28
K oHE_TTLF+-_A=1+—8 "
AR EHRARER - BltZE &1
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43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43. HAEE
The contingent liabilities of the Group and the NEER  REBRARFZHA
Company at the balance sheet date were as follows: BEWT
Group Company
rEE YNNG
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EBRLE  —TTRFE  ZBELE CTITRHE
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
b ¥ BT BT BT
Corporate guarantees for RRTET—HNE
banking facilities granted to A B ZRITEEEHZ
a subsidiary (note 34(a))* RAER (HfaF34(a) - - - 185,000,000
Guarantees under performance 2EA 42 BHRE
bonds for construction ZER
contracts - 89,502,970 - -
Guarantees for banking facilities FtER1T4 T = B ER
granted to major suppliers* ZRITIEEEH 2 ER 169,164,882 97,579,681 - -
169,164,882 187,082,651 - 185,000,000
& As at 31 December 2006, the banking facilities @ RZZEZEXF+_A=+—8"
granted to the subsidiary subject to guarantees given Ff BB A A A A R FRAE H 2 AR
to the banks by the Company had been utilised as MERZRITEEEARUTH
follows: %
2006
—EERE
HK$
BT
Import loans EOEX 47,476,134
Guarantees under performance BEAGVCBHRBEZE ZER
bonds for construction contracts 89,502,970
136,979,104
# As at 31 December 2007, the banking facilities # R_ZEZ+F+_A=+—8"
granted to major suppliers to guarantees given to the RIBEAEBERITELOERM
banks by the Group were utilised to the extent of BT EHEMNRITHESD
approximately HK$140,499,465 (2006: FA#9140,499,465/8 7L (T ZT X

HK$96,221,614) & :96,221,614B7L) °
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

44. BEALTRS

(@) In addition to the transactions described () KRUBRESEMLZRS
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group O REBERER G ESTA
had the following material transactions with TEABEALRS :
related parties during the year:

2007 2006
—BELHF —TEREF
Notes HK$ HK$
B &t H#E T AT
Rental income received W ER A% 3R A A
from a shareholder (i) 587,760 587,760
Net income from Project  REEC120JHE 2
EC120 A (if) 2,424,484 1,258,854
(i) The Company entered into a tenancy (i) RARHEBRARA
agreement with CATIC (H.K.) Limited (“CATIC Rz BEfzER migu“j
(H.K.)"), a deemed shareholder of the '{(E/%?Eﬁﬁ‘i ](FTP
Company, to lease the Company’s investment ’?;Lz (%f%{\)i;;z
roperty to CATIC (H.K.) for a term of two b EN Elcmii
pealfs czmmencin (on 1)Januar 2006 at a MRHBT R (R
; hi I?HKMS%Oy lusive of S
monthly rental o 980 (exc usive o —A—Bie AW
rates, management fees and air-conditioning # . 5 A% 548,980
charges). The rental was determined with BT (TEEZM - &8
reference to open market rentals. BREFEB) o fINTEAS
N2ERATEESE
" e
The tenancy agreement was renewed on 31 HEBBER_ZEZTLF
December 2007 at a monthly rental of +ZRA=+—H%&:] -
HK$66,890 (exclusive of rates, management F A& A66,890/% 7T
fees and air-conditioning charges) for a term (T"BEEm - BERER
of one year commencing on 1 January 2008. EZFHEM)  HZZZEN
F—RA—HARBAH—
oo
(ii) Balance represented net cash proceeds (if) AEERTITREC120TEH B R
received or receivable from CATIC generated fin # 48 &) W B sk pE U
from Project EC120. Further details are set out RS RIBFE o B —
in note 20 to the financial statements. R IE B B % R R MY
20
(b)  Outstanding balances with related parties: (b)y HEBEATZREELHS

As at 31 December 2007, the amount due to a
minority shareholder is unsecured, interest-free
and has no fixed terms of repayment.

ﬁfﬁm%

TtFF+A=F—
DB R B A E R
B K& EEE NS

&HW%
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

44. BBEALTRS (&)

() Compensation of key management personnel of (0 AEEHBHRBREEBEABZW
the Group: B -

2007 2006

—EELF ZE2ZN

HK$ HK$

BT AT

Short term employee benefits %2 Hi{& & 1& 7l 11,831,204 9,804,550

Post-employment benefits & &1 1& 7 512,643 569,490

Total compensation paid to X MEIHEIEAES
key management personnel 2 %R B 44 58

12,343,847 10,374,040

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(i)
to (a)(ii) above also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

EHEFEMe cE—FHB
FRHBHRRMTES

LA EIE B (a)()E (a)(ii) 2 B A TR
SMERBERESS (FE R L
M BIFE14AE)
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 45. e T A9 HE
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REER ST EREEN
financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are S 4
as follows:
2007
—EBitHF
Financial assets
MHEE
Group
x&E
Financial assets
at fair value Available-
through profit for-sale
or loss - held Loans and financial
for trading  receivables assets Total
AFEFIER ERk AHEHEHN
MEEE-H{EEE JE Wik oE MBEE CE
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
B BT B B
Financial asset under EC120E 2
Project EC120 HBEE - - 11,959,462 11,959,462
Deposit for acquisition of an ~ WER AR E
investment - 20,029,325 - 20,029,325
Available-for-sale investments A iH &M E - - 115,720,980 115,720,980
Trade receivables ERE 5 ER - 22,837,580 - 22,837,580
Financial assets included in STABRMRE
prepayments, deposits and Re R HEMmER
other receivables ERMBEE - 41,577,069 - 41,577,069
Equity investment at fair value EBERELTE
through profit or loss FIEM AT A 54,189,450 - - 54,189,450
Derivative financial instrument T4 & @ T A 638,365 - - 638,365
Pledged time deposits BEATHER - 36,327,623 - 36,327,623
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkBReEE - 508,074,602 - 508,074,602

54,827,815 628,846,199 127,680,442 811,354,456
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are

as follows: (continued)

2007
—E2tF
Financial liabilities

MBaE

45. eI ESHE (&)

Financial
liabilities
at fair value

through profit

or loss - held

T

-~

&)

Financial
liabilities
at amortised

REER SRR IAKREEN

for trading cost Total
EBBREIR 2 85 B AR
AEEIIEN S{E
BEAE-KEEE WA E &t
HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT
Due to a minority FES D ERER
shareholder IR - 5,740,106 5,740,106
Trade and bills payables BN E SRR KR
B - 80,758,195 80,758,195
Financial liabilities included &1 A E b f& {5 5k 18
in other payables and R ETER R
accruals MBaE - 11,213,551 11,213,551
Derivative financial MESRITA
instrument 2,209,425 - 2,209,425
Interest-bearing bank SFEIRITE X
borrowings - 96,017,131 96,017,131
Finance lease payables Bt & M S e IR - 57,841 57,841
2,209,425 193,786,824 195,996,249
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (continued)

45. ST AE9E (&

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REER  FHEpTAEREEN
financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are T: (&)
as follows: (continued)
2006
—ETRF
Financial assets
M5 EE
Group
AEH
Financial assets
at fair value Available-
through profit for-sale
or loss - held Loans and financial
for trading receivables assets Total
EREHE
AFETIER ERk AHHEM
NBEBE-FEFEE FE W5k IE RBEEE A&t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial asset under EC120EE 2
Project EC120 HBEE - - 25959462 25,959,462
Available-for-sale investments A i & £ 1R E - - 91,102,100 91,102,100
Trade and retention receivables fEMIE 5 K H LR E & - 251,727,962 - 251,727,962
Financial assets included in AABRRE BZER
prepayments, deposits and H it & W AR R Y
other receivables MBEE - 44,312,280 - 44,312,280
Equity investment at fair value BBBZEZEAFEE
through profit or loss ol 79,887,500 = - 79,887,500
Pledged time deposits EEAEBER - 73,405,974 - 73,405,974
Cash and cash equivalents BekBeEE - 112,092,141 - 112,092,141
79,887,500 481,538,357 117,061,562 678,487,419
Financial liabilities
MBERE
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
1 85 Pk AN 51 (B
B E
HK$
BT
Trade and bills payables ENESERAEERE 109,568,693
Financial liabilities included in other T AE A FE SRIE R EET B A
payables and accruals W B AR 56,992,593
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STEEITER 167,613,883
Finance lease payables Bl & M & e FRIR 280,297

334,455,466
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are
as follows: (continued)

Financial assets

o
i

ERMITAESE (&)

RERER  BEERMIAREEN
- (

MKEE
Company
¥ NN
2007 2006
—EBELHF ZEERF
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
BEXE BER K
FE U X 18 FE W SR I8
HKS$ HK$
B BT
Due from subsidiaries JFE W B A 389,389,687 333,205,540
Financial assets included in .%"I‘)\?E\Hm Hzé&
prepayments, deposits and ﬁ@ﬁéﬁﬂﬁlﬁ%mﬂ’]
other receivables BB E 640,579 3,579,391
Cash and cash equivalents BHehBeEE 455,907,458 41,464,405
845,937,724 378,249,336
Financial liabilities
ke E
2007 2006
—ETLEHF —EERF
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities
at amortised at amortised
cost cost
12 85 B AR 2 55 PR AR
SIER 51 (B B
BEaE =R
HKS$ HK$
#E T BT
Due to subsidiaries XN ENGIE S 11,824,138 13,000,000
Interest-bearing bank borrowings s E#HRITER 20,000,000 20,000,000
31,824,138 33,000,000
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. B EEREE R ERK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES ®
The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than $EIE’J£ eI A (MIEPTE)
derivatives, comprise bank loans and cash and short BRETEARRE REBRFR -
term deposits. The main purpose of these financial Jitvﬁpﬂilﬁ NWEERBZERAS
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's B EERHEIR AEBTER
operations. The Group has various other financial assets BROEMIMBEEREE  flanfkE
and liabilities, such as trade receivables and trade WESERRENESERER  HE
payables, which arise directly from its operations. EREEMESE -
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial rEENeRITAMEENEEZR
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, wE A EERE - NERRE - FER
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors BEkrBERR ZEFREEFEZL
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these BEER L ERBRABER - gt
risks and they are summarised below. T e
Interest rate risk F 2= 3 b
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market AEEERBRTSHEEFHRERFE
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s borrowings HAREBE LT E A XKL B E’\Jfﬁfﬂ
from banks with a floating interest rate. BEHE -
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a TRETEAMAZERZAZENIE
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all SR - A& B B RS B (GF B F R
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit {ﬁ§m$§;) REERARNRA G ER
before tax (through the impact on floating rate HNEGBEH BRI -
borrowings) and the Group’s and the Company’s equity.
Group Company
A48 A0
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease) in profit (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity before tax in equity
E¥Em/ BarER EzEm/ BAnER ERgm/
(WD) #h/ (B2 (WD) &/ (B2 (B2)
% HKS HKS % HK$
BT B B
2007 “ERLF
Hong Kong dollar BT 1 (200,004) - (200,004) -
Hong Kong dollar BT (1) 200,004 - 200,004 -
2006 ZBENF
Hong Kong dollar BT 1 (797,087) - (281,254) =
Hong Kong dollar BT (1) 797,087 - 281,254 -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group's foreign currency exposures primarily arise
from certain sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the unit’s functional currency,
which are mainly denominated in United States dollars.
In view of the fact that the Hong Kong dollar is pegged
to the United States dollar and that the Group tries to
match its assets and liabilities with the same currency,
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, pledged
time deposits, equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets, other
receivables and certain derivative instrument, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Group is also exposed to credit risk
through the granting of financial guarantees, further
details of which are disclosed in note 43 to the financial
statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed
by customer/counterparty, by geographical region and
by industry sector. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group as the
customer bases of the Group’s trade receivables are
widely dispersed in different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and retention
receivables are disclosed in note 26 to the financial
statements.

46.

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

BHEBREEERERK
xR (&

B R B

AEENINERRTIEELBLE
BUMETAZEMINEEE AN
MEMEBEETHIHE KB =
BUXTEE - ERAB TR TH
WOEENARAKERSEERE
BTHEERABEA  AAKE
P AR B9 1 E =L B TR -

EERR

AEEEEKRUNREBRIEMN
FZELETRS - ARENBERR
MEERETEERSINERPORE
BBEERILER - BE  A&%E
FESERRBURIBENGLR - B
ORI NEKX -

AEEREMYBEE (BRRE IR
TFE EREHER  EBRBER
BAFEIENRATA - AJ#H
ENMBEEREMEBYRRNE
TrEERTR) WEERR - Jih
RBEHRBHOMESE - AERRIA
ZETANKEERR - AKER
R B 75 R AR T B S B R
#— R BB R M 433

o

i

i

X

HRASEERERAINREER
HOME=ZFELETRS AL B
BERARNEE - ST EERRE
BEF/XHHKER  HHER
TEIE - ARANEEE Z RUGK
BEFPERIMRTIRAER KT
¥ HEEEANEPEERR -

BERASBEHERSRKEFERX
EREZNEERRNEZE(LH
BN BRERM E26HE -
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. B EEREE B ERK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (&
(continued)
Liquidity risk B R B
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds AEEBNALEERBREATAEE
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool TEeRRER  ZIAGHESH
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments TERMBEE (MEKE S KRR
and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and MEBBBEREEEEENIRE
projected cash flows from operations. i
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between AEENBRDREBNARITE
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of FEBREHEARFERENFE T
bank loans and finance leases. The Group’s policy is to MEFENTE - XEBMBUERE
minimise borrowings. EEERERE -
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities NEER  REBERBFIHNER
as at the balance sheet date, based on the contracted BN R W B EESHERN
undiscounted payments, is as follows: N
Group 2007
A58 “ERLR
Less than 3 to less than 1t05
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
ZEARLER
REX K& SREEA SRR -E5% Chl
HKS HKS$ HKS$ HKS HKS$
BT BT BT BT BT
Due to a minority JEfT 2 SR SR R 3%
shareholder 5,740,106 - - - 5,740,106
Trade and bills payables ~ EFf 2 &R K
FE - 79,362,300 1,395,895 - 80,758,195
Other payables EfERTIE - 11,213,551 - - 11,213,551
Derivative financial TESMIA
instruments 2,209,425 - - - 2,209,425
Interest-bearing bank STERTRE
borrowings - 20,000,000 76,017,131 - 96,017,131
Finance lease payables B AR EREMFUA - 57,841 - - 57,841

7,949,531 110,633,692 77,413,026

195,996,249
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. B EEREE B ERK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES B’ (&
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBHER ()
Group 2006
rEE “EERE
Less than 3 to less than 1105
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
ZHEANER
REXH SYR=@EA  SRTZEA —ER%E a3
HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
Trade and bills payables R ZZEHK
2B = 105,639,627 3,929,066 - 109,568,693
Other payables AR FE - 56,992,593 - = 56,992,593
Interest-bearing bank FTERTEE
borrowings - 67,476,134 100,137,749 - 167,613,883
Finance lease payables ~ BAREEMFE - 54,306 168,150 57,841 280,297
- 230,162,660 104,234,965 57,841 334,455,466
Company 2007
PN ZBBLE
Less than 3 to less than 1to5
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
ZEARLER
RERE SRZEA SRR -Z5f CHi
HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS
AR Br BT BT BT
Due to subsidiaries ERHBAT 11,824,138 - - - 11,824,138
Interest-bearing bank STERTEE
borrowings - 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
11,824,128 20,000,000 - - 31,824,138
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. B EEREE B ERK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (&
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBHER ()
Company 2006
KAHE ZETRE
Less than 3 to less than 1105
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
ZEANER
R E K PREEA SRR —-ER% X
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT B BT
Due to subsidiaries ERAKBAR 13,000,000 - - - 13,000,000
Interest-bearing bank STERIIEE
borrowings - 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
13,000,000 20,000,000 - - 33,000,000
Equity price risk % 18 = B
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity P (8 B BV A i 3 48 0K 7 K {8 R
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels EHFEEEHMERERATFEREER
of equity indices and the value of individual securities. HER BE_TTELFT_HA=
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from +—H AEEEAZXSBAENREB
individual equity investments classified as equity Bz AFEINERNRARE (M7
investment at fair value through profit or loss (note 28) ~ AIEHEMRE (Ma21) Kk
28), available-for-sale investments (note 217) and MTESB TR (K729 MEENK
derivative financial instruments (note 29) as at 31 BRR AEELEWMHREEB IR
December 2007. The Group’s listed investments are BB LT - WA E BT W
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and are valued MEME -

at quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The market equity indices for the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, at the close of business of the nearest
trading day in the year to the balance sheet date, and
their respective highest and lowest points during the
year were as follows:

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

BHEEREERERK
(&

46.

IRER R ()
FARROEERAZXZABMHE
BRI ISREREBRERF
Nz E&ERBMT

31 December High/low 31 December High/low

2007 2007 2006 2006

ZBEtE ZBEtE ZETRE ZEETRE

t-A=t-8 &/ +t=A=+-~8 =/ &

Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index ~ &8 — B4 IRE 27,812 31,638/18,664 19,964  20,001/14,944

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
1% change in the fair values of the equity investments,
with all other variables held constant and before any
impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts at the
balance sheet date. For the purpose of this analysis,
for the available-for-sale equity investments the impact
is deemed to be on the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve and no account is given for factors
such as impairment which might impact on the income
statement.

TRESEAMTERETEA
HBAREGEET - %Em§5$

HE BRAKREATFESEE1%H
HMEE - BRZOMZETE ¥

HHENRBEREMNS - FEER
SERRAHEEREEHFHE -
¥ BRFF R ESAZENBa
THREE -
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

46. B EREEBEZERK

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES B’ (&
(continued)
Equity price risk (continued) RERE (&)
Carrying Increase/
amount decrease Increase/
of equity in profit decrease
investments before tax in equity
i A % & i B % F % #E
BRE B 2, wW D 182 b0 /@ 2
HK$ HK$ HK$
T AT BT
2007 —EELHE
Investments listed in: WEETR :
Hong Kong BB
- Available-for-sale — A E 45,753,750 - 457,538
— Equity investment —FRERIR
at fair value through nFESE
profit or loss KR AR E 54,189,450 541,895 -
2006 —TEREF
Investments listed in: ®EETR :
Hong Kong BB
— Available-for-sale — e 79,887,500 = 798,875
— Equity investment —FRERIR
at fair value through NEEIE
profit or loss IR A& E 79,887,500 798,875 =
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. B EEREE B ERK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (&
(continued)
Equity price risk (continued) RERE (&)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every TREJNTESR T AYBEBARAN
1% change in the fair values of the underlying equity KENRTETE I % HRRE
investments for the derivative financial instruments, & WRFZRMAEHEMA A EZER
with the all other variables held constant and before TERRAHBRENEMZE - T
any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts at ERAEKENSEEBNRE MBS
the balance sheet date. =
Increase/(decrease)
in percentage of Carrying Increase/
fair value of amount (decrease)
underlying equity of equity in profit
investment investments before tax
AR AR E
AFEBES K BT E i Al 3% 7
®hn, CR2) IREME i G2
% HK$ HK$
% BT BT
2007 —E2ELE
Unlisted investments at
fair value: FEMRENAFE
— Derivative financial asset —PTEMBEE 1 638,365 16,896
(1 (41,788)
— Derivative financial liability —TEVBEE 1 2,209,425 (40,625)
(1) 40,556
Capital management N

The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management is to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholder value.

AEEEAEENERER - Sl
RASEABRERRNEN - B
MERENEARLE  UXFHEE
BEE  FMEAWRREE -
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46.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes during the years
ended 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is bank borrowings divided by the equity attributable
to equity holders of the parent. Management considers
a gearing ratio of not more than 40% as reasonable.
The gearing ratios as at the balance sheet dates were
as follows:

46.

BHEBREEERERK
xR (&

EXERE (8)

AEERBELEBANES &1
HERNGEBAFEHAR - BTk
HEEAERE  AKREEEAK
RRERE ~ MERIKDE AL E
TR - AKREAE X HI RIS
MEMZEAFTRK -BE_FTTL
FR_BEXRFT_A=+—H8L
FEA YEEXHEBR  BERHL
2R o

AEBUAEAREBEL X RITEER
NARERFEE ABGERZ) - #Lt
EEEANBR ERERRTHE
BAOK%LEBIMERBEBELEBE
B -ZERERABELEMT :

Group
REH
2007 2006
—EELHF —EETRF
HK$ HKS$
H#E T BT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings  F BIRITEE 96,017,131 167,613,883
Equity attributable to equity NREEFAA
holders of the parent & 1 #E 25 922,917,597 591,724,071
Gearing ratio BEARBELE 10% 28%
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47. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a)

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, there
were significant falls in many major international
stock markets, including the exchange on which
the Group’s listed investments are traded.
Further details of the market values of the
Group'’s listed investments are included in notes
21 and 28 to the financial statements. The
decline in the carrying amounts of the
investments subsequent to the balance sheet
date and up to the date of approval of these
financial statements has not been reflected in
these financial statements.

As detailed in note 28 to the financial statement,
during the year, the Group sold 30,000,000
ordinary shares of Sino Gas to a company
beneficially owned by a director of Sino Gas
and issued the call option to that company to
acquire 45,000,000 ordinary shares of Sino Gas.
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 20
March 2008, a supplementary agreement was
entered into between the Group and that
company, pursuant to which both parties agreed
that 15,000,000 shares of Sino Gas will be
returned to the Group and the call option
granted to that company will be cancelled.

47,
(a)

MBHRRWE —=ztet-5=+-7

HEBRRER

HEHE BEXTEBRSE
FMEBRREEKXN  EEASE
B iR & 2 B P OR A Al
Sho REE EHREMER
i i = N S
H21 R MisE28 - £EHEHE
iux—rﬁﬁ%ﬁtﬁﬁi_ﬂz H &Y
KEFREE TR REZS
MRSk R Bk o

Ezizu BF 75 R 3% BT 3£ 28FT &F

m o FRN AEBHE
30,000,000% )i R &E & 3@
RTHBHRE—RESTE
mHAZRAR  RELRE
B Tz 2 A ARE
45,000,0000% A A2 8 & 1B
- #&E8B%E RZTZTN
FZAZ-+AH " AEEHEZ
NAFIN i - Bk -
& 75 [7] & #215,000,000%
HZEER D IRBIAEE - I
BEE T A FZRE
P o
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48. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 48. ATELREHE
The comparative income statement has been re- EE R 2 FIERBEEY - BAORAK
presented as if the operation discontinued during the FEERIELEEBRERARBT
current year had been discontinued at the beginning BB &Rk (Krat12) »

of the comparative period (note 12).

49. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 49. BIEHmR 2 E
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised MBHRERER-_FTNFOA=-+
for issue by the board of directors on 23 April 2008. “HEESSHERBEER -



Five Year Financial Summary

EFEMBEHE

TREJNAEERBERBAMREEZE
BNEE ABERIBERESBE T
BMEEANEBABFEZC AMEE MK
HBx - LEBY BHOBE@WER) - A
MEWFEERW B RR ZAEALNH -

The table set out below summarises the results and the assets,
liabilities and minority interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the Group’s published
consolidated financial statements of the respective years and
restated/reclassified as appropriate. This summary is not part

of the audited financial statements.

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
—EE+E —TTRE —_TITHE _—ZTNFE —TT=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETL FEL FETL FEL
RESULTS B
CONTINUING OPERATIONS  #HERK® %%
Revenue W& 195,088 172,045 157,714 121,560 84,087
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B % A1 ' A 57,754 35,176 19,645 5,193 4,474
Tax I8 (4,594) (2,452) (3,680) (430) (1,983)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM FECEER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS R E 5 F 53,160 32,724 15,965 4,763 2,491
DISCONTINUED OPERATION GCRIEKEEK
Profit for the year from BRIEEEEBZ
a discontinued operation R E 5 F 30,342 18,379 14,023 13,141 13,214
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR N 83,502 51,103 29,988 17,904 15,705
Attributable to: e A
Equity holders of the parent R EIEZZA A 77,996 47,950 26,054 13,564 12,878
Minority interests PERE 5,506 3,153 3,934 4,340 2,827
83,502 51,103 29,988 17,904 15,705
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE -8ER
MINORITY INTERESTS DERRER
Total assets BERE 1,164,204 1,108,772 948,227 831,458 833,793
Total liabilities BEBE (208,241)  (483,975)  (442,305)  (358,658)  (381,624)
Minority interests PERE = (33,046) (33,073) (34,071) (30,465) (26,124)
922,917 591,724 471,851 442,335 426,045
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Particulars of an Investment Property
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number the Company Existing

Address i R 4R 5% TATFELREE Tenure use
ik BEER EZEAL HAR BERR
Office B2 on the 15th Floor, 8469 100 Medium Office
United Centre, term lease MWNE
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Hong Kong
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DIRECTORS

Fu Shula (Chairman)

Wang Xinkuo (Deputy Chairman)
Ji Guirong (Deputy Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer)
Ma Zhiping

Pan Linwu

Diao Weicheng

Liu Rongchun

Zhang Chuanjun

Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond*

Chu Yu Lin, David**

Li Ka Fai, David**

Li Zhaoxi**
* Non-executive Director
** Independent Non-executive Directors

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chu Yu Lin, David
Li Ka Fai, David
Li Zhaoxi

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Fu Shula
Chu Yu Lin, David
Li Ka Fai, David

COMPANY SECRETARY

Leung Yuen Chee, Sara

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hua Xia Bank

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

SOLICITORS

Baker & McKenzie
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Corporate Information

NG -2

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Unit B, 15th Floor,
United Centre,

95 Queensway,
Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS

Principal registrars

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

Hong Kong registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,

Hong Kong

A MEE

Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda

MREENTELERME

BB
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G— N 15EBRE

ROBFEETE
TERHBFEER

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
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